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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
OFA 

PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY 

Company Number 9090276 

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, hereby certifies that 

PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

1s this day mcorporated under the Companies Act 2006 as a pnvate 
company, that the company is limited by guarantee, and the situation of 
its registered office is in England and Wales 

Given at Companies House on 17th June 2014 

I llllllll Ill lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111111111111111111 
*N09090276K* 

-Companies House THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE 
REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES 



In accordance wrth 
Section 9 of the 
Co"Tipan1esAct 2026 

Part 1 

w 

Proposed company 
name 1n full O 

For offloal use 

',,.,~ 3/'f'O• 

IN01 
Application to register a company 11 ~ 111111111111 

•A39UUNE9• 

A 13 12/06/2014 #23 
COMPANIES HOUSE 

·o39NJT80• 
A fee 1s payable with this form 
Please see 'How to pay' on the last page 

DSR 0910612014 #23 

./What this form 1s for 
You may use thlS form to register a 
private or public company 

)( What this form IS NOT for 
You cannot use this form to reg1Ster 
a limited liability partnership To do 
this, please use form LL INOl 

Company details 

Company name 

To check 1f a company name 1s available use our WebCHeck service and select 
the 'Company Name Availability Search' option 

www.companieshouse.gov.uk/info 

Please show the proposed company name below 

11111111 
Company name restrictions e 

Please tick the box only 1f the proposed company name contains sens1t1ve 
or restricted words or expressions that requlfe you to seek comments of a 
government department or other spec1f1ed body 

[i?"" I confirm that the proposed company name contains sens1t1ve or restricted 
words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been 
sought of a government department or other spec1f1ed body and I attach a 
copy of their response 

Exemption from name ending with 'Limited' or 'Cyfyngedig' o 

Please tick the box 1f you w1Sh to apply for exemption from the requirement to 
have the name endmg with 'L1m1ted', Cyfynged1g' or permitted alternative 

~ I confirm that the above proposed company meets the cond1t1ons for 
exemption from the requirement to have a name ending with 'L1m1ted', 
'Cyfynged1g' or permitted alternative 

Company typeo 

Please tick the box that descnbes the proposed company type and members' 
l1ab1hty (only one box must be ticked) 

D 
D 
0' 
0 
D 

Pubhc l1m1ted by shares 
Private limited by shares 
Private l1m1ted by guarantee 
Private unlimited with share capital 
Private unlimited without share capital 

COMPANIES HOUSE 

For further information, please 
refer to our guidance at 
www companieshouse gov uk 

-+ f1'hng 1n this form 
Please complete in typescropt or rn 
bold black capitals 

All ftelds are mandatory unless 
spec1f1ed or indicated by * 

0 Duplicate names 
Oup'Kate names are not permitted 
A list of registered names can 
be found on our \Vebs1te There 
are vanous rules that may affect 
your choice of name More 
1nformat1on on this is available rn 
our guidance booklet GP1 at 
w~wJ companies house gov uk 

f) Company name restrictions 
A list of senstt1ve or restncted 
'lrVords or expressrons that require 
consent can be found rn our 
guidance booklet GP1 at 
WWl.'>l comparn~house gov uk 

@Name ending exemption 
Only private companies that are 
l•m1ted by guarantee and meet other 
spec1f1c requirements are el1g1ble 
to apply for this For more details, 
please go to our websrte 
WWII/ col"lpan1eshouse gov uk 

Jo company type 

I
, If you are unsure of your company's 

type, please go to our website 
- ~vw1.v compan1eshouse gov uk 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Appl1cat1on to register a company 

Situation of registered office o 

Please tick the appropriate box below that describes the s1tuat1on of the 
proyosed registered office (only one box must be ticked) 
!ii'l'" England and Wales 
D Wales 
D Scotland 
O Northern Ireland 

Registered office address o 

Please give the registered office address of your company 

OReg1stered office 
Every company must have a 
registered office and this 1s the 
address to whKh the Registrar will 
send correspondence 

For England and Wales companies, 
the address must be in England or 
'vVales 

For Welsh, Scottish or Northern 
Ireland companies, the address must 
be m Wales, Scotland or Northern 
Ireland respectively 

0 Registered office address 

Bu1ld1ng name/number I r1:..1 N ( (;_ s ,-1<. v s:;- H o-v ..\' € 
You must ensure that the address 
shown m this section is consistent 
with the s1tuat1on 1nd:cated m 
section AS Street I 2 ~1-t:,oN ~ 

I 
Post town I Lo~ol'I 
County/Region 

Articles of association o 

You must provide an address m 
England or Wales for companies to 
be registered m England and Wales 

You must provide an address m 
Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland 
for companies to be registered m 
Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland 
respectively 

Please choose one option only and tick one box only IOFor details of which company type 
--------;----~--~~------------------ . can adopt which model articles, 

I wish to adopt one of the following model articles in its entirety Please tick ' please go to our webS1te Option 1 

Option 2 

Option 3 

only one box W\Wil comparneshouse gov uk 

D Private limited by shares 
D Private limited by guarantee 
D Public company 

I wish to adopt the following model articles with add1t1onal and/or amended 
prov1S1ons I attach a copy of the add1t1onal and/or amended prov1s1on(s) Please 
tick only one box 
D Private l1m1ted by shares 
[] Private l1m1ted by guarantee 
LJ Public company 

~ I wish t~ adopt entirely bespoke articles I attach a copy of the bespoke 
articles to this appl1cat1on 

' 
Restricted company articles o 
Please tick the box below 1f the company's articles are restrided 

0 
0Restncted company articles 

Restricted company articles are 
those containing prov1s1on for 
entrenchment For more details, 
please go to our website 
~VW\Yconpan1eshouse gov uk 

CHFPOOO 
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Part 2 

Secretary 

ID 

Title* 

Full forename(s) 

Surname 

Former name(s) O 

IN01 
Appl1Cat1on to register a company 

Proposed officers 
For pnvate companies the appomtment of a secretary 1s optional, however, 1f you do decide to appomt a company 
secretary you must provide the relevant details Public companies are required to appoint at least one secretary 

Pnvate companies must appoint at least one dtrector who 1s an md1v1dual Public companies must appoint at least 
two directors, one of which must be an md1v1dual 

For a secretary who 1s an md1v1dual, go to Section 81, For a corporate secretary, go to Section C1, For a 
dtrector who 1s an md1v1dual, go to Section 01, For a corporate dtrector, go to Section E1 

Secretary appointments o 
Please use this section to ltst all the secretary appointments taken on formation 
For a corporate secretary, complete Sections C1-C5 

Secretary's service address o 

lo corporate appointments 
I for corporate secretary 
· appointments, please complete 

sectron Cl -C5 instead of 
section 8 

Add1t1onal appointments 
If you wish to appoint more 
than one secretary, p!ease use 
the 'Secretary appointments' 
contmuat1on page 

f) Former name{s) 
Please provrde any previous names 
which have been used for business 
purposes in the last 20 years 
Married women do not need to give 
former names unless previously used 
for business purposes 

Burld1ng name/number I p I!... IN C.l!: 'J OServ1ce address 
This 1s the address that will appear 
on the public record This does not 
have to be your usual res1dent1al 
address 

Street I 9 

Post town 

County/Region I <; fl._ i:: A-7f1R... l-ON.1!>¢ ·'I 

-Pos-tco-de ___ [EfZ~fMl~fj:.[T 

Country 

Signature o 

I consent to act as secretary of the proposed company named 1n Section A1 

Signature 

Please state 'The Company's 
Registered Office' 1f your service 
address will be recorded in the 
proposed company's register 
of secretaries as the company's 
registered office 

If you provide your res1dent1al 
address here 1t will appear on the 
public record 

I OSrgnature 
The person named above consents 
to act as secretary a1 the pHiposed 
company 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Applicat1on to register a company 

Corporate secretary 

Name of corporate 
body/firm 

Bu1ld1ng name/number 

Street 

Post town 

County/Region 

Postcode 

Country 

Corporate secretary appointments o 

Please use th1S section to list all the corporate secretary appointments taken 
on formation 

11111111 

Location of the registry of the corporate body or fmn 
Is the corporate secretary reg1Stered within the European Economic Area (EEA)? 

-+ Yes Complete Section Cl only 
-+ No Complete Section C4 only 

tiJ EEA companies 8 
r-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Where the company/ 
firm 1s registered o 

Reg1strat1on number 

P I ease give details of the reg1Ster where the company file IS kept (including the 
relevant state) and the reg1Stration number 1n that register 

lSJ Non-EEA companies 

Legal form of the 
corporate body 
or firm 

Governing law 

If applicable, where 
the company/firm IS 

registered o 
Reg1strat1on number 

Signature 

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by 
which 111s governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which 
1t 1s entered (including the state) and its reg1Strat1on number 1n that register 

Signature 0 

I consent to act as secretary of the proposed company named in Section A 1 
' 

OAdd1t1onal appointments 
If you wish to appoint more than one 
corporate secretary, please use the 
'Corporate secrei:ary appointments' 
continuation page 

Registered or pnnc1pal address 
This 1s the address that will appear 
on the public record This address 
must be a physical locatmn for the 
delivery of documents It cannot be 
a PO box number (unless contained 
within a full address), DX number or 
LP (Legal Post m Scotland) number 

if>EEA 
! A full I 1st of countries of the EEA can 
· be found m our guidance 

\V'.ffl comparneshousegov uk 

OTh1s 1s the register mentioned in 

Article 3 of the First Comoany Law 
Directive (68/151 /EEC) 

j ONon-EEA 
Where you have prov:ded details of 
the register (including state) where 
the company or fr rm 1s registered, 
you must also prov;de its number m 
that register 

0S1gnature 
The person named above consents 
to act as corporate secretary of the 
proposed company 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Application to register a company 

Director 

GD Director appointments o 

Please use this section to list all the director appointments taken on formation 
for a corporate d11ector, complete Sections E1-ES 

Title' 

Full forename(s) I M 1\-R...,.. I "' I\ ~A't-IE 
Surname I M ILISURN 
Former name(s)O I C~Ov-JLE:-{ ~ 

I 
Country/State of 

I ~ N 1 '- J\-N.b residence O 
Nationality I C31Z..1-rt s f1 
Date of birth rors=-~ i"Of9 fi[Yqr.=-ir,f 7 ; .:, : 
Business occupation I ()-;11"."F i:;--,.. f: C... iJ T ' \/ £ 
(1f any) o 

I 

GS Director's service address o 

I Please complete the service address below You must also fill in the director's 
usual res1dent1al address 1n Section D4 

Post town I LON~O"l 

Country 

Signature o 

I consent to act as director of the proposed company named m Section A 1 

Signature 
')( 

·0Appo1ntments 
Private compames must appoint 
at least one director 1J11ho 1s an 
md1v1dual Public companies must 
appmnt at least ti.vo directors, one of 
\Vh1ch must be an 1nd1v1dual 

0 Former name(s) 
Please provide any prevmus names 
whtch have been used for business 
purposes m the last 20 years 
Married v.;omen do not need to give 
former names unless previously used 
for business purposes 

OCountry/State of residence 
This 1s m respect of your usual 
res•dent1al address as stated 1n 
sectmn D4 

OBusmess occupation 
If you have a business occupation, 
please enter here If you do not, 
please leave blank 

Add1t1onal appointments 
If you wish to appoint more than 
one director, please use the 'Director 
appointments' cont1nuat1on page 

0 Service address 
This 1s the address that will appear 
on the pubhc record This does not 
have to be your usual res•dent1al 
address 

Please state 'The Company's 
Registered Office' 1f your service 
address will be recorded in the 
proposed company's register of 
directors as the company's registered 
office 

If you provide your residential 
address here 1t will appear on the 
public record 

·a signature 
The person named above consents 
to act as director of the proposed 
company 

CHFPOOO 
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Director 

i!ii 

Title* 

Full farename(s) 

Surname 

Former name(s)O 

IN01 
Application to register a company 

Director appointments o 

Please use this section ta ltst all the director appointments taken an formation 
For a corporate director, complete Sections El-ES 

s-., R.L-i N 6-" 

.,1(\ 

Country/State of I ~NG1-A-N1> 
residence o "' 
'"'N"'a1"'1o"'na"'1~1ty ____ I 8R.rl

1 
s '-i 

Dateafb1rth rz=-rt fO~ r'/f'9i'6 ~ 
Business occupation 
(tf any) O 

I 

Director's service address 0 

Please complete the service address below You must also 1111 in the director's 
usual res1dent1al address m Section 04 

Bu1ld1ng name/number I fli!. 1 N c£); -r"Rv~\ 1-!0llSt 

Street I 7 ~o >-1 'i;. \J?. a:: C:: 7 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Posttown 

Countl}' 

Signature e 

I consent to act as director of the proposed company named m Section Al 

Signature 

Q Appointments 
Private companies must appomt 
at least one director who is an 
rnd1v1dual Public cornpanres must 
appoint at least n.vo directors, one of 
which nusr be an ind1v1dual 

0 Former name{s) 
Please provide any previous names 
-..vh1ch have been used for business 
purposes rn the last 20 years 
Married women do not need to give 
former names unless previously used 
for business purposes 

OCountry/State of residence 
This is rn resoect of your usual 
residential address as stated rn 
Section 04 

0 Business occupatron 
If you have a business occupatiOn, 
please enter here If you do not, 
please leave blank 

Add1t1onal appointments 
If you wish to appo•nt more than 
one director, please use the 'Drrector 
appointments' continuation page 

0Serv1ce address 
This 1s the address that will appear 
on the public record This does not 
have to be your usual res1dent1al 
address 

Please state 'The Company's 
Registered Office' 1f your service 
address \"1111 be recorded m the 
proposed company's reg•ster of 
directors as the company's registered 
office 

If you provide your res1dent1al 
address here 1t will appear on the 
pubhc record 

ies1gnature 
· The person named above consents 

to act as director of the proposed 
company 

CHFPOOO 
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In accordance with IN01 - continuation page Section 9 of the 
Co11parnes Act 2006 Application to register a company 

Director 

GD Director appointments o 

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company 10Appo1ntments 
For a corporate director. complete Sections E1-E5 Private companies must appo•nt 

at least one director who 1s an 
Title* md1v1dual Public companies must 

i appoint at least tvio directors, one of 
full forename(s) I :s l>.. /<...A\-\ ~A<!.oLYN c_oti S~NliN i: which must be an mdw1dua! 

Surname I \-t f\- I ti~ y 
fl former name(s) 

Please provide any prevmus names 

Former name(s)O I wh·ch have been used for business 
S AAft 1-f c.. -1\-R-O 1.-Y N c 0"" s, TP,·1'.fi--1 N G purposes m the last 20 years 

I Married women do not need to give 
former names unless previously used 

Country/State of 
I I for business purposes 

residence o /;:: N G-Lf'<i.A.!:::::. 9Country/State of residence 
Nationality I \SR 111 SK Th•s 1s m respect of your usual 

res1dent1al address as stated m 
Date of birth r;rs- r;;rs:- flf'Cll':t !'1 Sectmn 04 

Business occupation I co t1 JlA-o\I t' SEC.12- "i: IA-~/' 
O Business occupation 

If you have a business occupatmn, 
(11 any) O 

I I please enter here If you do not, 
' please leave blank 

I 
llS Director's service address o 

Please complete the service address below You must also fill in the director's 0Serv1ce address 
usual reS1dent1al address 1n Section 04 This 1s the address that will appear 

on the public record Thrs does not 
Building name/number I I'll..., NCE '.., TR.iJ s;-.- Ho-oc;i: have to be your usual res1dent1al 

address 
Street I '1 i=l..-hON S:\il_~ Please state 'The Company's 

Registered Office' 1f your seN1ce 

I 
address will be recorded m the 

Post town i.--ON~c)N proposed company's register of 

County/Region ~ R..t;: A-T""£'(t.. /......C NJ!. CN 
directors as the company's registered 
office 

Postcode iz~I <-- IMll-1!L[:S If you provide your residential 
address here 1t w111 appear on the 

Country I public record 

GS Signature o 

I consent to act as d1rector of the proposed company named in Section A 1 6S1gnature 
The person named above consents 

Signature J Signature to act as director of the proposed 

)( ~°Lr )( company 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Applrcat1on to register a company 

Corporate director 

ID 
Name of corporate 
body or firm 

Building name/number 

Street 

Post town 

County/Region 

Postcode 

Country 

ID 

iii 

Where the company/ 
firm 1s reg1steredO 

Reg1strat1on number 

ID 

legal form of the 
corporate body 
or firm 

Governing law 

If applicable, where 
the company/firm 1s 
registered o 

If applicable, the 
reg1strat1on number 

Corporate director appointments o 

Please use this section to list all the corporate directors taken on formation 

1111-; 1111 

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm 

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEAP 

-+ Yes Complete Section El only 
-+ No Complete Section E4 only 

EEA companies o 

Please give details of the register where the company file 1s kept (including the 
relevant state) and the reg1strat1on number in that register 

I 
I 
Non-EEA companies 

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by 
which 1t 1s governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which 
1t 1s entered (including the state) and its reg1strat1on number in that register 

Signature 0 

\ 1 consent to act as director of the proposed company named 1n Section A 1 

OAdd1t1onal appointments 
If you wish to appoint more than one 
corporate director, please use the 
'Corporate director appointments' 
continuation page 

Registered or principal address 
This 1s the address that will appear 
on the public record This address 
must be a physical location for the 
de!1very of documents ft cannot be 
a PO box number (unless contained 
'vVlthin a full address), DX number or 
LP (legal Post in Scotland) number 

I 

!@EEA 
! 

I 

A full list of countrres of the EEA can 
be found m our guidance 
www companieshouse gov uk 

OTh1s 1s the register mentioned in 

Art•cle 3 of the First Company La\v 
Directive (68/151JEEC} 

ONon-EEA 
VVhere you have provided details of 
the register (including state) where 
the company or firm 1s registered, 
you must also provide its number in 

that register 

0S1gnature 
The person named above consents 
to act as corporate direaor of the 
proposed company 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Application to register a company 

' ' 
' 

Part 3 Statement of capital j 

' 
Does your company have share cap1tal7 

-+ Yes Complete the sections below 
~ Go to Part 4 (Statement of guarantee) 

Iii Share capital m pound sterling (£) 

Please complete the table below to show each class of shares held m pound sterling 
If all your issued capital IS'" sterling, only complete Section F1 and then go to Section F4 

Class of shares .lA11ou'lt paid up on I Amo'°t (1f any) unp"d I Number of sha"s 6 I Aggregate nommal value 0 
(E g Ordmary'Preference etc ) teach share 0 on each share 0 I I ' 

I I 
' '£ I 

! I 1£ 

' I '£ I 

I I I 1£ 
Totals I 1£ 

m Share capital in other currencies 

Please complete the table below to show any class of shares held 1n other currencies 
Please complete a separate table for each currency 

Currency 

Class of shares 
(E g Ordmary/Preference etc) 

Currency I 
Class of shares 
(E g Ordinary/Preference etc ) 

-Iii Totals 

' 

' 

' 

Amount paid up on 
each share 0 

Amount paid up on 
each share 0 

! Arriount (1f any) unpaid 
: on eacli sha•e 0 

Totals 

I Amount {1f any) unpaid 
on each share 0 

' 
I 
! 
i 

Totals 

Number of shares f) Aggregate no'Tlmal value 0 

rUll'ber of shaies 6 Aggregate nominal value 0 

i 
I 

' 

Please give the total number of shares and total aggregate nominal value of OTotal aggregate nominal value 
issued share capital Please ltst total aggregate values in 

Total number of shares 
I 

d1fferent currencies separately For 
examp!e £100 + €100 + $10 etc 

Total aggregate 

I nominal value o 
' 

O Including both the nominal value and any O Number of shares 1ssued multp'1ed by Coritmuat1on Pages 
share premium nominal value of each share Please use a Statement of Capital continuation 

f) Total number of issued shares m this class 
page 1f necessary 

CHFPOOO 
05/12 Version 5 O 



IN01 
Application to register a company 

ID Statement of capital (Prescribed particulars of rights attached to shares) 

Please give the prescribed particulars of rights attached to shares for each class OPrescnbed particulars of rights 
of share shown in the statement of capital share tables in Sections Fl and F2 attached to shares 

Class of share 
The partrculars are 
a particulars of any voting rights, 

Prescribed particulars including nghts that arise only m 
certarn circumstances, 0 

b particulars ot any rights, as 
respects dividends, to participate 
m a d1stnbutron, 

c particulars of any rights. as 
respects capital, to part1e1pate m a 
d1stnbut1on (1ndud1ng on i,vrndmg 
up), and 

d whether the shares are to be 
redeemed or are liable to be 
redeemed at the option of the 
company or the shareholder and 
any terms or cond1tions relating 
to redemption of these shares 

A separate table must be used for 
each class of share 

Continuation pages 
Please use the next page or a 
'Statement of Capital (Prescribed 
particulars of rights attached 
to shares)' continuation page rf 
necessary 

CHFPOOO 
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Class of share 

Prescribed particulars 
0 

IN01 
Application to register a company 

OPrescnbed particulars of rights 
attached to shares 

The particulars are 
a particulars of any voting rights, 

including nghts that arise only in 

certain circumstances, 
b particulars of any rights. as 

respects d1vrdends, to part1e1pate 
in a d1stnbutmn, 

c particulars of any rights, as 
respects capital, to part1c1pate 1n a 
d1stnbut1on (including on winding 
up), and 

d whether the shares are to be 
redeemed or are liable to be 
redeemed at the option of the 
company or the shareholder and 
any terms or cond1tmns relating 
to redemption of these shares 

A separate table must be used for 
each class of share 

Continuation pages 
Please use a 'Statement of capital 
(Prescribed particulars of nghts 
attached to shares)' canrmuatmn 
page 1f necessary 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Apphcat1on to register a company 

ID lmt1al shareholdings 

This section should only be completed by companies incorporating with share capital ln1t1al shareholdings 

Please complete the details below for each subscriber 
Please hst the company's subscribers 
m alphabetical order 

The addresses will appear on the pubhc record These do not need to be the Please use an 'lnit1al shareholdings' 
subscribers' usual res1dent1al address continuation page 1f necessary 

ISubscnber's details Class of share I Number of sh.,es I Currency I Nominal value of Arrount (1f any) Amount paid 
each share unpaid 

'l.'~rre 11111 
J.~ress 

I Iii I 
I I ii I I I 

1'.ame 

I 
' Ii i 
! 
I ' 

Ad:lress 

i I Iii 
1111 

Name Iii II ' 
Add~s 

I 
I I 

I 
! I ! 

I I i i 

I Ill II 
~Ji!Te I 

I Ill ' 

I 
Addr"SS 1111 I 

II! II 
/l,a"le i 

I ! I I 
I I ' i 

Ad:h•ss I 

I I ; 

I 
I II! I 
I 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Application to register a company 

' 
' 
j 

Part4 Statement of guarantee 
' 

Is your company hm1ted by guarantee? 

-+@com~lete the sections below 

-+ No Go to Part 5 (Statement of compliance) 

Bi Subscribers· 
Please complete this section 1f you are a subscriber of a company hm1ted by 
guarantee The following statement 1s being made by each and every person 
named below , 

I confirm that 1f the company is wound up while I am a member, or within 
one year after I cease to be a member, I will contribute to the assets of the 
company by such amount as may be required for : 
- payment of debts and l1ab1ht1es of the company contracted before I 

cease to be a member, 
- payment of costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and, 
- ad1ustment of the rights of the contributors among ourselves, 

not exceeding the spec1f1ed amount below 

I 

Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) o 
SurnameO 

-A-dd-r-es_s_O ____ I Pe_ oN~'I' 111.<J~ I' 

I Lo "-'.ti.O tJ 

H<l"U.SC' 
' 

-Pos-tco-de --1Erzr;:-1M/~r-i::-15 

Amount guaranteedO I i l•OO i DNL po~ 
Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) O 

SurnameO 

Address o 

Postcode 

Amount guaranteed 0 

Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) o 

Surname o 

Address o 

Postcode 

Amount guaranteed O I 
' 

OName 
Please use capital letters 

OAddress 
The addresses m this sectrnn will 
appear on the pubhc record They do 
not have to be the subscribers' usual 
res1dent1al address 

9 Amount guaranteed 
Any valid currency 1s permitted 

Cont1nuat1on pages 
Please use a 'Subscribers' 
cont1nuat1on page 1f necessary 

CHFPOOO 
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IN01 
Apphcatron to register a company 

Subscriber's details OName 

Forename(s) o I 
Please use capital letters 

@Address 
Surname o The addresses in this sed1on will 

Address o I appear on the public record They do 
' i not have to be the subscribers' usual 

res1dent1al address 

Postcode 11111111 @Amount guaranteed 
Any vahd currency 1s permitted 

Amount guaranteed O Cont1nuat1on pages 
Please use a 'Subscribers· 

Subscriber's details cont:nuatmn page 1f necessaiy 

Forename(s) o i 
' 

SurnameO 

Address o I 

Postcode 11111111 I 
Amount guaranteed O 

Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) o ! 
i 

Surnameo I 

I 
AddressO 

.~-

Postcode 1111 1111 
Amount guaranteed O 

Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) o 
Surname o 

Address@ 

Postcode 111-11-11 
Amount guaranteed ii 

Subscriber's details 

Forename(s) o 

Surname o 

AddressO 

Postcode llllli-. II 
Amount guaranteed O 

CHFPOOO 
05/12 Version 5 0 



Part 5 

IN01 
Appl1cat1on to register a company 

Statement of compliance 
' 

ThlS section must be completed by all companies 

Is the appl1cat1on by an agent on behalf of all the subsrnbersJ 

-+ No Go to Section H1 (Statement of compliance delivered by the 
subsrn be rs) 

-+ Yes Go to Section H2 (Statement of compliance delivered by an agent) 

llii 

Subsrnber's signature 

Subsrnber's signature 

Statement of compliance delivered by the subscribers o 

Please complete this section 1f the appllcatJon IS not delivered by an ·agent 
for the subsrnbers of the memorandum of assoc1at1on 

I confirm that the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as to reg1Strat1on 
have been complied with 

Subscriber's signature signature 

)( 

Subsrnber's signature 

1x· 
Subsrnber's signature 

1x 
Subsrnber's Signature 1x-
Subsrnber's signature 1x-
-~" """ .... Ix· 

)( 

)( 

)( 

)( 

)( 

OStatement of comphance 
delivered by the subscribers 
Every subscriber to the 
memorandum of assoc1at1on must 
sign the statement of comphance 

CHFPOOO 
05/12 Version 5 0 



Subscriber's signature 

Subscnber's signature 

Subscnber's signature 

Agent's name 

Bu 1 lding name/number 

Street 

Post town 

County/Region 

Postcode 

Country 

Agent's signature 

IN01 
Applrcat1on to register a company 

1x· 

Statement of compliance delivered by an agent 

Please complete this section 11 this appl1cat1on 1s delivered by an agent for 
the subscnbers to the memorandum of assoc1at1on 

r-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11111111 

I confirm that the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as to reg1strat1on 
have been complied with 

Cont1nuat1on pages 
Please use a 'Statement of 
compliance delivered by the 
subscribers' contrnuatmn page 1f 
more subscribers need to s•gn 

CHFPOOO 
05/12 Version 5 0 



IN01 
Application to register a company 

p , Presenter information 11 lm;portant information 

You do not have to give any contact 1nformat1on, but 1f j Please note that all mformat1on on this form 
you do 1t will help Companies House 1f there 1s a query I will appear on the public record, apart from 
on the form The contact information you give will be ' mformat1on relating to usual res1dent1al 
v1s1ble to searchers of the public record addresses 

I Ccntact ral'le ~ O U "'-' A:-.. !:>e:-.e.so iJ 
JI H~wto pay I Com~ar~ ra-ie 

Ill~ r11..,Nc~;, rtuJ>-;" 
A fee 1s payable on this form 
Make cheques or postal orders payable to 

I "'re;; ff/.. •N~ or TlloJS'l"" ,f.l <)-l)S('; 'Companies House' For information on fees, go 

I 
to www companieshouse gov uk 

? S-.6 C> >.J smL<E.-
•~• Where to send 

I :>osttowr. WJ"' i::JcN You may return this form to any Companies House 
I County'Reg1on 

'f~;c.,_ LO >J.-Ciil "I 
address, however for expediency we advise you to 
return 1t to the appropriate address below 

I :>ostcode lc!~IMl!-=r~~ 
For companies registered m England and Wales I Country 

~ CjL..f\""N~ The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, 

I " Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ 
DX 33050 Cardiff 

I Tel~~'-7,e ow +s+.3 /33 r-
For companies registered in Scotland 

l"4 Certificate The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, 

We will send your cert1f1cate to the presenters address 
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 
139 Fountambndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF 

(shown above) or 1f indicated to another address DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 
shown below or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post) 
D At the registered office address (Given 1n Section A6) 
D At the agents address (Given in Section H2) For companies registered in Northern Ireland 

l"4 Checklist 
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, 
Second Floor, The Lmenhall, 32-38 Lmenhall Street, 

We may return forms completed incorrectly or Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG 

with information m1ssmg DX 481 N R Belfast 1 

Please make sure you have remembered the I Section 243 exemption 

following ! If you are applying for, or have been granted a section 

!i:YYou have checked that the proposed company name 1s : 243 exemption, please post this whole form to the 

available as well as the various rules that may affect l different postal address below 

your choice of name More information can be found : The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082, 

1n guidance on our website i Cardiff, CF14 3WE 
I 

O' If the name of the company 1s the same as one U Further information already on the register as permitted by The Company 
and Business Names (M1Scellaneous Prov1s1ons) For further 1nformat1on, please see the guidance notes 

~egulatmns 2008, please attach consent on the website at wwwcompanieshouse gov uk 
' You have u'sed the correct appointment sections or email enqu1nes@companieshouse gov uk 
fJ""Any addresses given must be a phyS1cal location 

They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part of a 
This form is available in an full service address), DX or LP (Legal Post in Scotland) 

' 
~umber ' alternative format. Please visit the 

The document has been Signed, where ind1Cated 
forms page on the website at GY. All relevant attachments have been included 

i;i/You have enclosed the Memorandum of Assooat1on wwiN.companieshouse.gov.uk GJ/You have enclosed the correct fee 

CHFPOOO 
Tris form has been provided f•ee of cl-iarge by Companies House 05/12 Version 5 0 



COMPANY NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL 

Memorandum of assoc1ation of PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Eae-h subscriber to this memorandum of assoc1at1on \Vtshes to form a company under the 
Compames Act 2006 and agrees to become a member of the company 

1Varne of each subscrlber 4uthenucauon bv each subscrzber 

THE PRINCE'S TRUST 



THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 
NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL 

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

of 

PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Company Number [insert) 

Charity Number. [insert) 

Date of Incorporation [insert) 



COMPANIES ACT 2006 

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE 

NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL 

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

-of-

PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

1 Definitions and mterpretat1on 

1 1 In these Articles the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings unless 
the context otherwise requires 

Act 

Articles 

Charities Act 

Charity 

clear days 

Charity Comm1ss1on 

means the Companies Act 2006 including any statutory 

mod1f1cat1on or re-enactment thereof for the time being 1n 
I 

force. 

means these Articles of Association. 

means the Charities Act· 2011 including any statutory 
mod1f1cat1on or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force, 

means Prince's Trust International, 

m relation to a period of notice means a period excluding 

the day when the notice 15 given or deemed to be given 
I 

and the day for which 1t 1s, given or on which 1t 1s to take 
effect, 

means the Charity Comm1ss1on for England and Wales, 



Director 

document 

electronic form 

Financial Expert 

The Prince's Trust 

Member 

Memorandum 

Model Articles 

Objects 

Ordinary Resolution 

proxy notice 

Seal 

Secretary 

Special Resolution 

United Kingdom 

writing 

means a director of the Charity and includes any person 

occupying the pos1t1on of director, by whatever name 
called The Directors are charity trustees as defined in the 

Charities Act. 

includes, unless otherwise spec1f1ed, any document sent 
or supplied in electronic form, 

has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Act, 

means a person who 1s reasonably believed by the 
Directors to be qual1f1ed to give advice in relation to 
investments by reason of his ability in and practical 
experience of financial and other matters relating to 
investments, 

means the company l1m1ted by guarantee incorporated by 
Royal Charter in England and Wales under company 
number RC0007772 which 1s also registered with the 
Charity Comm1ss1on for England and Wales and with the 
Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator, 

means a person who 1s a subscriber to the Memorandum 
or who 1s admitted to membership in accordance with the 
Articles, 

means the memorandum of assoc1at1on of the Charity, 

means the model articles for private companies limited by 

guarantee contained 1n Schedule 2 of the Companies 
(Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/322g), 

the objects of the Charity as set out in Article 4, 

has the meaning given in section 282 of the Act, 

has the meaning given in Article 17. 

means the common seal (11 any) of the Charity, 

means any person appointed to perform the duties of the 
secretary of the Charity, 

has the meaning given in section 283 of the Act, 

means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 

Ireland, 

means the representation or reproduction of words, 

symbols or other 1nformat1on 1n a v1s1ble form by any 
method or comb1nat1on of methods, whether sent or 

supplied 1n electronic form or otherwise 

2 



I,..,., 

1 2 Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall 
' bear the same meaning as in the Act but excluding any statutory mod1ficat1on thereof not in 

force when these Articles become binding on the Charity 

1 3 All words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice versa and words 
I 

importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine 

1 4 Headings in the Articles are used for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or 
interpretation of the Articles 

1 5 The Model Articles shall not apply to the Charity 

1 6 Throughout the Articles, the expression "charitable" means charitable in accordance with he 

law of England and Wales, provided that 1t Wiii not include any purpose which IS not charitable 
' in accordance with section 7 of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act and/or . ' 

section 2 of the Charities Act (Northern Ireland) 2008 or any statutory amendment or 
mod1f1cat1on of e1iher 

J 
1 7 The system of law governing the Articles 1s the law of England and Wales 

CHARITY DETAILS 

2 Name 

2 1 The name of the Charity 1s Prince's Trust International 

3 Registered office 

3 1 The registered office of the Charity 1s to be situated in England and Wales 

OBJECTS AND POWERS 

4 Ob1ects 

4 1 The Chanty's ob1ects are restricted to purposes which are charitable 1n accordance with the 
' ' laws of England and Wales, and spec1f1cally to 

4 1 1 
I 

promoting by all charitable means throughout the world the mental, spiritual, moral 
and physical development and improvement of 'young people and providing 
opportunities for them to develop their full capab1ht1es and enabling them to become 
responsible members of society so that their cond1t1ons of hfe may be improved, to 
include 
4 1 1 1 prov1d1ng facilities for young people for recreation or other leisure time 

occupation 1n the interests of social welfare, 

3 



4 1 1 2 advancing the education of young people by the prov1s1on of, encouragement 
and promotion of education, 1nstruct1on or training 1n professions, vocations, 
industries, crafts, trades or the skills needed in employment, 

4 1 1 3 rel1ev1ng poverty amongst young people through the prov1s1on of assistance 
(including financial assistance) and encouragement whilst their education 1s 
being advanced as aforesaid or whilst they are 1n the process of establishing 
new businesses of preparing for entering upon or engaging in a profession, 
trade, craft or service, 

4 1 1 4 arranging periods of voluntary work in the community, 
4 1 1 5 for the benefit of the public encouraging and assisting young people 1n their 

understanding of and practical action in support of the natural and built 
environment, 

4 1 1 6 promoting and conducting research into social cond1t1ons affecting young 
people and the mental. spmtual, moral and physical needs of young people 
and to publish the useful results of such research, 

4 1 1 7 carrying out any such approved objects (as defined by Regulation 33 of the 
Landfill Tax Regulations 1996 or any amendment thereto or replacement 
thereof) as are exclusively charitable and encouraging young people to do 
so, and 

4 1 1 8 supporting such charity or charities or such charitable purpose or purposes 
as the Members shall in their absolute d1scret1on think fit 

4 2 Nothing 1n the Articles shall authorise an appl1cat1on of the property of the Charity for purposes 
which are not charitable in accordance with section 7 of the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and/or section 2 of the Charities Act (Northern Ireland) 2008 

5 Powers 

5 1 In furtherance of the Objects, but not further or otherwise, and in add1t1on to any other powers 

1t may have the Charity shall have power 

5 1 1 to accept any gift or transfer of money or any other property whether or not 

subject to any special trust, 

5 1 2 to raise funds, provided that 1n doing so the Charity shall not undertake any 

substantial permanent taxable trading and shall comply with any relevant 

statutory regulations, 

5 1 3 to purchase or form trading companies alone or jointly with others, 

5 1 4 to buy, take on lease or exchange, hire or otherwise acquire and hold any real or 

personal estate, 

5 1 5 to maintain, alter or equip for use any real or personal estate, 

5 1 6 to erect, maintain, improve, or alter any buildings in which the Charity for the time 

being has an interest, 

5 1 7 subiect to such consents as may be required by law to sell, lease or otherwise 

dispose of all or any part of the real or personal estate belonging to the Charity, 

4 



5 1 8 subject to such consents as may be required by law to borrow or raise money 

and to give security for loans or grants, 

5 1 9 to make grants or loans of money, to give guarantees and become or give 

security for the performance of contracts and to grant powers of attorney by way 

of security for the performance of obhgat1ons, 

5 1 10 

5 1 11 

5 1 12 

5 1 13 

5 1 14 

5 1 15 

5 1 16 

51 17 

to co-operate. including exchanging information and advice, and enter into 

arrangements with other bodies, international, national, local or otherwise, 

to establish or support any charitable trusts, assoc1at1ons, companies, inst1tut1ons 

or other bodies formed for any of the charitable purposes included in the Objects, 

to acquire or merge with any other charity formed for any of the Objects, 

to enter into partnership, j01nt venture or other arrangement with any body with 
• objects s1m1lar in whole or part to the Objects, 

to affiliate to or accept affihat1on from any ind1v1dual or organ1satmn anywhere in 

the world provided that such an 1nd1v1dual or orgarnsahons has objects s1m1lar in 

whole or part to the Objects, 

to set aside funds for special purposes or as reserves against future expenditure 

in accordance with a written reserves policy, 

to deposit or invest funds with all the powers of a benef1c1al owner, but to invest 

only' after obtaining advice from a F1nanc1al Expert and having regard to the 

su1tab1hty of investments and the need for d1vers1f1cat1on, 

' to delegate the management of investments to a Financial Expert but only on 

terms that 

5 1 17 1 

5 1 17 2 

5 1 17 3 

5 1 17 4 

5 1 17 5 

the investment pohcy 1s set down 1n writing for the Financial Expert 

by the Directors, 

make prov1s1on for appropriate and regular reporting obligations to 

the Directors or to a committee authorised by the Directors to 

receive such reports 1n respect of all transactions and a requirement 

for the prompt reporting of all transactions over a spec1f1ed amount, 

the performance of the investments 1s reviewed regularly with the 

Directors, 

the Directors are entitled to cancel the delegation arrangement at 

any time, 

the investment pohcy and the delegation arrangement are reviewed 

at least once a year, 

5 



5 1 18 

5 1 19 

51 20 

5 1 21 

5 1 22 

5 1 23 

51 24 

5 1 25 

5 1 26 

5 1 27 

51 28 

51 29 

51 30 

5 1 17 6 

51 17 7 

all payments due to the Financial Expert are on a scale or at a level 

which 1s agreed 1n advance and are reviewed at least once a year, 

and 

the Financial Expert must not do anything outside the powers of the 

Directors, 

to arrange for investments or other property of the Charity to be held in the name 

of a nominee (being a corporate body registered or having an established place 

of business in the United Kingdom) under the control of the Directors or of a 

F1nanc1al Expert acting under their 1nstruct1ons and to pay any reasonable fee 

required, 

to insure and arrange insurance cover of every kind and nature in respect of the 

Charity, its property and assets and take out other insurance pol1c1es to protect 

the Charity, its employees, volunteers or members as required, 

to provide indemnity insurance to cover the hab1l1ty of the Directors or any other 

officer of the Charity which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to 

them 1n respect of any negligence, default. breach of trust, or breach of duty of 

which he may be guilty 1n relation to the Charity 1n accordance with, and subject 

to the cond1t1ons in section 189 of the Charities Act, 

subject to the prov1s1ons of Article 6, to employ and pay any person or persons to 

supervise, organise, carry on the work of and advise the Charity, 

subject to the prov1s1ons of Article 6, to pay reasonable annual sums or 

premiums for or towards the prov1s1on of pensions for officers or employees for 

the time being of the Charity or their dependants, 

to enter into contracts to provide services to or on behalf of other bodies. 

to establish or acquire subs1d1ary companies. 

to publish or distribute information. 

to hold exh1b1t1ons, meetings, lectures, classes, seminars or courses either alone 

or with others, 

to foster and undertake research into any aspect of the Objects and its work and 

to disseminate and exchange the results of any such research, 

to act as trustee of any trust, 

to make any charitable donation either in cash or assets, 

to obtain any Act of Parhament or other order or authority or to promote, support 

or oppose leg1slat1ve or other measures or proceedings or to pet1t1on the Crown, 

Parliament or other pubhc persons or bodies in the United Kingdom in respect of 

any matter affecting the interests of the Charity, 
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5 1 31 

5 1 32 

to pay out of the funds of the Charity the costs. charges and expenses of and 

1nc1dental to the formation and reg1strat1on of the Charity as a company and as a 

charity, 

to do anything else which helps to promote the Objects 

APPLICATION, PAYMENT OR DISTRIBUTION OF THE CHARITY'S PROPERTY AND INCOME, 

LIMITED LIABILITY OF MEMBERS AND DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUS ASSETS 

6 Apphcat1on of income and property 

6 1 The income and property of the Charity shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the 
' 

Objects 

' 
' 6 2 None of the income or property of the Charity may be paid or transferred, directly or indirectly, 

by way of d1v1dend, bonus or otherwise by way of profit to Members of the Charity This does 

not prevent a Member who 1s not also a Director of the Charity receiving 

6 2 1 a benefit from the Charity in the capacity of a benef1c1ary of the Charity, 

6 2 2 reas?nable and proper remuneration for any goods or services rendered to the 

Charity, 

' 6 2 3 interest on money lent to the Charity at a reasonable and proper rate, 

6 2 4 reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let to the Charity, 

6 2 5 any premium m respect of insurance to cover any of the l1ab1l1t1es spec1f1ed 1n 

Article 5 1 

6 3 A Member who 1s also a Director may only receive a benefit, directly or indirectly, in 

accordance with Article 6 below 

6 4 A Director 

6 4 1 shall be entitled to be paid reasonable out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred 

when acting on behalf of the Charity, 

I 

6 4 2 may receive an indemnity from the Charity in accordance with Article 39, 
' 

6 4 3 may benefit from insurance cover, 1nclud1ng indemnity insurance, purchased at 
' the expense of the Charity in accordance with Article 5 1, 

subject thereto, and to Article 8, no Director may receive any payment or other material 

benefit, directly or indirectly, from the Charity unless 

6 4 4 the payment 1s expressly permitted in Articles 6 5 or 6 6 below and the cond1t1ons 

set o~t 1n Article 6 7 are followed, or 
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6 4 5 the Directors obtain the prior written approval of the Charity Comm1ss1on 

6 5 A Director may directly or indirectly 

6 5 1 receive a benefit in the capacity of a benef1c1ary of the Charity, 

6 5 2 receive fees, remuneration or other benefit or money's worth from the Charity, 

6 5 3 enter into a contract for the supply of goods or services (including goods supplied 

in connection with the prov1s1on of such services) to the Charity other than for 

acting as a Director, 

6 5 4 receive interest on money lent to the Charity at a reasonable and proper rate, 

6 5 5 receive reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let to the Charity 

6 6 Where the Director 1s connected to a company or partnership which may engage with the 

Charity 1n any of the action spec1f1ed in Article 6 5 above, such a 

6 6 1 company of which a Director 1s a member or an employee may receive fees, 

remuneration or other benefit in money or money's worth provided that the 

shares of the company are listed on a recognised stock exchange and the 

Director holds no more than 1 % of the issued share capital of that company, 

6 6 2 partnership of which a Director 1s a member or an employee may receive fees, 

remuneration or other benefit 1n money or money's worth, 

6 6 3 company of which a Director 1s a member or an employee may receive fees, 

remuneration or other benefit 1n money or money's worth, 1f 11 1s a private 

company 

6 7 No more than a minority of the Directors may be employed and remunerated by the Charity 

for acting as a Director 

6 8 The authority 1n Articles 6 5, 6 6 and 6 7 above 1s subiect to the following cond1tmns being 

sat1sf1ed 

6 8 1 the remuneration or other sums paid to or for the benefit of the Director do not 

exceed an amount which 1s reasonable in all the circumstances, 

6 8 2 prior to any payment being made to the Director or for his benefit (other than 1n 

his capacity as a benef1c1ary) an appropriate written contract 1s concluded 

between the Director (or relevant person) and the Charity containing the full 

details of his duties and obhgat1ons to the Charity the amount of remuneration 

payable to him and all other relevant terms and cond1t1ons and copies of all such 

contracts are retained by the Charity for inspection by any authorised person, 

6 8 3 the other Directors are sat1sf1ed that 11 1s 1n the interests of the Charity to contract 

with that Director (or relevant person) rather than with someone who 1s not a 

Director (or relevant person) In reaching that dec1s1on the Directors shall 

balance the advantage of contracting with the Director (or relevant person) 
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7 

7 1 

684 

685 

' ' 

against the disadvantages of doing so (including the loss of the Director's . ' 
services as a result of dealing with the Director's conflict of interests), 

a majority of the Directors then 1n office are not 1ri receipt of such payments, 

' the prov1s1ons of Article 7 below are observed in relation to any d1scuss1ons of the 

Directors concerning that Director"s interest, his remuneration or any variation of 

his remuneration. 

and, 1n this Article, where Article 6 5 applies 1n respect of:a Director indirectly, a relevant 
' ' person 1s a person (other than the Director) who proposes to enter into a contract with, lend 

i 
money to or demise or let premises to the Charity under Articles 6 5 2, 6 5 4 or 6 5 5 as the 

case may be 

I 
Conflicts of interests 

' I Whenever a Director has a personal interest (including but not limited to a personal financial 

interest or a duty of loyalty owed to another organisation or person) directly or indirectly 1n a 

matter to be discussed at a meeting of the Directors or a committee of the Directors or in any 
' ' transaction or arrangement with the Charity (whether proposed or already entered into), the 
' ' Director concerned shall 

7 1 1 declare the nature and extent of such interest at or before any discussion on the 
' item, 

7 1 2 withdraw from any d1scuss1on on the item save to the extent that he 1s 1nv1ted 

7 1 3 

7 1 4 

' ' expressly to contribute information and then; withdraw from the meeting 1f 

requested by the Chairman or a maJonty of the Directors then present (other that 

the Director with the personal interest), 

' ' not ~e counted 1n the quorum for the part of any meeting and any vote devoted to 

that item, and 

in any event withdraw during the vote and have n;o vote on the item 

7 2 Where a Director becomes aware of such a personal interest in relation to a matter arising 1n 
, I 

a resolution in writing circulated to the Directors, the Director concerned shall 
' 

7 2 1 as soon as possible declare the nature and extent of such interest to all the other 
' Directors, 

7 2 2 not be entitled to have their vote counted on the 1esolut1on in wnt1ng, and 

the resolution shall take effect accordingly provided that any Director who has already voted 

on the resolution may, on being not1f1ed of the personal inter~st, withdraw their vote 

' 7 3 Articles 7 1 2 to 7 1 4 and 7 2 shall not apply where the matter to be discussed 1s in respect of 
' a policy of insura.nce as authorised in the Articles 
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7 4 If a conflict of interests arises for a Director, which may but need not be because of a duty of 

loyalty owed to another organisation or person, and the conflict 1s not authorised by virtue of 

any other prov1s1on 1n the Articles, then, on the matter being proposed to the Directors, the 

unconfl1cted Directors may authorise the conflict of interests (the authorised conflict) subject 

to the cond1t1ons 1n Article 7 5 

7 5 A conflict of interests may only be authorised under Article 7 4 1f 

7 5 1 the unconfl1cted Directors consider 1t 1s in the interests of the Charity to do so in 

the circumstances applying, 

7 5 2 the procedures of Articles 7 1 and 7 2 (as the case may be) are followed 1n 

respect of the authorised confl 1ct, and 

7 5 3 the terms of Article 6 are complied with 1n respect of any direct or 1nd1rect benefit 

to the conflicted Director which may arise from the authorised conflict 

7 6 Where a conflict 1s authorised 1n accordance with Articles 7 4 and 7 5 above, the unconfl1cted 

Directors, as they consider appropriate 1n the interests of the Charity. may set out any 

express terms of the authorisation, which may, but need not, include authorising the conflicted 

Director 

7 6 1 to disclose information conf1dent1al to the Charity to a third party, or 

7 6 2 to refrain from taking any step reqwred to remove the conflict, 

and may impose cond1hons on the authorisation 

8 Charging article 

8 1 Notwithstanding any other prov1s1on of the Articles. any firm, company or organisation which 

possesses spec1al1st skills or knowledge required by the Charity for its proper administration 

may charge and be paid reasonable charges for work of that nature done by 1t 

notw1thstand1ng that one or more of the Directors of the Charity 1s a director or other senior 

officer, partner, member or employee of that firm. company or organisation and such charges 

may include charges in respect of work earned out by such Director 

9 L1m1ted hab1hty of Members 

9 1 The l1ab1l1ty of each Member 1s l1m1ted to £1, being the amount that such Member undertakes 

to contribute to the assets of the Charity 1n the event of the same being wound up while that 

Member 1s a Member, or w1th1n one year after that Member ceases to be a Member, for 

9 1 1 payment of the debts and llab11it1es of the Charity contracted before that Member 

ceases to be a Mem ber,and 

9 1 2 payment of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up 

10 



10 Surplus assets, 

10 1 If on the winding-up or d1ssolut1on of the Charity there remains, after the sat1sfact1on of all its 

debts and l1ab1l1t1es, any property whatever of the Charity (the Chanty's surplus assets), the 
I 

same shall not be paid to or distributed among the Members of the Charity, but shall be given 

or transferred in accordance with this Article 

10 2 The Members may at any time before, and in expectation of, its d1ssolut1on resolve that the 

Chanty's surplus assets shall on or before the d1ssolut1on of the Charity be applied or 

transferred in any of the following ways 

10 3 

10 2 1 

10 2 2 

10 2 3 

10 2 4 

10 2 5 

directly to The Prince's Trust 

directly for one of more of the Objects, 

to any one or more charities for purposes which are s1m1lar to the Objects, 

to any one or more charities for use for particular purposes falling w1th1n the 

Objects, or 

in such other manner consistent with charitable status as the Charity Comm1ss1on 

shall approve in writing 

I 
Subject to any such resolution of the Members, the Directors of the charity may at any time 
before and in expectation of its d1ssolut1on resolve that the Chanty's surplus assets shall on or 

before d1ssolut1on of the Charity be applied or transferred in any of the following ways 

10 3 1 

10 3 2 

10 3 3 

directly for one of more of the Objects, 

to any one or more charities for purposes which are s1m1lar to the Objects, or 

to any one or more charities for use for particular purposes falling within the 

Objects 

10 4 In the event of no resolution being passed by the Members or the Directors in accordance 
with this Article on the winding-up or d1ssolut1on of the Chahty, the Chanty's surplus assets 

shall be applied for charitable purposes as directed by the Court or the Charity Comm1ss1on 

10 5 

11 

11 1 

11 2 

' If the Charity 1s a trustee of any trusts at the time 1t 1s wound up or dissolved, the Charity shall 

procure the appointment of a new trustee or trustees of those trusts in the place of the 
Charity 

MEMBERSHIP 

Members 

On incorporation'. The Prince's Trust shall be the sole Member and shall remain as a Member 
for as long as The Prince's Trust wishes to be a Member 

I 
Membership of the Charity 1s open to any 1nd1v1dual who or organisation which 
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11 2 1 1s interested 1n promoting the Objects, and 

11 2 2 applies to the Charity m the form required by the Directors, and 

11 2 3 1s approved by The Prince's Trust m writing 

11 3 An appl1cat1on for membership must be made m writing to the Directors and no md1v1dual or 
organisation shall be admitted to membership of the Charity unless their appl1cat1on for 

membership has been approved by The Prince·s Trust The Prince's Trust may m its absolute 
d1scret1on. decline an appl1cat1on for membership and any such dec1s1on shall be Imai and no 

reason shall be required to be appended to the dec1s1on 

11 4 The Directors, or The Prince's Trust, by providing written notice to the Directors, may suspend 

membership of the Charity of any Member except for The Prince's Trust, 1n accordance with 

any rule or byelaws adopted m accordance with Article 40 below 

11 5 Membership 1s not transferable 

11 6 The Charity shall mamtam a register of Members and any person ceasing to be a Member 

shall be removed from the register 

12 Classes of membership 

12 1 With the prior written consent of The Prince's Trust, the Directors may establish different 

classes of membership and prescribe their respective privileges and duties and set the 
amounts of any subscriptions 

13 Termination of membership 

13 1 Membership 1s terminated 11 

13 1 1 

13 1 2 

13 1 3 

13 1 4 

the Member dies or, 111t 1s an orgarnsat1on, ceases to exist, 

11 the Member becomes incapable of managing their affairs, 

11 the Member gives notice of retirement 1n accordance with any rules established 
by the Charity m accordance with Article 40 below provided that after such 

retirement the number of Members 1s one or more, 

the Member (always excluding The Prince's Trust) 1s removed from membership 
by a resolution of the Directors that 11 1s 1n the best interests of the Charity that 
his or her membership 1s term mated Such a resolution may only be passed 11 

13 1 4 1 the Member has been given at least 14 clear days notice m writing 
of the meeting of the Directors at which the resolution will be 

proposed and the reasons for its proposal, and 
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14 

14 1 

15 

15 1 

15 2 

16 

16 1 

16 2 

16 3 

16 4 

13 1 4 2 

I 

the Member or, at the option of the Member, the Member's 

representative, who need not be a Member of the Charity, has been 

permitted to make representations to the meeting 

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

Annual General Meetings 

The Charity shall not be required to hold an annual general meeting 

General meetings 

The Directors may call general meetings of the Charity 

On the requ1s1t1on of Members pursuant to the Act the Directors shall forthwith proceed to 
• 

convene a general meeting in accordance with the prov1s1ons of the Act If there are not 
' ' within the United Kingdom sufficient Directors to call a general meeting, any Director or any 
I I 

Members repres.enting at least 5% of the voting rights in :the Charity may call a general 

meeting in accordance with the prov1s1ons of the Act 

Notice of general meetings 

General meetings shall be called by at least 14 clear days' n11t1ce 

A general meeting may be called by shorter notice 1f 1t 1s so agreed by a majority in number of 

the Members having a right to attend and vote at the meeting, being a majority together 

representing not less than 90% of the total voting rights at that meeting of all the Members 
' ' 

The notice shall specify the place, the day and the time of m:eeting, the general nature of the 

business to be transacted and a statement pursuant to the Act informing the Member of his 

' rights regarding proxies 

Subject to the p~ov1s1ons of the Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any classes of 

membership, notice of general meeting shall be given in any manner authorised by these 
' I Articles to 

16 4 1 
I I 

every Member except those Members who (having no registered address within 

the United Kingdom) have not supplied to the Charity an address within the 
' United Kingdom for the giving of notices to them, 

16 4 2 the auditor for the time being of the Charity, and 

16 4 3 each Director 

16 5 No person other than those spec1f1ed in Article 16 4 above shall be entitled to receive notice 
' of general meetings 

13 



16 6 The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a 

meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not 1nval1date the proceedings at that 
meeting 

16 7 A Member present at any meeting of the Charity either 1n person or by proxy shall be deemed 
to have received notice of the meeting and, where requ1s1te, of the purposes for which 1t was 
called 

17 Proxies 

17 1 A Member 1s entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of his rights 

to attend and to speak and vote at a meeting of the Charity 

17 2 Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a proxy notice) which 

17 2 1 

17 2 2 

17 2 3 

17 2 4 

states the name and address of the Member appointing the proxy. 

1dent1f1es the person appointed to be that Member's proxy and the general 
meeting in relation to which that person 1s appointed, 

1s signed by or on behalf of the Member appointing the proxy, or 1s authenticated 
1n such manner as the Directors may determine, and 

1s delivered to the Charity in accordance with the Articles and any instructions 

contained 1n the notice of the general meeting to which they relate 

17 3 The Charity may require proxy notices to be delivered 1n a particular form, and may specify 
different forms for different purposes In default of any other form of proxy notice being 

spec1f1ed, the following form may be used 

"[Name of Member] 

INVe, , of , being a member/members of the above-named 
company, hereby appoint of , or failing him, [ of ] 
[the Chairman of the meeting], as my/our proxy to vote in my/our name[s] and on 

my/our behalf at the general meeting of the company to be held on [date], and at 
any adjournment thereof 

Signed on [msert date]"] 

17 4 Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them 1s to vote (or that the proxy 1s 
to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions In default of any other form of proxy 
notice being spec1f1ed, the following form may be used for this purpose 

" [Name of Member] 

I/We, , of . being a member/members of the above-named 
company, hereby appoint of , or failing him [ of ] 
[the Chairman of the meeting], as my/our proxy to vote in my/our name[s] and on 

14 



my/our behalf at the [annual] general meeting of the company, to be held on 

[dat~]. and at any adjournment thereof 

This form 1s to be used in respect of the resolutions mentioned below as follows 
' 

Resolution No 1 *for *against [*vote withheld] [*d1scret1onary] 

Resolution No 2 *for *against [*vote withheld] [*d1scret1onary] 

*Strike out whichever 1s not desired 

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote as he thinks fit or abstain from 

voting 

Signed on [insert date]"] 

17 5 Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, 1t must be treated as 

17 5 1 

17 5 2 

allowing the person appointed under 1t as a proxy d1scret1on as to how to vote on 
' any ancillary or procedural resolullons put to the meeting, and 

' 
I 

app~1nting that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the general 

meeting to which 1! relates as well as the meeting itself 

I 
17 6 Proxy notices may 

I 

17 6 1 

17 6 2 

17 6 3 

1n the case of an instrument in writing be deposited at the office or at such other 
' I place within the United Kingdom as 1s spec1f1ed in the notice convening the 

mee!1ng or 1n any instrument of proxy sent out !by the Charity 1n relation to the 
meeting not less than 48 hours (not counting any part of a day that 1s not a 

, I 
working day) before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at 

I 
which the person named 1n the instrument propo~es to vote, or 

I 
1n the case of an appointment 1n electronic form, where an address has been . ' 
spec,1f1ed for the purpose of rece1v1ng documents

1
1n electronic form 

17 6 2 1 
I 

17 6 2 2 

17 6 2 3 

in the notice convening the meeting,. or 

in any instrument of proxy sent out by the Charity 1n relatmn to the 

meeting, or 

in any inv1tat1on 1n electronic form to appoint a proxy issued by the 
Charity 1n relation to the meeting, 

be received at such address not less than 48 hours before (not counting any part 
' I of a day that 1s not a working day) the time for holding the meeting or adiourned 

meeting at which the person named in the proxylnot1ce proposes to vote, 

I 
in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after 1t 1s demanded, be deposited 

or r~ce1ved as aforesaid after the poll has been Idem anded and not less than 24 
hours before (not counting any part of a day that 1s not a working day) the time 

appointed for the taking of the poll, or 
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17 6 4 in the case of a poll which 1s not taken forthwith but taken not more than 48 hours 
after 11 was demanded, be delivered at the meeting at which the poll was 

demanded to the chairman or to the Secretary or to any Director, 

and a proxy notice which 1s not deposited, delivered or received in a manner so permitted 

shall be invalid 

17 7 A person who 1s entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of hands or on a poll) at a 

general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of 11, even 
though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the Charity by or on behalf of that person 

17 8 An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the Charity a notice in 
writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the proxy notice was 

given 

17 9 A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect tf 11 1s delivered before the start of the 

meeting or adjourned meeting to which ti relates 

18 Representation of organisations at general meetings 

18 1 Where an organ1sat1on ts a Member of the Charity, 11 may authorise any person to act as tis 
representative at any meeting of the Charity Such a representative shall, subject to Article 

18 2, be entitled to exercise on behalf of the Member organisation the same powers as the 
organisation could exercise 1f 11 were an ind1v1dual member of the Charity 

18 2 Written notice of the representative's authority shall be given to the Charity, failing which the 
Charity shall not be required to accept the right of the representative to exercise the 
organisation's rights at meetings Any such notice given to the Charity shall be conclusive 

evidence that the representative 1s entitled to represent the organisat1on and that his or her 
authority has not been revoked The Charity shall not be required to consider whether the 

representative has been properly authorised by the organtsat1on 

18 3 The Charity shall be entitled to regard the representative as eligible to represent the Member 

organtsatton until written notice to the contrary ts received by the Charity 

19 Organisation at general meetings 

19 1 No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum 1s present 

19 2 If there 1s only one Member, a quorum for general meetings shall be one If there 1s more than 
one Member, the quorum for a general meeting shall also be one provided that the duly 
authorised representative of The Prince's Trust 1s present 

19 3 There shall be a chairman of every general meeting 

19 3 1 

19 3 2 

The chairman, 1f any, of the Directors shall chair every general meeting of the 
Charity 

In hts absence the vice-chairman, 1f any, of the Directors shall act as chairman 
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19 3 3 

19 3 4 

19 3 5 

If at any meeting neither the chairman nor the v1ce-cha1rman 1s present w1th1n ten 
' minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting and willing to act, 

the Directors present shall elect one of their number to chair the meeting 

If there 1s only one Director present and willing to act, he shall chair the meeting 

If at any meeting no Director 1s w1ll1ng to act as chairman or 1f no Director 1s 
present within ten minutes after the time appointed for the holding of the meeting, 

the Members present shall choose one of their nymber to chair the meeting 

19 4 If within thirty minutes from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum 1s not present, or 1f 
' 

during a meeting a quorum ceases to be present. the meeting 

19 4 1 

19 4 2 

' 
1f convened on the requ1s1t1on of Members, shall be dissolved, 

in any other case, shall be adjourned to the same day 1n the next week, at the 
same time and place. or to such other day and at such other time and place as 

the Directors may determine 

19 5 In relation to adjournment of meetings 

20 

20 1 

20 2 

20 3 

19 5 1 

19 5 2 

19 5 3 

the ~ha1rman may, with the consent of any meet!ng at which a quorum 1s present 

(and shall 1f so directed by the meeting), adjourn the meeting from time to time 
and from place to place, but no business shall ,be transacted at any adjourned 

meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the 

adjournment took place, 

when a meeting 1s adjourned for fourteen days 6r more, the Charity shall give at 
leas~ seven clear days' notice of 1t to the same persons to whom notice of the 
Chanty's general meetings 1s required to be given, and containing the same 

information which such notice 1s required to contain, 

otherwise 1t shall not be necessary to give any nbt1ce of an adjournment or of the 

business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting 

DECISIONS OF MEMBERS 

I 
Voting at general meetings 

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless 
' ' before, or on the declaration of the result of, the show of hands a poll 1s duly demanded 

I 

Unless a poll 1s duly demanded, a declaration by the chairman and an entry to that effect in 
the minutes of proceedings of the Charity that a resolution' has on a show of hands been 

' earned or earned unanimously. or by a particular majon)y, or lost, shall be conclusive 
evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded 1n favour 

of or against such resolution 

I 
A poll on a resolution may be demanded 
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20 31 

20 3 2 

in advance of the general meeting where 11 1s to be put to the vote, or 

at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution or 

1mmed1ately after the result of a show of hands on that resolution 1s declared 

20 4 A poll may be demanded by 

20 4 1 

20 4 2 

20 4 3 

20 4 4 

the chairman of the meeting, 

the Directors, 

two or more persons having the right to vote on the resolution, or 

a person or persons representing not less than one tenth of the total voting rights 

of all the Members having the right to vote on the resolution 

20 5 A demand for a poll may be withdrawn 1f 

20 5 1 the poll has not yet been taken, and 

20 5 2 the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal 

20 6 A poll demanded on the election of a person to chair a meeting or on a question of 

adjournment must be taken 1mmed1ately A poll demanded on any other question must be 

taken either 1mmed1ately or at such time and place as the chairman of the meeting directs. 

save that 11 must be taken w1th1n thirty days after 1t was demanded 

20 7 If the poll 1s not taken 1mmed1ately, at least seven clear days' notice shall be given specifying 

the time and place at which the poll 1s to be taken 

20 8 The poll shall be taken 1n such manner as the chairman of the meeting directs 

20 9 The chairman of the meeting may fix a time and place for declaring the results of the poll 

The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the end of the meeting at which the poll was 

demanded, save where there are other polls still to be taken 1n respect of the same meeting 

20 1 O If a poll 1s demanded the meeting may continue to deal with any other business that may be 

conducted at the meeting 

21 Votes of members 

21 1 Every Member. whether an 1nd1v1dual or orgarnsat1on, shall have one vote 

21 2 On a vote on a resolution on a show of hands at a meeting 

21 2 1 every proxy present who has been duly appointed by one or more members 

entitled to vote on the resolution has one vote, save that a proxy has one vote for 

and one vote against the resolution 1f 

(a) the proxy has been duly appointed by more than one member entitled to 

vote on the resolution, and 
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21 2 2 

(b) the proxy has been instructed by one or more members to vote for the 

resolution and by one or more other of those members to vote against 1t 

each person authorised and eligible to vote in accordance with Article 18 has the 

same voting rights as the Member organisation which 11 represents, save that 
' 

(a) 1f more than one person has been authorised in respect of a vote by the 
same Member organisation, and 

(b) those authorised persons do not vote on the resolution 1n the same way 
as each other, 

then, they shall be treated as not having voted on the resolution 

' 21 3 No ob1ect1on shall be raised to the qual1f1cat1on of any voter except at the meeting or 

adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to 1s tendered, and every vote not disallowed at 
the meeting shall be valid Any ob1ect1on made 1n due time shall be referred to the chairman 
whose dec1s1on shall be final and conclusive 

22 Written resolutions 

22 1 Any resolution ~f the Members may be proposed and passed as a written resolution in 
accordance with the Act 

DIRECTORS 

23 Directors 

23 1 Unless otherwise determined by Ordinary Resolution the maximum number of Directors shall 

be eight and the rrnnimum number of Directors shall be two 

23 2 The first Director's shall be those persons not1f1ed to Companies House as the first Directors 

of the Charity 

23 3 The Directors shall include the following 

23 3 1 the chief executive of The Prince's Trust, 

23 3 2 no more than three 1nd1v1duals appointed by The, Prince's Trust, 

24 Appointment of Directors 

24 1 Any person who 1s willing to act as a Director, and 1s permitted by law to do so, may be 

appointed to be a Director 

24 1 1 by The Prince's Trust making a written not1f1cat1on to the Charity, 

241 2 by Ordinary Resolution, or 
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24 1 3 at a meeting of Directors by a simple maiority of all the Directors entitled to attend 

and vote at that meeting 

24 2 No appointment of a Director may be made which would cause the number of Directors to 

exceed any number fixed as the maximum number of Directors 

24 3 Subiect to Articles 25 and 26 a Director shall hold office until his retirement in accordance with 

Article 27 

25 Removal of Directors 

25 1 The Prince's Trust may remove a Director by serving written notice on the Charity confirming 

that 11 1s terminating the appointment 

25 2 The Charity may by Ordinary Resolution of which special notice has been given by the 

Charity in accordance with the Act remove any Director before the expiration of his period of 

office notw1thstand1ng anything in these Articles or in any agreement between the Charity and 

such Director 

26 D1squahficat1on or vacation of office of Directors 

26 1 The office of Director shall be vacated 1f 

26 1 1 

26 1 2 

261 3 

261 4 

26 1 5 

26 1 6 

261 7 

the Director ceases to be a Director by virtue of any prov1s1on of the Act or 

becomes proh1b1ted by law from being a Director, 

the Director 1s d1squal1f1ed from acting as a charity trustee by virtue of Sections 

178 to 182 of the Charities Act, 

the Director becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or compos1t1on with 

his creditors generally, 

a registered medical pract1t1oner who 1s treating the Director gives a written 

opinion to the Charity stating that the Director has become physically or mentally 

incapable of acting as a director and may remain so for more than three months, 

by reason of the Director's mental health, a court makes an order which wholly or 

partly prevents the Director from personally exercising any powers or rights 

which he would otherwise have, 

the Director resigns his office by written notice to the Charity provided at least 

two Directors remain 1n office after the res1gnat1on takes effect, 

the Director 1s directly or indirectly interested in any contract with the Charity and 

fails to declare the nature of his interest as required by the Act or the Articles, 
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26 1 8 

261 9 

26 1 10 

26 1 11 

26 1 12 

26 1 13 

1f th~ Charity shall be considered to be a children's charity under section 36 of 

the Criminal Justice and Court Services Act 2000 or paragraph 4 of schedule 4 

to the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 or any statutory re-enactment 
I ' 

or n;od1f1cation of those prov1s1ons the Director: 1s or becomes d1squal1f1ed from 

wor~ing with children or 1s or becomes d1squallf1ed from acting as a trustee of a 
children's charity. 

' 1f the Charity shall be considered a vulnerable adults' charity in accordance with 
I 

paragraph 8 of schedule 4 to the Safeguarding· Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 or 
' ' any 
1
statutory re-enactment or mod1f1cat1on of that prov1s1on the Director 1s or 

becomes d1squal1f1ed from working with vulnerable people or 1s or becomes 

d1squal1f1ed from acting as a trustee of a vulnerable adults' charity, 

the p1rector 1s deemed by HM Revenue & Customs not to be a fit and proper 

person to be a manager of the Charity and the Directors resolve that his office be 

vacated, 

the Director fails to agree to a reasonable request by the Directors that the 
I ' 

Director signs a declaration that they are a fit and proper person to act as such 
I 

and the Directors resolve that his office be vacated, 

I 
the Director holds office as a result of holding an appointment at The Prince's 

' Trus,t and ceases to hold such an appointment, unless otherwise agreed in 

advance by The Prince's Trust and such an action does not result in the l1m1t on 
I 

the maximum number of Directors being breached, or 

the Director fails to agree to a reasonable request by the Directors for a Criminal 
I I 

Records Bureau check (or equivalent) to be undertaken 1n respect of them 

I 
26 2 Where the office of Director has been vacated as a result of one of the reasons spec1f1ed 1n . ' 

Article 26 1 above and such a Director holds office as the result of being appointed by The 
' Prince's Trust, 1t may appoint a replacement 
' 

27 Retirement of Directors 
' 

' 27 1 The Directors who are Directors apprnnted by virtue of holding an appointment or office at 
' The Prince's Trust are not required to retire by rotation 

27 2 A Director elected by the Directors or appointed by The Prince's Trust shall be appointed for 

a term of three (3) years at the end of which they shall retire 

' 27 3 Subject to Article 27 1 above, a Director shall hold office from the date spec1f1ed 1n any 
' resolution of appointment or the end of the meeting at which they were appointed, 1f no date 1s 

spec1f1ed, until th~ end of the first meeting of the Directors following the third anniversary of 
' 

their appointment 

27 4 A Director 

27 4 1 appointed by The Prince's Trust shall be permitted to stand for re-appointment 

by The Prince's Trust for a further two three yea1r terms and, 1f re-appointed, the 

21 

·= 



27 4 2 

Director's second term shall end at the end of the first meeting of the Directors 
following the sixth anniversary of his appointment If re-appointed for a third term. 

the Director's third term shall end at the end of the first meeting of the Directors 

following the ninth anniversary of his appointment. 

elected by the Directors shall be permitted to stand for re-election by the 

Directors for a further two three year terms and. 1f re-elected, the Director's 

second term shall end at the end of the first meeting of the Directors following 

the sixth anniversary of his appointment If re-elected for a third term, the 
Director's third term shall end at the end of the first meeting of the Directors 

following the ninth anniversary of his appointment 

27 5 No person appointed by The Prince's Trust or elected by the Directors may serve as a 
Director of the Charity for more than nine years without a break of at least one calendar year 

between the end of their ninth year and the start of any add1t1onal term, save that in 
exceptional circumstances, a Director due to retire at the end of their ninth year of service 

may be asked to remain on the Board In such circumstances, another Director will not be 
asked to retire 1n place of the Director asked to remain on the Board The Director remaining 

on the Board due to the exceptional circumstances shall leave the Board when the 

exceptional circumstances end 

28 Powers and duties of the Directors 

28 1 Subject to the prov1s1ons of the Act and the Articles and to any d1rect1ons given by Special 
Resolution, the business of the Charity shall be managed by the Directors who may exercise 

all the powers of the Charity 

28 2 No alteration of the Articles and no d1rect1on given by Special Resolution shall invalidate 

anything which the Directors have done before the making of the alteration or the passing of 

the resolution 

28 3 A meellng of the Directors at which a quorum 1s present may exercise all powers exercisable 

by the Directors 

29 Proceedmgs and decisions of the Directors 

29 1 Subject to the prov1s1ons of the Articles, the Directors may regulate their proceedings as they 
think fit 

29 2 The Directors shall meet at least four times a year 

29 3 A meeting of the Directors 

29 31 may be called by any Director, and 

29 3 2 shall, at the request of a Director, be called by the Secretary (1f any) 

29 4 Notice of any meeting of the Directors must indicate 
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29 41 

294 2 

29 4 3 

its proposed date, time and subject matter. 

where 1t 1s to take place, and 

1f 1t 1s ant1c1pated that Directors part1c1pating 1n the meeting will not be in the same 

place, how 1t 1s proposed that they should com~unicate with each other during 

the meeting 

29 5 In fixing the date and time of any meeting of the Directors, the Director calling 1t shall try to 

ensure, subject to the urgency of any matter to be decided by the Directors, that as many 
I 

Directors as practicable are likely to be available to part1c1pate 1n 1t 

' 29 6 Notice of a meeting of the Directors must be given to each Director, but need not be in writing 

I 
29 7 Notice of a meeting of the Directors need not be given to Directors who waive their 

' ' entitlement to notice of that meeting, which they may do by giving notice to that effect to the 
' ' Charity seven days before or after the date on which the meeting 1s held Where such notice 

1s given after the 'meeting has been held, that does not affect the val1d1ty of the meeting, or of 

any business conducted at 1t 

29 8 Directors are to be treated as having waived their entitlement to notice of a meeting 1f they 

have not supplied the Charity with the information necessary to ensure that they receive the 
notice before the 'meeting takes place 

29 9 Any Director may part1c1pate in a meeting of the Directors lby means of video conference, 

telephone or any suitable electronic means agreed by the Directors whereby all persons 

part1c1pating in the meeting can communicate with all the otHer part1c1pants and part1c1pat1on 
I 

1n such a meeting shall constitute presence in person at that meeting 

29 10 In relation to the quorum for a meeting of the Directors 

29 10 1 

2910 2 

2910 3 

29 10 4 

I 
no dec1s1on other than a dec1s1on to call a meet1rg of the Directors or a general 
meet!ng shall be taken by the Directors unless a quorum part1c1pates 1n the 

dec1s1on-making process, 

I 
the quorum for dec1s1on-mak1ng by the Directors may be fixed from time to time 

I 
by a dec1s1on of the Directors, in the absence of such dec1s1on 1t shall be three, 

' 
1f the total number of Directors for the time being is less than the quorum required 

' for dec1s1on-mak1ng by the Directors, the Directors shall not take any dec1s1on 
other than a dec1s1on 

29 10 3 1 to appoint further Directors, or 

29 10 3 2 to call a general meeting so as to enable the Members to appomt 
further Directors, 

a Director shall not be counted 1n the quorum pre~ent at a meeting 1n relation to a 
resolution on which he 1s not entitled to vote 

29 11 Questions arising at a meeting shall be decided by a maionty of votes 
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29 12 Chairman 

2912 1 

2912 2 

29 12 3 

2912 4 

The Prince's Trust shall from time to time appoint a chairman from among the 

Directors 

The Directors may from time to time elect a v1ce-cha1rman from among their 

number and shall determine the period for which he 1s to hold office, and 
providing he remains el1g1ble to be a Director, he shall be eligible for re-election 

If at any meeting neither the chairman nor the v1ce-cha1rman 1s present within ten 
minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, or 1f there 1s no chairman 
or vice-chairman, the Directors present shall choose one of their number to chair 

the meeting 

In the case of an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a second or casting 
vote But this does not apply 1f, in accordance with the Articles, the chairman 1s 

not to be counted as part1c1pating in the dec1s1on-making process for quorum, 
voting or agreement purposes No Director 1n any other circumstances shall have 

more than one vote 

29 13 All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of a committee, or by any person acting as a 

Director, shall, notwithstanding that 1t be afterwards discovered that 

29 13 1 

2913 2 

2913 3 

there was some defect m the apprnntment of any such Director or person acting 

as a Director, or 

they or any of them were d1squalif1ed, or 

they or any of them were not entitled to vote on the matter, 

be as valid as 1f every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a 

Director 

29 14 A resolution in writing, signed by all the Directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the 
Directors and to vote upon the resolution shall be as valid and effectual as 1f 1t had been 

passed at a meeting of the Directors duly convened and held and may consist of several 
documents 1n like form each signed by one or more Directors 

29 15 Subject to the Articles, the Directors may make any rules which they think fit about how they 

take dec1s1ons, and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to the 
Directors 

30 Delegation by the Directors 

30 1 The Directors may delegate any of their powers to any committee consisting of two or more 
Directors (including the chairman under Article 30 3) and may appoint 1nd1v1duals who are not 

Directors to such a committee 

30 2 The Directors shall determine the terms of any delegation to such a committee and may 
impose cond1t1ons, including that 
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30 2 1 

30 2 2 

the ~elevant powers are to be exercised exclusively by the committee to whom 

the Directors delegate, 
i 
; 

no expenditure may be incurred on behalf of the Charity except in accordance 
I 

with a budget, or other limits, previously agreed with the Directors 

30 3 Sub1ect to and in default of any other terms imposed by the Directors 

30 4 

30 5 

30 6 

31 

31 1 

30 3 1 

30 3 2 

30 3 3 

30 3 4 

30 3 5 

I 
the chairman shall be an ex-officio member of every committee appointed by the 

Directors, 

I 
and in add1t1on to the Directors power to appoint members of the committee, the 

, I 
members of the committee may, with the approval of the Directors, appoint such 

I I 
persons, not being Directors. as they think fit to b~ members of that committee, 

' ' 
I , 

1f at any meeting the chairman 1s not present w1th1n ten minutes after the time 
' I 

appointed for holding the same, the Directors present may choose one of the 
' committee members to chair the meeting, 

a committee may meet and adjourn as 1t thinks p(oper, 
' 

questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a maiority of votes of the 

committee members present, and 

I 
30 3 6 in th~ case of an equality of votes the cha1rmaQ of the committee shall have a 

second or casting vote, 

I , 
and sub1ect thereto committees to which the Directors delegate any of their powers shall 

I I 
follow procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those prov1s1ons of the 

' Articles which govern the taking of decisions by the Directors 
' 

I 
The terms of any delegation to a committee shall be recorded in the minute book 

The Directors may revoke or alter a delegation 

I 
All acts and proceedings of committees shall be reported to the Directors fully and promptly 

Delegation of day to day management 

' . 
The Directors may delegate day to day management and admin1strat1on of the Charity to one 

or more managers, or one of their own number 

31 2 In respect of each manager the Directors shall 

31 2 1 prov1~e a description of the manager's role, and 

3122 set the limits of the manager's authority 

31 3 The managers sh~ll report regularly and promptly to the Directors on the acllv1lles undertaken 

1n accordance with their role 
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HONORARY POSITIONS 

32 Honorary positions 

32 1 The Directors may appoint and remove any ind1v1dual(s) as patron(s), presidents, v1ce­

pres1dents, honorary secretary, treasurer or other officer of the Charity (and whether or not a 

director of the Charity) on such terms. subject to the Articles, as they shall think fit 

32 2 The terms of appointment for any honorary pos1t1on spec1f1ed 1n Article 32 1 above shall be 

decided by the Trustees and passed as a byelaw in accordance with Article 40 

SECRETARY, MINUTES AND SEAL 

33 Secretary 

33 1 Subject to the prov1s1ons of the Act, any Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors for 

such term at such remuneration and on such cond1t1ons as the Directors may think fit Any 

Secretary so appointed by the Directors may be removed by them 

33 2 A Secretary who 1s also a Director may not be remunerated save as permitted in accordance 

with the Articles 

34 Minutes 

34 1 The Directors shall ensure that the Charity keeps records. in writing, comprising 

34 1 1 

341 2 

34 1 3 

341 4 

35 The Seal 

minutes of all proceedings at general meetings, 

copies of all resolutions of Members passed otherwise than at general meetings, 

details of appointments of officers made by the Directors, and 

minutes of meetings of the Directors and committees of the Directors, including 

the names of the Directors present at the meeting 

35 1 The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal (1f any), which shall be used only 

by the authority of the Directors or of a committee authorised by the Directors on its behalf 

The Directors may determine who shall sign any instrument to which the Seal 1s affixed and 

unless otherwise so determined 11 shall be signed by at least one authorised person 1n the 

presence of a witness who attests the signature 

35 2 For the purposes of this Article, an authorised person 1s 

35 2 1 any Director, 

35 2 2 the Secretary (1f any), or 
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35 2 3 any person authorised by the Directors for the purpose of signing documents to 

which the Seal 1s applied 

ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT 

36 Accounts 

36 1 The Directors shall comply with the requirements of the ~ct and of the Charities Act for 
I 

36 2 

36 3 

keeping financial records, the audit or other scrutiny of accounts (as required) and the 

preparation and t~ansm1ss1on to the Registrar of Companies ~nd the Charity Comm1ss1on, as 

the case may be,iof 

36 1 1 annual reports, 

36 1 2 annual returns. and 

36 1 3 annual statements of account 

Accounting records relating to the Charity shall be made available for inspection by any 

Director and The Prince's Trust at any reasonable time dunng1 normal office hours 

I . 
The Directors shall supply a copy of the Chanty's latest available statement of account to any 

' ' Director or Member on request, and within two months of the request to any other person who 

makes a written I request and pays the Chanty's reasonable costs of complying with the 

request 

37 Audit 

37 1 Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated as required in accordance with the Act 

and the Chant1es Act 

COMMUNICATION 

' 38 Means of commumcat1on 
I 

38 1 Sub1ect to the Articles, the Charity may deliver a notice or other document to a Member 

38 1 1 
I 

by de!1venng 11 by hand to an address as provided in accordance with paragraph 

4 of schedule 5 to the Act, 

381 2 ' by sending 11 by post or other delivery service 1n an envelope (with postage or 
' I dellve,ry paid) to an address as provided 1n accordance with paragraph 4 of 

schedule 5 to the Act, 

381 3 by fax to a fax number notified by the Member 1n >yriting, 

381 4 1n eleCtronic form to an address not1f1ed by the Member in writing, 
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381 5 by a website, the address of which shall be not1f1ed to the Member in writing, or 

381 6 by advertisement in at least two national newspapers 

38 2 This Article does not affect any prov1s1on in any relevant leg1slat1on or the Articles requiring 
notices or documents to be delivered in a particular way 

38 3 If a notice or document 

38 3 1 

38 3 2 

38 3 3 

38 3 4 

38 3 5 

1s delivered by hand, 1t 1s treated as being delivered at the time 11 1s handed to or 
left for the Member, 

1s sent by post or other delivery service 1n accordance with Article 38 1 2 above 11 

1s treated as being delivered 

38 3 21 

38 3 2 2 

24 hours after 1t was posted, 1f first class post was used, or 

48 hours after 1t was posted or given to delivery agents. 1f first class 

post was not used, 

provided 1t can be proved conclusively that a notice or document was delivered 
by post or other delivery service by showing that the envelope containing the 

notice or document was 

38 3 2 3 

38 3 2 4 

properly addressed, and 

put into the postal system or given to delivery agents with postage 

or delivery paid 

1s sent by fax. providing that the Charity can show that 1t was sent to the fax 

number provided by the Member, 1t 1s treated as being delivered at the lime 11 was 
sent 

1s sent 1n electronic form. prov1d1ng that the Charity can show that 11 was sent to 
the electronic address provided by the Member, 1t 1s treated as being delivered at 

the time 1t was sent 

1s sent by a website. 11 1s treated as being delivered when the material was first 
made available on the website, or 1f later, when the rec1p1ent received (or 1s 
deemed to have received) notice of the fact that the material was available on the 

website 

38 4 If a notice 1s given by advertisement, 11 1s treated as being delivered at midday on the day 
when the last advertisement appears in the newspapers 

INDEMNITY 
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39 Indemnity 

39 1 Subject to the prov1s1ons of the Act, but without pre1ud1ce to any rndemnrty to which the 

person concerned may otherwise be entitled, every Drrector or other offrcer of the Charrty 
' ' (other than any person (whether an offrcer or not) engaged by the Charrty as audrtor) shall be 

rndemnrfred out 
1
of the assets of the Charrty agarnst ariy lrabrlrty rncurred by hrm for 

negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust rn relatron to the affairs of the Charrty, 

provrded that thrs Artrcle shall be deemed not to provrde for, or entrtle any such person to, 

rndemnrfrcatron to the extent that rt would cause !hrs Artrcle, or any element of rt, to be treated 

as vord under the Act 

RULES AND BYELAWS 

40 Rules or byelaws 

40 1 The Drrectors may from trme to trme make such rules or byelaws as rt may deem necessary 
• or convenrent for the proper conduct and management of the Charrty or for the purpose of 

prescrrbrng classes and condrtrons of membership of erther the Charrty or any group 

establrshed to support the Charrty In partrcular but wrthout pre1udrce to the generalrty of the 

above, they may by such rules or byelaws regulate 

40 1 1 

40 1 2 

40 1 3 

I 

the c?nduct of Members rn relatron to one another and to the Charrty's employees 

and volunteers, 
' 

the settrng asrde of the whole or any part or parts.of the Chanty's premises at any 

partrcular trme or times or for any particular purpose or purposes. and 

the procedure at general meetrngs and meetrngs of the Directors and committees 

rn so far as such procedure rs not regulated by these Articles 
' 

40 2 The Charrty 1n general meetrng shall have power by Specral Resolution to alter or repeal the 

rules or byelaws and to make addrt1ons to them 

40 3 The Directors shall adopt such means as they deem sufflcrent to brrng to the notrce of 

Members of the Charrty all such rules or byelaws which, so! long as they shall be rn force, 

shall be b1ndrng on all Members of the Charity provided nev'!lrtheless that no rule or byelaw 

shall be rncons1stent with, or shall affect or repeal anythrng contarned 1n the Artrcles 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Trust~s 

The trustees of the charity in office during the period and up to the date of signing the financial statements 
were: 

Chief Executive 

Secretary 

Company number 

Charity number 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Lloyd Dorfman CBE 
Martina Milburn CBE 
Sarah Haidry 
Amy Stirling 

Alastair Da Costa 

Sarah Haidry 

9090276 

1159815 

Date of 
Appointment 

01/07/2014. 
08/12/2014 
17/06/2014 
17/06/2014 
17/06/2014 

Governing 
Instrument Memorandum and Articles of Association 

Registered office Prince's Trust House 
9 Eldon Street 
London 
EC2M 7LS 

Independent Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
1 Embankment Place 
London WC2N 6RH 

Bankers National Westminster Bank pie 
3rd Floor 
280 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M4RB 

Solicitors Reed Smith 
The Broadgate Tower 
20 Primrose Street 
London EC2A 2RS 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the period since incorporation 
on the 17 June 2014 until 31 March 2015. · · 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2005 and 
Charities Act 2011 in preparing the Annual report & financial statements. The administration 
information on page 1 forms part of this report. 

Structure, governance and management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Memorandum and Articles of Association. 
This forms the governing document and, together with the Bye-laws and documented approval 
documents (a set of documents that sets out Prince's Trust lnternational's governance structure anq 
continues to evolve in line with growth), are the documents that govern Prince's Trust lnternational's 
administration. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 
Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Bye-laws and are collectively known as the Board. In 
order to ensure that strategy and operational activity is aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent company) 
the Prince's Trust International Board comprises a minimum of three members of The Prince's Trust 
Board. On joining the organisation, new trustees receive an induction which covers the values and 
purpose of Prince's Trust International and includes strategy, fundraising, programmes, operations and 
governance. 

Organisational Structure 
The Prince's Trust International Board is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The 
matters reserved for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget 
and business plan and the Annual Report a.nd Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International 
Board also retains oversight of management controls and corporate governance, along with the 
appointment of trustees and the Chief Executive. · 

The Prince's Trust International Board is seeking to appoint an Advisory Board composed of senior 
volunteers, whose role will be to provide fundraising support and strategic and operational guidance. 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Chief Executive for the day to 
day management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with 
the provision of administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. The intention is for 
a management services agreement to be in place to govern the provision and payment for services 
from The Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International and there will be a licence agreement in place 
to govern the licensing of The Prince's Trust know how and intellectual property for use by Prince's 
Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

Objectives and activities 
The Charity was incorporated as a company on 17 June 2014 and this first period of operation has 
been focused on setting up of the charity operations and structure. Charitable status was awarded on 
6 January 2015. 

The charity's objects are restricted to purposes which are charitable in accordance with the laws of 
England and Wares, and specifteally to promoting mental, spiritual, moral and physical development and 
improvement of young people and providing opportunities for them to develop their full capabilities and 
enabling them to become responsible members of society so that their conditions of life may be 
improved throughout the world. 
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t 
PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 4 of Charities Act 2011) The 
Trust achieves this by: 

• providing facilities for young people for recreation or other leisure time occupation in the 
interests of social welfare. 

• advancing the education of young people by the provision of, encouragement and promotion 
of education, instruction or training in professions, vocations, industries, crafts, trades or the 
skills needed in employment, relieving poverty amongst young people through the provision of 
assistance (including financial assistance) 

• provide encouragement whilst their education is being advanced , while they are in the 
process of establishing new businesses or preparing for entering upon or engaging in a 
profession, trade, craft or service 

• arranging periods of voluntary work in the community for the benefit of the public encouraging 
and assisting young people in their understanding of and practical action in support of the 
natural and built environment. 

• promoting and conducting research into social conditions affecting young people and the 
mental, spiritual, moral and physical needs of young people and to publish the useful results 
of such research. 

• supporting such charity or charities or such charitable purpose or purposes as the members 
shall in their absolute discretion think fit. 

Achievements and performance 
Review of the business and future developments 

Prince's Trust International had incoming resources over 8 months of activity of £70,000 and 
expenditure of £59,814. The surplus will be retained in Prince's Trust International for investment 
next year. 

The key achievements during 2014/15 were to complete the process of consultation and preparation 
of a strategy and budget for Prince's Trust International, The charity has also started to discuss with 
overseas governments, nongovernmental organisations and other stakeholders potential activity to 
help young people, and to agree aims and operational framework for pilot projects to be delivered in 
2015/16 in Jordan and Malta in particular. 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and 
Administration section on page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the period. 

Qualifying indemnity provision 

There is in force and was during the financial period, and at the date of approval of the financial 
statements a qualifying indemnity provision under section 234 Companies Act 2006 for the benefit of 
all of the Trustees. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees will review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between 
four to six months of operational expenditure. In the current financial period the charity has not met 
its target regarding unrestricted reserves. The Intention is for the administrative costs, causing the 
deficit, to be funded through the generation of Mure unrestricted income. The charitable company do 
not intend to finance unrestricted activities from restricted funds. 

Risk Management 

The Prince's Trust international Council considers that it is operating a reasonable system of risk 
management The major risks, to which the charity is exposed, as identified by the trustees, have been 
reviewed and there are systems and procedures established to manage those risks. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES'REPORT(Continued) 

Public benefit 

In reviewing the aims, objectives and planning future activities of the charity, the Trustees have taken 
into account the Charity Commission guidance on public benefit in section 17 of the Charities Act 2011. · 

The Trustees always ensure that the activities undertaken are in line with the charitable objectives and 
aims of the charity. 

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities 

The trustees are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and 
of its incoming resources and application of resources of the group for that period. 

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charitable company will continue in business 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show 
and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each 
of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the 
Trustees is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors 
are unaware and each of the Trustees has taken all steps that ought to have been taken to make 
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's 
auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies 
within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006. 

On behalf of the board on 21 July 2015 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Chairman 

• 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Report on the financial statements 

Our opinion 
In our opinion Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements, defined below: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2015 
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure for the period then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report 

What we have audited 
The financial statements, which are prepared by Prince's Trust International, comprise: 

• the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015; 

• the statement of financial activities including the summary income and expenditure account 
for the period then ended; and 

• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the trustees have made a number of subjective 
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In ·making such estimates, they 
have made assumptions and considered future events. 

What an audit of financial statements involves 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs 
(UK & Ireland)"). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to· give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charitable company's circumstances 
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements ("the Annual Accounts") to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial 
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of perfonning the audit If we become 
aware of any apparent material misstatements or ·inconsisten~ we consi~er ~e implicati9ns for our 
report. . · •· , 
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report. for the financial period for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL (Continued) 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
Under th~ Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Trustees' remuneration 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of 
Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this 
responsibility. 

Entitlement to exemptions 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the trustees were not 
entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Trustees' Report and take 
advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report We have no exceptions 
to report arising from this responsibility. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 
Our responsibilities and those of the trustees 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 5, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members and 
trustees as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other 
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to 
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly 
agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

, 
Uz,t)o.) 

· estwood (Senior Statutory Auditor) . 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 21 j..,~ t.0t5' 

7 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVJTIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE PERIOD SINCE INCORPORATION ON 17 JUNE 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Incoming Resources 
Incoming Resources from 
Generated Funds 
Voluntary Income 

Resources Expended 
Cost of Generating Voluntary 
Income· 
Charitable Activities 

Governance Costs 

Total Resources Expended 

Net (outgoing)/incoming 
resources 

Fund Balances Carried Forward 
31 March 

2 

3 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

£ 

40,000 

15,814 

40,000 

55,814 

4,000 

59,814 

(19,814) 

(19,814) 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

30,000 

30,000 

30,000 

Total 
17June14 

to 
31March15 

£ 

70,000 

15,814 

40,000 

55,814 

4,000 

59,814 

10,186 

10, 186 

The Statement of Financial Activities has been prepared in the current period on the basis that all 
operations are continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the statement of . 
financial activities and therefore no separate statement of total recognised gains and losses has been 
presented. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained 
results for the period stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

The notes on pages 10 to12 form part of these financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015 

Current assets 
Cash at bank and in hand 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 
Unrestricted income funds 
Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

The notes on pages 10 to12 form part of these financial statements. 

Note 

8 

5 
5 

2015 

£ 

19,113 

(8,927) 

10,186 

10,186 

(19,814) 
30,000 

10,186 

The financial statements on pages 8 to 12 were approved by the Board on 21 July 2015 and signed 
its behalf by: 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Chairman 

Company registration no. 9090276 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Accounting policies 

1.1 Accounting convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. 

1.2 Compliance with accounting standards 
These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost 
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting 
standards in the United Kingdom .. The principal accounting policies, which have been applied 
consistently, are set out below. The charitable company is exempt under FRS1 from the 
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as the ultimate controlling parent charity, The 
Prince's Trust, prepares consolidated financial statements, which incorporates Prince's Trust . 
International figures. Copies may be obtained from The Prince's Trust registered office at 
Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M 7LS. 

1.3 Incoming Resources 
Donations are accounted for in the period of receipt. All income is shown gross of related 
expenditure. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust 
International which would otherwise.have had to be purchased. They are valued at the 
amount that Prince's Trust International would have paid in order to obtain them and are 
included both in incoming resources and resources.expended. 

1.4 Resources Expended 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings 
that aggregate all costs related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to 
particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a.ba~is consistent with ttfe i.Jse of 
resources. The costs of generating funds includtfthe saJaries and ~verhea'd c!osts of the staff 
who undertake fundraising activities and the marketiRg and publicity costs associated with 
raising the profile of Prince's Trust international (but not those which are used in an 
educational manner in furtherance of the charity's objects). Governance costs are those 
related to constitutional and statutory requirements, specifically external audit fees. 

1.5 Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain 
timing or amount at the balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

1.7 Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to 
the extent that they are applied for their charitable objects. 

1.8 Funds 
The funds of The Trust have been segregated as follows: 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes 
for which the resources can be utilised and therefore on which expenditure is restricted to. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of au other income that has not been restricted. They are 
expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of The Charity. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (Continued) 

2. Voluntary Income Restricted Unrestricted Total 

Donations from Charitable Trust 

Donations in Kind 

£ 

30,000 
~ 

30,000 

£ £ 

30,000 
40,000 40,000 
40,000 70,000 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust 
International, at the value at which the Prince's Trust International would have paid. This 
amount is recognised as seconded staff in the expenditure category. 

3. Net (outgoing)/incoming resources 

Net {outgoing}/incoming resources is stated after charging: 
Auditors' remuneration (included in Governance costs) 

2015 
£ 

4,000 

4. Employees 

5. 

There were no staff directly employed by the charitable company in the period. 
The Trustees did not receive any emoluments in respect of their services to the charitable 
company. No Trustees received reimbursement of travel expenses in the year. 

The funds of the Charity 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Funds Funds 2015 
£ £ £ 

Balance at 17 June 2014 
Result for the financial period (19,814) 30,000 10,186 

Balance at 31 March 2015 ~19,814l 30,000 10,186 

All the funds disclosed above are restricted in so far as the funders have specified that the 
income can only be expended on the get into programme in Jordan. 

6. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party 

Prince's Trust International is a subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, is separately registered as a 
charity with the Charity Commission and is managed on an arm's length commercial basis. 

The intention is for a management services agreement to be in place to govern the provision 
and payment for services between The Prince's Trust and Prince's Trust International. There 
will be a licence agreement in place to govern the licensing of The Prince's Trust know how 
and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (Continued) 

6. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party (continued) 
The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity 
registered in the United Kingdom. 

The Prince's Trust is the. parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings 
to consolidate these financial statements at 31 March 2015. The consolidated financial 
statements of The Prince's Trust are available from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, 
London, EC2M 7LS. 

7. Related Party Transactions 
The charitable company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by Financial 
Reporting Standard No. 8 on Related Party Transactions from disclosing transactions with 
entities, 100% of whose voting rights are controlled within the group, and where consolidated 
financial statements are publicly available. 

8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 
Accruals 

Balance at 31' March 2015 

9. Taxation 

2015 
£ 

4,927 
4,000 

8,927 

The company was registered as a charity in January 2015 and as a charity it is not liable to 
corporation tax on non-trading activity. During the period to year end and prior to registration 
as a charity, the organisation did not generate income liable to taxation. ' 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of 
recoverable VAT. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Trust~s 

The trustees of the charity in office during the period and up to the date of signing the financial statements 
were: 

Chief Executive 

Secretary 

Company number 

Charity number 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Lloyd Dorfman CBE 
Martina Milburn CBE 
Sarah Haidry 
Amy Stirling 

Alastair Da Costa 

Sarah Haidry 

9090276 

1159815 

Date of 
Appointment 

01/07/2014. 
08/12/2014 
17/06/2014 
17/06/2014 
17/06/2014 

Governing 
Instrument Memorandum and Articles of Association 

Registered office Prince's Trust House 
9 Eldon Street 
London 
EC2M 7LS 

Independent Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
1 Embankment Place 
London WC2N 6RH 

Bankers National Westminster Bank pie 
3rd Floor 
280 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M4RB 

Solicitors Reed Smith 
The Broadgate Tower 
20 Primrose Street 
London EC2A 2RS 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the period since incorporation 
on the 17 June 2014 until 31 March 2015. · · 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2005 and 
Charities Act 2011 in preparing the Annual report & financial statements. The administration 
information on page 1 forms part of this report. 

Structure, governance and management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Memorandum and Articles of Association. 
This forms the governing document and, together with the Bye-laws and documented approval 
documents (a set of documents that sets out Prince's Trust lnternational's governance structure anq 
continues to evolve in line with growth), are the documents that govern Prince's Trust lnternational's 
administration. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 
Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Bye-laws and are collectively known as the Board. In 
order to ensure that strategy and operational activity is aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent company) 
the Prince's Trust International Board comprises a minimum of three members of The Prince's Trust 
Board. On joining the organisation, new trustees receive an induction which covers the values and 
purpose of Prince's Trust International and includes strategy, fundraising, programmes, operations and 
governance. 

Organisational Structure 
The Prince's Trust International Board is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The 
matters reserved for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget 
and business plan and the Annual Report a.nd Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International 
Board also retains oversight of management controls and corporate governance, along with the 
appointment of trustees and the Chief Executive. · 

The Prince's Trust International Board is seeking to appoint an Advisory Board composed of senior 
volunteers, whose role will be to provide fundraising support and strategic and operational guidance. 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Chief Executive for the day to 
day management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with 
the provision of administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. The intention is for 
a management services agreement to be in place to govern the provision and payment for services 
from The Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International and there will be a licence agreement in place 
to govern the licensing of The Prince's Trust know how and intellectual property for use by Prince's 
Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

Objectives and activities 
The Charity was incorporated as a company on 17 June 2014 and this first period of operation has 
been focused on setting up of the charity operations and structure. Charitable status was awarded on 
6 January 2015. 

The charity's objects are restricted to purposes which are charitable in accordance with the laws of 
England and Wares, and specifteally to promoting mental, spiritual, moral and physical development and 
improvement of young people and providing opportunities for them to develop their full capabilities and 
enabling them to become responsible members of society so that their conditions of life may be 
improved throughout the world. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 4 of Charities Act 2011) The 
Trust achieves this by: 

• providing facilities for young people for recreation or other leisure time occupation in the 
interests of social welfare. 

• advancing the education of young people by the provision of, encouragement and promotion 
of education, instruction or training in professions, vocations, industries, crafts, trades or the 
skills needed in employment, relieving poverty amongst young people through the provision of 
assistance (including financial assistance) 

• provide encouragement whilst their education is being advanced , while they are in the 
process of establishing new businesses or preparing for entering upon or engaging in a 
profession, trade, craft or service 

• arranging periods of voluntary work in the community for the benefit of the public encouraging 
and assisting young people in their understanding of and practical action in support of the 
natural and built environment. 

• promoting and conducting research into social conditions affecting young people and the 
mental, spiritual, moral and physical needs of young people and to publish the useful results 
of such research. 

• supporting such charity or charities or such charitable purpose or purposes as the members 
shall in their absolute discretion think fit. 

Achievements and performance 
Review of the business and future developments 

Prince's Trust International had incoming resources over 8 months of activity of £70,000 and 
expenditure of £59,814. The surplus will be retained in Prince's Trust International for investment 
next year. 

The key achievements during 2014/15 were to complete the process of consultation and preparation 
of a strategy and budget for Prince's Trust International, The charity has also started to discuss with 
overseas governments, nongovernmental organisations and other stakeholders potential activity to 
help young people, and to agree aims and operational framework for pilot projects to be delivered in 
2015/16 in Jordan and Malta in particular. 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and 
Administration section on page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the period. 

Qualifying indemnity provision 

There is in force and was during the financial period, and at the date of approval of the financial 
statements a qualifying indemnity provision under section 234 Companies Act 2006 for the benefit of 
all of the Trustees. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees will review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between 
four to six months of operational expenditure. In the current financial period the charity has not met 
its target regarding unrestricted reserves. The Intention is for the administrative costs, causing the 
deficit, to be funded through the generation of Mure unrestricted income. The charitable company do 
not intend to finance unrestricted activities from restricted funds. 

Risk Management 

The Prince's Trust international Council considers that it is operating a reasonable system of risk 
management The major risks, to which the charity is exposed, as identified by the trustees, have been 
reviewed and there are systems and procedures established to manage those risks. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES'REPORT(Continued) 

Public benefit 

In reviewing the aims, objectives and planning future activities of the charity, the Trustees have taken 
into account the Charity Commission guidance on public benefit in section 17 of the Charities Act 2011. · 

The Trustees always ensure that the activities undertaken are in line with the charitable objectives and 
aims of the charity. 

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities 

The trustees are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and 
of its incoming resources and application of resources of the group for that period. 

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charitable company will continue in business 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show 
and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each 
of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the 
Trustees is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors 
are unaware and each of the Trustees has taken all steps that ought to have been taken to make 
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's 
auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies 
within Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006. 

On behalf of the board on 21 July 2015 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Chairman 

• 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Report on the financial statements 

Our opinion 
In our opinion Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements, defined below: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2015 
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure for the period then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report 

What we have audited 
The financial statements, which are prepared by Prince's Trust International, comprise: 

• the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015; 

• the statement of financial activities including the summary income and expenditure account 
for the period then ended; and 

• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the trustees have made a number of subjective 
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In ·making such estimates, they 
have made assumptions and considered future events. 

What an audit of financial statements involves 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs 
(UK & Ireland)"). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to· give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charitable company's circumstances 
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and 

• the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements ("the Annual Accounts") to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial 
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of perfonning the audit If we become 
aware of any apparent material misstatements or ·inconsisten~ we consi~er ~e implicati9ns for our 
report. . · •· , 
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report. for the financial period for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL (Continued) 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
Under th~ Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Trustees' remuneration 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of 
Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this 
responsibility. 

Entitlement to exemptions 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the trustees were not 
entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Trustees' Report and take 
advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report We have no exceptions 
to report arising from this responsibility. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 
Our responsibilities and those of the trustees 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 5, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members and 
trustees as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other 
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to 
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly 
agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

, 
Uz,t)o.) 

· estwood (Senior Statutory Auditor) . 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 21 j..,~ t.0t5' 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVJTIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE PERIOD SINCE INCORPORATION ON 17 JUNE 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015 

Incoming Resources 
Incoming Resources from 
Generated Funds 
Voluntary Income 

Resources Expended 
Cost of Generating Voluntary 
Income· 
Charitable Activities 

Governance Costs 

Total Resources Expended 

Net (outgoing)/incoming 
resources 

Fund Balances Carried Forward 
31 March 

2 

3 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

£ 

40,000 

15,814 

40,000 

55,814 

4,000 

59,814 

(19,814) 

(19,814) 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

30,000 

30,000 

30,000 

Total 
17June14 

to 
31March15 

£ 

70,000 

15,814 

40,000 

55,814 

4,000 

59,814 

10,186 

10, 186 

The Statement of Financial Activities has been prepared in the current period on the basis that all 
operations are continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the statement of . 
financial activities and therefore no separate statement of total recognised gains and losses has been 
presented. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained 
results for the period stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

The notes on pages 10 to12 form part of these financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015 

Current assets 
Cash at bank and in hand 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 
Unrestricted income funds 
Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

The notes on pages 10 to12 form part of these financial statements. 

Note 

8 

5 
5 

2015 

£ 

19,113 

(8,927) 

10,186 

10,186 

(19,814) 
30,000 

10,186 

The financial statements on pages 8 to 12 were approved by the Board on 21 July 2015 and signed 
its behalf by: 

Sir Nigel Knowles 
Chairman 

Company registration no. 9090276 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Accounting policies 

1.1 Accounting convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. 

1.2 Compliance with accounting standards 
These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost 
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting 
standards in the United Kingdom .. The principal accounting policies, which have been applied 
consistently, are set out below. The charitable company is exempt under FRS1 from the 
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as the ultimate controlling parent charity, The 
Prince's Trust, prepares consolidated financial statements, which incorporates Prince's Trust . 
International figures. Copies may be obtained from The Prince's Trust registered office at 
Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M 7LS. 

1.3 Incoming Resources 
Donations are accounted for in the period of receipt. All income is shown gross of related 
expenditure. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust 
International which would otherwise.have had to be purchased. They are valued at the 
amount that Prince's Trust International would have paid in order to obtain them and are 
included both in incoming resources and resources.expended. 

1.4 Resources Expended 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings 
that aggregate all costs related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to 
particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a.ba~is consistent with ttfe i.Jse of 
resources. The costs of generating funds includtfthe saJaries and ~verhea'd c!osts of the staff 
who undertake fundraising activities and the marketiRg and publicity costs associated with 
raising the profile of Prince's Trust international (but not those which are used in an 
educational manner in furtherance of the charity's objects). Governance costs are those 
related to constitutional and statutory requirements, specifically external audit fees. 

1.5 Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain 
timing or amount at the balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

1.7 Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to 
the extent that they are applied for their charitable objects. 

1.8 Funds 
The funds of The Trust have been segregated as follows: 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes 
for which the resources can be utilised and therefore on which expenditure is restricted to. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of au other income that has not been restricted. They are 
expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of The Charity. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (Continued) 

2. Voluntary Income Restricted Unrestricted Total 

Donations from Charitable Trust 

Donations in Kind 

£ 

30,000 
~ 

30,000 

£ £ 

30,000 
40,000 40,000 
40,000 70,000 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust 
International, at the value at which the Prince's Trust International would have paid. This 
amount is recognised as seconded staff in the expenditure category. 

3. Net (outgoing)/incoming resources 

Net {outgoing}/incoming resources is stated after charging: 
Auditors' remuneration (included in Governance costs) 

2015 
£ 

4,000 

4. Employees 

5. 

There were no staff directly employed by the charitable company in the period. 
The Trustees did not receive any emoluments in respect of their services to the charitable 
company. No Trustees received reimbursement of travel expenses in the year. 

The funds of the Charity 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Funds Funds 2015 
£ £ £ 

Balance at 17 June 2014 
Result for the financial period (19,814) 30,000 10,186 

Balance at 31 March 2015 ~19,814l 30,000 10,186 

All the funds disclosed above are restricted in so far as the funders have specified that the 
income can only be expended on the get into programme in Jordan. 

6. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party 

Prince's Trust International is a subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, is separately registered as a 
charity with the Charity Commission and is managed on an arm's length commercial basis. 

The intention is for a management services agreement to be in place to govern the provision 
and payment for services between The Prince's Trust and Prince's Trust International. There 
will be a licence agreement in place to govern the licensing of The Prince's Trust know how 
and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (Continued) 

6. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party (continued) 
The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity 
registered in the United Kingdom. 

The Prince's Trust is the. parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings 
to consolidate these financial statements at 31 March 2015. The consolidated financial 
statements of The Prince's Trust are available from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, 
London, EC2M 7LS. 

7. Related Party Transactions 
The charitable company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by Financial 
Reporting Standard No. 8 on Related Party Transactions from disclosing transactions with 
entities, 100% of whose voting rights are controlled within the group, and where consolidated 
financial statements are publicly available. 

8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 
Accruals 

Balance at 31' March 2015 

9. Taxation 

2015 
£ 

4,927 
4,000 

8,927 

The company was registered as a charity in January 2015 and as a charity it is not liable to 
corporation tax on non-trading activity. During the period to year end and prior to registration 
as a charity, the organisation did not generate income liable to taxation. ' 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of 
recoverable VAT. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
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Independent Auditors 
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Rupert Goodman DL (Deputy Chairman from February 2016) 

Mohammed Amersi (from April 2015) 

Romero Britto (from May 2015) 

Sarah Haidry (until May 2016) 

Martina Milburn CBE 
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Alastair Da Costa (until November 2015) 

Alan Kennedy (from November 2015) 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the year to 31 March 2016. 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2015 and FRS 102 in 
preparing the Annual Report & Financial Statements. The reference and administration information on page 2 forms 
part of this report. 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a charitable company and subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, who is the 
sole member. 

The Charity was formally launched at the Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting in Malta in November 
2015. 

Principal Activities and Purposes of Prince's Trust International 

The principal activities and purposes of the Charity flow from those of its parent, The Prince's Trust. The vision of 
The Prince's Trust is that every young person should have the chance to succeed. Its mission is to help 
disadvantaged young people to change their lives and get into work, education, training or volunteering. 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 2011 ), Prince's Trust 
International achieves its requirements for public benefit by developing programmes to meet its objective. 

The vision of Prince's Trust International is to help unemployed young people around the globe into education, 
training and work. The Charity's mission is to make a significant contribution to improving the lives of young people, 
by partnering with governments, NGOs and corporations to implement Prince's Trust Programmes. The Charity 
aims to provide opportunities for unemployed and disengaged young people to gain the skills, motivation and self­
confidence to contribute to their local economy and engage as active members of society. 

Prince's Trust International has successfully run pilot programmes in Malta and Jordan as well as advisory work in 
Oman. Pilot programmes are planned over the course of 2016 in Australia, Barbados, Canada, India and New 
Zealand. Funding has been received from a number of corporate companies and Founding Patrons. The 
achievements are described in more detail below. 

Structure, governance and management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Articles of Association in England and Wales. The Articles 
form the governing document together with a set of documents that detail Prince's Trust lnternational's governance 
structure and these continue to evolve in line with growth. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 

Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Articles and are collectively known as the Prince's Trust International 
Board. In order to ensure that strategy and operational activity is aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent company), 
the Prince's Trust International Board includes the Group Chief Executive and no more than three members of The 
Prince's Trust Board. On joining the organisation, new Trustees receive a comprehensive induction which covers 
the values and purpose of Prince's Trust International. The induction includes strategy, fundraising, programmes, 
operations and governance, as well as site visits to observe programmes in action and to meet with beneficiaries. 

Organisational Structure 

The Prince's Trust International Board is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The matters 
reserved for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget and business plan 
and the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International Board also retains oversight of 
management controls and corporate governance, along with the appointment of Trustees and the Chief Executive. 

The Charity is grateful for the commitment of a core group of volunteers who have assisted with its development and 
provide ongoing support in the London office. It also acknowledges the support of volunteers to the local partner 

· organisations delivering the pilot projects in other countries. 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Group CEO and Chief Executive for the day-to­
day management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with the provision of 
administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 

Organisational Structure (continued) 

A management services agreement has been put in place to govern the provision and payment for services from 
The Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International, together with a licence agreement to govern the licensing of The 
Prince's Trust know how and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman and The Prince's Trust Group CEO, in conjunction with The Prince's Trust International 
Trustees, establish and annually review the remuneration of The Prince's Trust International Senior Management 
Team in consideration of individual contribution and good practice in the Charity sector. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman is also Chairman of the Prince's Trust International Board and The Prince's Trust 
Group CEO is a member of the Prince's Trust International Board. In February 2016, two independent Deputy 
Chairmen were appointed, one to The Prince's Trust Board and the other to the Prince's Trust International Board. 
Their role includes resolving any potential conflicts of interest between the organisations. 

Achievements and performance 

During 2015/16, Prince's Trust International continued to develop its activities, launching pilots in Malta and Jordan 
and exploring the possibility of extending activities in other territories. 

The key achievements during 2015/16 were: 

• agreeing the aims and framework for a project to pilot The Prince's Trust xi programme in Malta in 
partnership with the Ministry for Education and Employment and HSBC Malta; 

• achieving positive results through the pilots in seven schools in Malta, such that the Ministry decided to 
scale the programme up to 20 schools; 

• running a small pilot ofThe Prince's Trust Get Into programme in Malta, in partnership with the Marks and 
Spencer franchise partner and the Ministry for Education and Employment; 

• building on this experience to develop plans for scaling up the Get Into approach in Malta; 
• creating a consortium of partners in Jordan to pilot The Prince's Trust Get Into programme; 
• training and supporting these partners to run programmes in two locations and across four sectors to help 

unemployed young people into jobs, and to explore potential for scaling the programme up in future; 
• organising a series of exchange visits in India and the United Kingdom to share experience of the Enterprise 

programme and explore potential for future work with a partner in India ; 
• undertaking scoping visits to understand the needs of young people and explore current provision and 

opportunities to pilot Prince's Trust programmes with youth organisations and other stakeholders in 
Australia, Canada, India and New Zealand, with a view to running pilot programmes in 2016/17; and 

• continuing to support PASMED in Oman to grow their enterprise mentorship. 

The principal funding sources in the year were the six Founding Patrons and The Prince of Wales's Charitable 
Foundation. HSBC Bank Malta funded the xi pilot in Malta; Marks and Spencer funded the Get Into Retail pilot in 
Malta and The Bharatiya Yuva Shakti Trust (BYST) funded scoping of future pilots in India. 

In Jordan and Malta, Prince's Trust International is working in partnership with local organisations to deliver the pilot 
programmes. The partners are tied by agreement to Prince's Trust International and have been selected for their 
relevant expertise. The programmes are monitored by staff from the Prince's Trust International London office. 

In the last year, Prince's Trust International did not use volunteers to deliver its programmes overseas, but was 
helped by the support of a core group of volunteers in its head office in London. 

The Charity to date has only run pilot programmes and is, therefore, not reporting a total number of beneficiaries for 
2016. 

Financial Review 

Prince's Trust International had incoming resources for the year of £766, 701 (2015: £70,000) and expenditure of 
£524,217 (2015: £59,814). The surplus will be retained in Prince's Trust International for investment next year. 
Financial performance for the year was broadly in line with expectations. The year end position reflects the 
donations from two additional Founding Patrons. 

4 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees will review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between four to six 
months of operational expenditure. The intention is for the core running costs to be funded through the generation of 
unrestricted funds. While Prince's Trust International is in start-up phase, The Prince's Trust (parent company) has 
made a working capital facility of up to £1.2 million available to the Charity. This facility has not yet been drawn 
down. Any drawdown is to be repaid by 31 December 2018. 

Total funds as at 31 March 2016 were at £252,670 (2015: £10, 186), of which £46,494 (2015: £30,000) were 
restricted funds. Unrestricted reserves (£206, 176) represent approximately 3.5 months of non-programme related 
expenditure. 

Risk Policy 

Prince's Trust International recognises the inherent risks in working outside the United Kingdom with disadvantaged 
young people and in raising the funds to pay for its work. The span of these risks is wide, including health and 
safety, client safeguarding, programme development, data management, international travel and delivery. Prince's 
Trust International works to mitigate the risks that it takes and aims to deliver safe and effective opportunities for 
young people. · 

Prince's Trust International carries out due diligence on all countries it works in and is proposing to work in. The 
scope of due diligence includes risks relating to the country, the in-country delivery partner and the project funder. 
This due diligence is captured within a Country Assessment Proposal that is reviewed by the Prince's Trust 
International Board, before a decision is made on whether to progress. This due diligence process has been 
developed with feedback from external advisers. 

The Charity is evolving its strategic plan. This incorporates the due diligence process, where the risks to our staff, 
partners, beneficiaries, reputation, intellectual property, quality assurance and funding, are understood and 
protected. The preparation of the new Charity's risk register has begun. 

Risk is the responsibility of the CEO and Senior Management Team and is reviewed regularly at the Prince's Trust 
International Board meeting with the Trustees. ·· 

Future Plans 

Building on the successful pilots in Jordan and Malta, Prince's Trust International has plans to further extend these. 
In addition, plans are being developed to launch pilot programmes in a number of new territories. Discussions are 
progressing well with partners and funders in Australia, Barbados, Canada and New Zealand. 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and Administration section on 
page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the year. 

Qualifying indemnity provision 

In accordance with section 234 Companies Act 2006, a qualifying indemnity provision, for the benefit of all of the 
Trustees, was in force during the financial year and remains in force at the date of approval of the financial 
statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities 

The Trustees (who are also directors of Prince's Trust International for the purposes of company law) are 
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
Trustees have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and 
applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). Under company law the Trustees must 
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of the 
affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income 
and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" 

has been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charitable company's website. Legislation in 
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each of the persons 
who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the Trustees is aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware and each of the Trustees has 
taken all steps that ought to have been taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15 
of the Companies Act 2006. 

On behalf of the board on 29th September 2016 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Our opinion 
In our opinion Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements (the "financial statements"): 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure and cash flows 
for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

What we have audited 
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report''}, 
comprise: 

• the balance sheet as at 31 March 2016; 
• the statement of financial activities (including the income and expenditure account) for the year then 

ended; 
• the statement of cash flow for the year then ended; and 
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland", and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Trustees have made a number of subjective judgements, for 
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and 
considered future events. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Trustees' remuneration 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Trustees' 
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Entitlement to exemptions 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our ·opinion, the Trustees were not entitled to 
take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and take advantage of 
the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report. We have no exceptions to report arising from 
this responsibility. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS AND TRUSTEES OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL (Continued) 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Our responsibilities and those of the Trustees 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 6, the Trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and international Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (" ISAs (UK & Ireland)"). Those standards require us to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members and Trustees as a body 
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving 
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is 
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

What an audit of financial statements involves 
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland. An audit involves obtaining evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charitable company's circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Trustees; and 
• the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Trustees' judgements against available evidence, 
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements. 

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary 
to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness 
of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the 
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications 
for our report. 

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 

Date: Jo ~~ .2.o{, 
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. PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2016 

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 2016 Funds Funds 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Income from: 

Donations 2 677,083 89,618 766,701 40,000 30,000 

Expenditure on 

Raising funds 3 98,204 98,204 19,814 

Charitable Activities 4 352,889 73,124 426,013 40,000 

Total expenditure 451,093 73, 124 524,217 59,814 

Net income and 225,990 16,494 242,484 (19,814) 30,000 
movement in funds 

Total funds (19,814) 30,000 10, 186 
brought forward as 
at 1 April 

Total funds carried 206,176 46,494 252,670 (19,814) 30,000 
forward as at 31 
March 

2015 
£ 

70,000 

19,814 

40,000 

59,814 

10,186 

10,186 

The Statement of Financial Activities has been prepared in the current year on the basis that all operations are 
continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the statement of financial activities and 
therefore no separate statement of total recognised gains and losses has been presented. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained results for the year 
stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

Comparators for 2015 are for the first eight months of operation, from incorporation on 17 June 2014 to 31 March 
2015. 

The notes on pages 13 to 18 form part of these financial statements. 

9 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31MARCH2016 

Current assets 

Cash at bank and in hand 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 

Unrestricted income funds 

Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

Note 

7 

8 

8 

The notes on pages 13 to 18 form part of these financial statements. 

2016 

£ 

486,283 

(233,613) 

252,670 

252,670 

206,176 

46,494 

252,670 

2015 

£ 

19, 113 

(8,927) 

10,186 

10,186 

(19,814) 

30,000 

10,186 

The financial statements on pages 9 to 18 were approved by the Board on 29th September 2016 and signed on its 
behalf y: 

Company registration no. 9090276 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting 
year/period 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting year/period 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
year/period 

11 

Note 

2 

2 

2016 

£ 

467, 170 

467, 170 

19, 113 

486,283 

2015 

£ 

19, 113 

19, 113 

19,113 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2016 

Note 1: 
Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating 
activities 

Net income for the reporting year/period (as per the statement 
of financial activities) 

Adjustments for: 

Increase in creditors 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Note 2: 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

12 

2016 

£ 

242,484 

224,686 

467,170 

2016 

£ 

486,283 

486,283 

2015 

£ 

10,186 

8,927 

19,113 

2015 

£ 

19,113 

19,113 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

1 Accounting Policies and Transition to FRS 102 

1.1 Accounting Convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical convention. 

1.2 Basis of Preparation . 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance on a going concern basis. There are no material 
uncertainties about the Charity's ability to continue. The Charity is a public benefit entity. The accounting 
policies have been applied consistently. 

1.3 Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following: 

• Financial Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom 
and Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102') 

• The Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' FRS 102 as revised 
in 2015 ('the SORP 2015') 

• The Charities Act 2011 
• The historical cost convention 

1.4 Reconciliation with previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
Prince's Trust International financial statements are prepared under UK Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice ('UK GAAP') and comply with the SORP 2015. UK GAAP changed with effect for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 to FRS 102. This is the first year of accounts affected by the new 
standards, the transition date being 1 April 2014. 

In preparing the accounts, the Trustees have considered whether in applying the accounting policies required by 
FRS 102 and the SORP 2015 the restatement of corresponding amounts was required. Further information is given 
in note 13. 

The ultimate controlling parent charity, The Prince's Trust, prepares consolidated financial statements, which 
incorporates Prince's Trust International figures. Copies may be obtained from The Prince's Trust registered office 
at Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M ?LS. 

1.5 Income from donations 
Donations are accounted for when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. All 
income is shown gross of related expenditure. Tax credits receivable from gift aid donations are recognised 
when there is a valid Gift Aid declaration. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust International which would 
otherwise have had to be purchased. They are valued at the amount that Prince's Trust International would have 
paid in order to obtain them and are included both in incoming resources and resources expended. 

1.6 Resources Expended 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all 
costs related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been 
allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. 

The costs of raising funds include the salaries and overhead costs of the staff who undertake fundraising activities 
and the marketing and publicity costs associated with raising the profile of Prince's Trust International (but not those 
which are used in an educational manner in furtherance of the charity's objects). Other costs, in compliance with 
constitutional and statutory requirements, include external audit costs. 

Support costs include the salaries of those managerial staff which are not directly attributable to a particular 
programme of charitable work, governance costs, and of charges made by The Prince's Trust for support services 
(e.g. Finance, IT, HR and for other administrative staff and all office running costs) consumables and other 
overheads not specifically attributable to a particular programme of charitable work. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2016 (Continued) 

1. Accounting Policies and Transition to FRS 102 (continued) 

Support costs are allocated to costs of raising funds and charitable activities on the basis of the relative effort 
involved, based on an assessment by the Charity's management. Irrecoverable VAT is included with the item of 
expense to which it relates. 

1.7 Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the 
balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

1.8 Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to the extent that they 
are applied for their charitable objects. 

1.9 Funds 
The funds of The Trust have been segregated as follows: 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes for which the 
resources can be utilised and therefore to which expenditure is restricted. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of all other income that has not been restricted. They are expendable at the 
discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of The Trust. 

1.10 Financial Instruments \ 
The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption which is available under FRS 102 1.12 ( c) (relating to sections 11 
and 12 of the standard) as a wholly owned subsidiary not to disclose the following: 

• Categories of financial instruments 
• Items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments, and 
• Exposure to and management of financial risks. 

Full disclosure in relation to financi?I instruments is available in the consolidated accounts of The Prince's Trust. 

1.11 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Estimates and Assumptions 
·The Charity allocates support costs between different charitable activities using management's judgement of the 
proportion of effort expended on each category during the year. 

1.12 Pension Scheme 
The Prince's Trust has arranged a defined contribution pension scheme for Prince's Trust lnternational's staff. 
Pension contributions charged in the Statement of Financial Activities represent the contributions payable by the 
Charity in the year. Defined pension scheme contributions were charged to the profit and loss account as they fall 
due. The company had no potential liability other than for payment of those contributions. 

2 Donations Unrestricted 

£ 

Donations from Major Donors 460,000 

Donations from Corporate Partners 

Donations from Charitable Trusts 150,000 

Donations in Kind 67,083 

677,083 

Restricted 

£ 

5,000 

76,453 

8,165 

89,618 

Total 2016 

£ 

465,000 

76,453 

158,165 

67,083 

766,701 

Total 2015 

£ 

30,000 

40,000 

70,000 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust International, at the value at 
which Prince's Trust International would have paid; this amount is recognised as seconded staff in the expenditure 
category. All income was generated in the UK. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2016 (Continued) 

Direct Other Allocated 
staff direct support 

3 Raising Funds costs costs costs 2016 

£ £ £ £ 

22,252 43,236 32,716 98,204 

Other direct costs represent the payment for a fundraising consultant, prior to the appointment of a full-time 
fundraiser in January 2016. 

Allocated 
Direct staff Other direct support 

4 Charitable Activities costs costs costs 2016 

£ £ £ £ 
Programme scoping 105,950 70,092 38,313 214,355 
Programme delivery 99,937 73,408 38,313 211,658 

205,887 143,500 76,626 426,013 

2015 

£ 

19,814 

2015 

£ 

40,000 

40,000 

The allocation of support costs between different charitable activities reflects an estimate of the proportion of effort 
expended on each category during the year; this is based on management judgement. 

5 Support costs 

Staff costs: 

Other costs: 

Communications and Marketing 

Other staff costs - travel and recruitment 

Fees paid to The Prince's Trust 

Audit Fees 

Sundry other costs 

6 Employees and Trustees' Emoluments 

Staff members 

Raising 
Funds 

£ 

28,685 

3,918 

113 

32,716 

Average monthly number of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff - Fundraising 
Governance 

Staff costs for the above employees were: 

Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Pensions and post retirement benefits 

15 

Charitable 
Activities 

£ 

32,013 

30,842 

6,360 

7,411 

76,626 

2016 

£ 

28,685 

35,931 

30,842 

6,360 

7,524 

109,342 

2016 
No. 

4 
1 
5 

2016 
£ 

198,852 
21,693 

7,594 
228,139 

2015 

£ 

4,000 

4,000 

2015 
No. 

2015 
£ 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

,NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (Continued) 

6. Employees and Trustees' Emoluments (continued) 

Staff costs include £45,865 for staff directly involved in delivering charitable activities and £182,274 for support 
staff. 

No employees in 2016 earned emoluments in excess of £60,000 (2015: none). 

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. Their remuneration totalled 
£127,597 (2015: nil); of this £67,083 was a gift in kind. 

Trustees Emoluments 

No Trustee received salaries, fees or other benefits during the year (2014/15: nil). Three Trustees received 
reimbursement of travel expenses in the year of £1,391 (2014/15: nil). Mohammed Amersi claimed £1,064, (2015: 
nil), Sarah Haidry claimed £53 (2015: nil) and Martina Milburn claimed £274 (2015: nil). Details of other related party 
transactions are disclosed in note 11. 

7 

8 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 

Other Creditors 

Accruals 

Total 

Movement in funds 

Jordan Get Into Pilot 

Malta xi Pilot 

Malta Get Into Retail 

Barbados scoping 

India Scoping 

Total Restricted funds 

Unrestricted income funds 

Funds 
brought 
forward 

£ 

30,000 

30,000 

(19,814) 

10, 186 

Income 
£ 

61,353 

15, 100 

5,000 

8,165 

89,618 

677,083 

766,701 

2016 2015 

£ £ 

210,884 4,927 

14,248 

8,481 4,000 

233,613 8,927 

Funds 
carried 

Expenditure forward 
£ £ 

(30,000) 

{32,731) 28,622 

(2,228) 12,872 

5,000 

(8, 165) 

(73, 124) 46,494 

(451,093) 206,176 

(524,217) 252,670 

The Jordan Get Into Pilot fund relates to the partnership with the King Abdullah Fund to develop and pilot a Get Into 
programme in Jordan. 

The Malta xi Pilot fund relates to the partnership with the Maltese Ministry for Education and HSBC Bank Malta to 
develop and pilot the xi programme in Malta. 

The Malta Get Into Retail fund relates to the partnership with the Maltese President's Trust and Marks and Spencer 
to deliver a Get Into Retail programme in Malta. 

The Barbados scoping fund relates to money provided by the Andy Stewart Foundation specifically for travel for 
Prince's Trust international staff on a scoping visit to Barbados completed in May 2016. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (Continued) 

8. Movement in funds (continued) 

The India scoping fund relates to the partnership with The Bharatiya Yuva Shakti Trust (BYST) to cover the costs of 
travel between the UK and India to scope prospective programmes for India. 

9 Analysis of net assets between funds 

Funds balances at 31 March 2016 are represented by: 

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Investments 

Current Assets 

Long Term Liabilities 

Total funds 

Un restricted 
Funds 

£ 

206,176 

206,176 

10 The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

46,494 

46,494 

Total Funds 
£ 

252,670 

252,670 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Prince's Trust. The Charity is 
incorporated in England and Wales and has its own registration with the Charity Commission. The Charity's Articles 
of Association set out how The Prince's Trust exercises control over the Charity. 

As the sole Member, The Prince's Trust has the power to appoint the Chairman and has absolute discretion over the 
appointment of other Members. 

The Prince's Trust obtains benefit from its interest in the Charity through a licence agreement to govern the use of 
The Prince's Trust know how and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International. In addition, and to 
ensure that the strategy and operational policies are aligned to The Prince's Trust, the Prince's Trust International 
Board comprises the Group Chief Executive and no more than three Trustees of The Prince's Trust Board. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman is also Chairman of the Prince's Trust International Board and The Prince's Trust 
Group CEO is a Trustee of Prince's Trust International. 

Relationships between The Prince's Trust and Prince's Trust International are, so far as possible, managed on an 
arm's length commercial basis. In addition to the licence agreement, a management services agreement has been 
put in place to govern the provision and payment for services from The Prince's Trust to the Charity, all on 
commercial terms. 

In February 2016, two independent Deputy Chairmen were appointed, one to The Prince's Trust Board and the other 
to the Prince's Trust International Board. Their role includes resolving any potential conflicts of interest between the 
organisations. 

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity registered in the United 
Kingdom. The Prince's Trust Charity Registration Number in England & Wales is 1079675 and in Scotland is 
SC041198. The Royal Charter Number is RC000772. 

The Prince's Trust works with disadvantaged young people aged 11 - 30. Through the provision of innovative, high 
quality personal development opportunities, it helps young people to get into work, education, self-employment or 
training. The Prince's Trust operates throughout England and Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. 

The Prince's Trust is the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings to consolidate these 
financial statements at 31 March 2016. The consolidated financial statements of The Prince's Trust are available 
from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, Lo"ndon, EC2M ?LS. · 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2016 (Continued) 

11 Related Party Transactions 

The charitable company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by FRS 102 on Related Party Transactions 
from disclosing transactions with entities, 100% of whose voting rights are controlled within the group, and where 
consolidated financial statements are publicly available. 

£100,000 (2015: nil) was received as a donation from the Dorfman Foundation, an organisation of which the Chairman 
of Prince's Trust International, Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is the Chairman and founder. , 

£100,000 (2015: nil) was received as a donation from the Amersi Foundation, an organisation of which a Trustee of 
Prince's Trust International, Mohamed Amersi, is the Chairman and founder. 

Amounts of £11,507 (2015: nil) were received as donation from DLA Piper and £10,250 (2015: nil) from Zeus Capital, 
organisations of which a Trustee of Prince's Trust International, Sir Nigel Knowles, was also Chairman. 

DLA Piper also provided the services of Alastair Da Costa as Chief Executive Officer until November 2015. This 
donation in kind amounted to £67,083 for the period. 

There were no outstanding balances in relation to the above at the balance sheet date. 

12 Taxation 

The Charity was a registered charity throughout the year. As such it is not liable to corporation tax on the surplus of 
income over expenditure for the year (s478 CTA 2010) or gains arising from the disposal of assets (s256 TCGA 
1992) so far as the proceeds are used for charitable purposes only. 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of recoverable VAT. 

13 Transition to FRS 102 

This is the first year that the company has presented its results under FRS 102. The last financial statements under 
The Prince's Trust International were for the year ended 31 March 2015. The date of Transition to FRS 102 was 1 
April 2014. 

There have been no changes to the prior year comparatives due to the introduction of FRS 102. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the charity in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were: 

Group CEO 

Chief Executive 

Company Secretary 

Company number 

Charity number 

Governing Document 

Registered office 

Independent Auditors 

Bankers 

Principal Solicitors 

Lloyd Dorfman CSE (Chairman) 

Rupert Goodman DL (Deputy Chairman) 
Mohammed Amersi 
Romero Britto 
Blonde! Cluff (from August 2016) 
Sarah Haidry (until May 2016) 
Dame Martina Milburn DCVO CSE 
Michelle Pinggera (from November 2016) 
Amy Stirling (until October 2016) 

Dame Martina Milburn DCVO CSE 

Alan Kennedy (until January 2017) 

Jonathan Townsend (from January 2017) 

Sarah Haidry (until September 2016) 
Simon Major (from March 2017) 

9090276 

1159815 

Articles of Association 

Prince's Trust House 
9 Eldon Street 
London 
EC2M ?LS 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
1 Embankment Place 
London 
WC2N6RH 

National Westminster Bank pie 
3rd Floor 
280 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M4RB 

DLA Piper 
3 Noble Street 
London 
EC2V7EE 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2017 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the year to 31 March 2017. 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2015 and FRS 102 in 
preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The reference and administration information on page 2 forms 
part of this report. 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a charitable company and subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, who is the sole 
member. 

Principal Activities and Purposes of Prince's Trust International 

The vision of the Charity is to help unemployed young people around the globe into education, training and 
work. The Charity's mission is to make a significant contribution to improving the lives of young people, by 
partnering with governments, non-governmental organisations (NGOs) and corporations to implement The 
Prince's Trust Programmes. The Charity aims to provide opportunities for unemployed and disengaged young 
people to gain the skills, motivation and self-confidence to contribute to their local economy and engage as 
active members of society. 

The primary objective of The Prince's Trust (The Trust}, as defined by its Royal Charter, is: 

To promote by all charitable means the mental, spiritual, moral and physical development and improvement of 
young people and to provide opportunities for them to develop to their full capacities and enable them to 
become responsible members of society so that their conditions of life may be improved. 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 2011) The Trust 
achieves this by: 

• helping young people aged 11 to 30 who are unemployed and those at risk of unemployment 
because they have struggled at school. 

• bringing young people together from different backgrounds, cultures and faiths, so that they can 
make a positive difference in their communities. 

• providing practical support, enabling them to overcome their problems and get their lives on track. 
• delivering proven, high quality programmes and basic financial support, which help young people to 

develop the confidence and skills they need to get a job or start a business. 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 2011 ), Prince's Trust 
International achieves its requirements for public benefit by developing programmes to meet its objective. 

Prince's Trust International has successfully run pilot programmes in Australia, Barbados, Canada, India, Malta and 
Jordan. In the previous financial year, we also undertook advisory work in Oman. We have begun, or are working 
towards beginning, sustainable programme roll-out in a number of these countries. Following our absorption of 
Mosaic's ongoing international delivery in July 2016, we took responsibility for delivery of the Enterprise Challenge in 
Jordan, Pakistan and Qatar, and opened recruitment to citizens of 22 countries for the International Leadership 
Programme (delegates from 17 joined us during the Summit in March 2017). Pilot programmes are planned over the 
course of 2017/18 in countries including Greece, Oman, and New Zealand. We will also be actively scoping a number 
of individual countries for planned expansion, as well as opportunities for multi-country delivery with global strategic 
partners. Funding has been received from a number of companies and Founding Patrons. The achievements are 
described in more detail below. 

Structure, governance and management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Articles of Association in England and Wales. The Articles 
form the governing document together with a set of documents that detail Prince's Trust lnternational's governance 
structure and these continue to evolve in line with growth. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 

Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Articles and are collectively known as the Prince's Trust International 
Board. In order to ensure that strategy and operational activity is aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent charity), the 
Prince's Trust International Board includes the Group Chief Executive and no more than three members of The 
Prince's Trust Board. On joining the organisation, new Trustees receive a comprehensive induction which covers the 
values and purpose of Prince's Trust International. The induction programme covers strategy, fundraising, 
programmes, operations and governance matters. New trustees are given the opportunity to meet key staff in the 
London office. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (Continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Organisational Structure 

The Prince's Trust International Board is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The matters reserved 
for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget and business plan and the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International Board also retains oversight of management 
controls and corporate governance, along with the appointment of Trustees and the Chief Executive. 

The Charity is grateful for the commitment of a core group of volunteers who have assisted with its development and 
provide ongoing support in the London office. It also acknowledges the support of volunteers to the local partner 
organisations delivering the pilot projects in other countries. 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Group CEO and Chief Executive for the day-to­
day management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with the provision of 
administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. 

A management services agreement has been put in place to govern the provision and payment for services from The 
Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International, together with a licence agreement to govern the licensing of The Prince's 
Trust know how and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

Remuneration of the Charity's staff is aligned to that of The Prince's Trust which is reviewed and agreed by The 
Prince's Trust Council in consideration of good practice in the Charity sector. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman is also Chairman of the Prince's Trust International Board and The Prince's Trust Group 
CEO is a member of the Prince's Trust International Board. Two independent Deputy Chairmen were appointed, one 
to The Prince's Trust Board and the other to the Prince's Trust International Board. Their role includes resolving any 
potential conflicts of interest between the organisations. 

Achievements and performance 

During 2016/17 Prince's Trust International continued to develop its activities, launching pilot programmes, rolling-out 
sustainable delivery, and taking on responsibility for the international programmes formerly delivered by Mosaic. 
Prince's Trust International has continued to expand its activities into new territories, and deepen its engagement with 
new programmes, and in new regions of existing markets. 

The key achievements during 2016/17 were: 

• Continuing to expand the xi/Achieve programme in Malta, with presence in 18 state-governed schools, and 
now with progression into non-state schools and young offenders' units; 

• Expanding the delivery of the Get Into programme in Jordan; 
• Completing delivery of the first pilot of the Get Into programme in Adelaide, South Australia; 
• Commencing delivery of the first Get Into programme in Mumbai, India; 
• Running and completing delivery of the first Team and Get Into programmes in Barbados; 
• Completing delivery of the first four Get Into pilot programmes in Canada with Prince's Charities Canada in 

Winnipeg and Toronto; 
• Gaining approval from the New Zealand Qualifications Authority for the Prince's Trust qualification in 

Personal Development and Employability Skills Level 1; 
• Running a two week Summit for the International Leadership Programme, in which 54 delegates from 17 

different countries participated; 
• Successfully completed the fifth year of delivery of the Enterprise Challenge programme in Qatar and 

Jordan, and the first year in Pakistan; and 
• Developing our first bespoke and Monitoring & Evaluation framework, undertaking mid- and post-pilot 

reviews, and comprehensively measuring our impact. 

The principal funding source in the year was from the Founding Patrons start-up scheme which closed at the end of 
the 2016/17 year. Founding patrons commit to supporting the work of the Charity over a minimum of a 3 year period. 
We thank all of our donors for their generous support. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Over the financial year, the charity developed with its lawyers, DLA Piper, a template partnership agreement which 
has been the contractual basis for delivery with all new partners. During this time, standardised agreements with all 
legacy delivery partners. As outlined in the 'Risk' section below, partners have been selected for their relevant 
expertise, and having a threshold of maturity in their operations. Pilot programmes are monitored by international staff 
deployed from London, and both pilot and roll-out delivery are monitored also by staff from the Prince's Trust 
International London office. 

In 2016/17, we worked with 4, 125 Young People of which 3,530 were on the Enterprise Challenge programme. Last 
Year the programmes were run on pilot basis. 

Financial Review 

Prince's Trust International had income for the year of £1,597,506 (2015/16: £766,701) and expenditure of £1,449,288 
(2015/16: £524,217). The surplus will be retained in Prince's Trust International for investment next year. Financial 
performance for the year was broadly in line with expectations. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between four to six months of 
operational expenditure. The intention is for the core running costs to be funded through the generation of unrestricted 
funds. While Prince's Trust International is in start-up phase, The Prince's Trust (parent charity) has made a working 
capital facility of up to £1.2 million available to the Charity. This facility has not yet been drawn down. Any drawdown 
is to be repaid by 31 December 2018. 

Total funds as at 31 March 2017 were at £400,888 (2015/16: £252,670), of which £88,613 (2015/16: £46,494) were 
restricted funds. Unrestricted re$erves £312,275 (2015/16:£206,176) represent approximately 3 months of non­
programme related expenditure. This is below target but this is acceptable as The Prince's Trust has made a capital 
facility available to the Charity. 

Risk Policy 

Prince's Trust International recognises the inherent risks in working outside the United Kingdom with disadvantaged 
young people and in raising the funds to pay for its work. The span of these risks is wide, including health and safety 
(of both staff and programme beneficiaries), safeguarding, programme development and data management. Prince's 
Trust International works to mitigate the risks that it takes and aims to help delivery partners to ensure safe and 
effective opportunities for young people. 

Prince's Trust International carries out due diligence on all countries it works in and is proposing to work in. The scope 
of due diligence includes risks relating to the country, the in-country delivery partner, and the project funder. This 
due diligence is captured within a Country Assessment Proposal that is reviewed by the Prince's Trust International 
Board, before a decision is made on whether to progress. This due diligence process has been developed with 
feedback from external advisers. 

The Charity has a risk register which scores the standing, and priority managed risks, including (but not limited to) 
our staff, partners, beneficiaries, reputation, intellectual property, quality assurance and funding. The methodology of 
this register has been developed by The Prince's Trust, and tailored to fit the needs of Prince's Trust International. 

The Board ofTrustees delegates risk management to the CEO and executive team, in consultation with the Company 
Secretary. The risk register is reviewed regularly at a governance level, as a standing agenda item at every Prince's 
Trust International Trustee Board meeting. New country assessments are reviewed on an ad hoc basis by the Trustee 
board. 

Prince's Trust International has a comprehensive insurance policy, reviewed annually, and currently held with Zurich 
Insurance. 

Future Plans 

Pilot programmes are planned to start or continue over the course of 2017/18 in countries including Australia, 
Barbados, Canada, India, Greece, and New Zealand. The Charity will also be actively scoping a number of individual 
countries for planned expansion, as well as opportunities for multi-country delivery with global strategic partners. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and Administration section on 
page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the year. 

Qualifying indemnity provision 

In accordance with section 234 Companies Act 2006, a qualifying indemnity provision, for the benefit of all of the 
Trustees, was in force during the financial year and remains in force at the date of approval of the financial statements. 

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities 

The Trustees (who are also directors of Prince's Trust International for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
Trustees have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and applicable 
law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). Under company law the Trustees must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the 
charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, 
of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" has 

been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charitable company's website. Legislation in 
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions. 

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each of the persons 
who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the Trustees is aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware and each of the Trustees has taken all steps 
that ought to have been taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
charitable company's auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15 of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

201h July 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Report on the financial statements 

Our opinion 

In our opinion, Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements (the financial statements"): 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure and cash flows 
for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

What we have audited 

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report"), 
comprise: 

• the balance sheet as at 31 March 2017; 
• the statement of financial activities and the summary income and expenditure account for the year then 

ended; 
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland", and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the trustees have made a number of subjective judgements, for 
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions 
and considered future events. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

• the Trustees' Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the Trustees' 
Annual Report. We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Trustees' remuneration 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of 
Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this 
responsibility. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL (CONTINUED) 

Entitlement to exemptions 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the trustees were not entitled 
to take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report. We have no 
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Our responsibilities and those of the trustees 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities set out on page 6, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)"). Those standards require 
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members and trustees as a 
body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, 
in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in 
writing. 

What an audit of financial statements involves 

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: 

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 

• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and 
• the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the trustees' judgements against available evidence, 
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements. 

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider 
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing 
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Trustees' Annual Report to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently 
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of 
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for our report. With respect to the Trustees' Annual Report, we consider whether 
those reports include the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements. 

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 

fJ.. f July 2017 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 2016 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Note 

Income from: 

Donations 2 1,012,394 403,267 1,415,661 677,083 89,618 

Charitable Activities 2 82,085 82,085 

Trading Activities 2 57,990 15,375 73,365 

Other 2 26,395 26,395 

1,070,384 527,122 1,597,506 677,083 89,618 

Expenditure on: 

Raising Funds 3 264,323 264,323 98,204 

Charitable activities 4 699,962 485,003 1,184,965 352,889 73, 124 

Total Expenditure 964,285 485,003 1,449,288 451,093 73, 124 

Net Income and 
movement in funds 

106,099 42, 119 148,218 225,990 16,494 
Total Funds brought 
forward 

206, 176 46,494 252,670 (19,814.00) 16,494.00 
Total funds carried 
forward 

312,275 88,613 400,888 206, 176.00 46,494.00 

Total 

£ 

766,701 

766,701 

98,204. 

426,013 

524,217 

242,484 

242,484.00 

252,670.00 

The Statement of Financial Activities has been prepared in the current year on the basis that all operations are 
continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the Statement of Financial Activities. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained results for the year 
stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

The notes on pages 13 to 19 form part of these financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

Current assets 

Cash at bank and in hand 
Debtors 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 

Unrestricted income funds 

Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

Note 

7 

8 

9 

9 

The notes on pages 13 to 19 form part of these financial statements. 

2017 

f. 

984,040 
173,230 

(756,382) 

400,888 

400,888 

312,275 

88,613 

400,888 

2016 

£ 

486,283 

(233,613) 

252,670 

252,670 

206,176 

46,494 

252,670 

The fin cial statements on pages 9 to 19 were approved by the Board on 13th July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Company registration No. 9090276 
Charity No: 1159815 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2017 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting year 

11 

Note 

2 

2017 

£ 

497,757 

497,757 

486,283 

2016 

£ 

467, 170 

467, 170 

19, 113 

2 __ 9_8_4-'-, 0_4_0 ___ 4_8_6"'--,2_8_3_ 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Note 1: 
Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating 
activities 

Net income for the reporting year (as per the statement of 
financial activities) 

Adjustments for: 

Increase in Creditors 
Increase in Debtors 

Net cash provided by operating activities · 

Note 2: 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank 
Cash in hand 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

12 

2017 

£ 

148,218 

522,769 
(173,230) 

497,757 

2017 

£ 
983,526 

514 

984,040 

2016 

£ 

242,484 

224,686 

467,170 

2016 

£ 
486,283 

486,283 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

1. Accounting Policies 

Accounting Convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical convention. 

Basis of Preparation 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance on a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties. 
about the Charity's ability to continue. The Charity is a public benefit entity. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently. 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following: 

• Financial Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and 
Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102') 

• The Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' FRS 102 as revised in 
2015 ('the SORP 2015') 

• The Companies Act 2006 
• The historical cost convention 

Income from donations 

Donations are recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. All 
donations are shown gross of related expenditure. Tax credits receivable from gift aid donations are 
recognised when there is a valid Gift Aid declaration. 

Income is deferred where the donor has specified that the income is to be expended in a future period or where 
contractual conditions for entitlement will be met in a future period. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust International which would 
otherwise have had to be purchased. They are valued at the amount that Prince's Trust International would have 
paid in order to obtain them and are included both in income and expenditure 

Income from charitable activities 

Grants from government and income from other public sector contracts have been recorded as income from charitable 
activities. All income from charitable activities is shown gross of related expenditure. Income is deferred when the 
conditions applying to the grant are not wholly within the control of Prince's Trust International. 

Income from trading activities 

Income from trading activities is recognised when services are delivered. Income is deferred when payment has 
been received for services which are to be delivered in the future. 

Other income 

Other income relates to income which is not donations, from charitable activities or from trading activities. This income 
is recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. 

Expenditure 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs 
related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to 
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. 

The costs of raising funds include the salaries and overhead costs of the staff who undertake fund raising activities and 
the marketing and publicity costs associated with raising the profile of Prince's Trust International (but not those which 
are used in an educational manner in furtherance of the charity's objects). Other costs, in compliance with constitutional 
and statutory requirements, include external audit costs. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (CONTINUED) 

1. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Support costs include the salaries of those managerial staff which are not directly attributable to a particular programme 
of charitable work, governance costs, and of charges made by The Prince's Trust for support services (e.g. Finance, 
IT, HR and for other administrative staff and all office running costs) consumables and other overheads not specifically 
attributable to a particular programme of charitable work. 

Support costs are allocated to costs of raising funds and charitable activities on the basis of the relative effort involved, 
based on an assessment by the Charity's management. Irrecoverable VAT is included with the item of expense to 
which it relates. 

Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the 
balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to the extent that they are 
applied for their charitable objects. 

Funds 
The funds of the Charity have been segregated as follows 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes for which the resources 
can be utilised and therefore to which expenditure is restricted. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of all other income that has not been restricted. They are expendable at the discretion of 
the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of the charity. 

Financial Instruments 
The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption which is available under FRS 102 1.12 (c) (relating to sections 11 
and 12 of the standard) as a wholly owned subsidiary not to disclose the following: 
• Categories of financial instruments 
• Items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments, and 
• Exposure to and management of financial risks. 

Full disclosure in relation to financial instruments is available in the consolidated accounts of The Prince's Trust. 

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Estimates and Assumptions 
The Charity allocates support costs between different charitable activities using management's judgement of the 
proportion of effort expended on each category during the year. 

Pension Scheme 
The Prince's Trust has arranged a defined contribution pension scheme for Prince's Trust lnternational's staff. Pension 
contributions charged in the Statement of Financial Activities represent the contributions payable by the Charity in the 
year. Defined pension scheme contributions were charged to the profit and loss account as they fall due. The company 
had no potential liability other than for payment of those contributions. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (CONTINUED) 

2. Donations 

Donations from Major Donors 

Donations from Corporate Partners 

Donations from Charitable Trusts 

Donations in Kind 

Income from Charitable Activities 

National Government Income 

Income from Trading Activities 

Consulting Income 

Licensing 

Other Income 

Other Income 

Unrestricted 

£ 

798,387 

105,509 

108,498 

1,012,394 

Unrestricted 

£ 

Unrestricted 

£ 

57,990 

57,990 

Unrestricted 

£ 

Restricted 

£ 

92,600 

79,060 

198,218 

33,389 

403,267 

Restricted 

£ 

82,085 

Restricted 

£ 

15,375 

15,375 

Restricted 

£ 

26,395 

Total 
2017 

£ 

890,987 

79,060 

303,727 

141,887 

1,415,661 

Total 
2017 

£ 

82,085 

Total 
2017 

£ 

57,990 

15,375 

73,365 

Total 
2017 

£ 

26,395 

Total 
2016 

£ 

465,000 

76,453 

158,165 

67,083 

766,701 

Total 
2016 

£ 

Total 
2016 

£ 

Total 
2016 

£ 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust International, at the value at which 
Prince's Trust International would have paid. All income was generated in the UK. 

3. Expenditure on Raising Direct staff Other direct 
Funds costs costs 

£ £ 

106,281 7,357 

4. Expenditure on Charitable Direct staff Other direct 
Activities costs costs 

£ £ 
Programme scoping 146,285 25,663 
Programme delivery 167,331 401,044 

313,616 426,707 

Support costs are allocated on total costs basis. 

15 

Allocated 
support 

costs 

£ 

150,685 

Allocated 
support 

costs 

£ 

103,273 

341,369 

444,642 

Total 
2017 

£ 

264,323 

Total 
2017 

£ 

275,221 

909,744 

1,184,965 

Total 
2016 

£ 

98,204 

Total 
2016 

£ 

214,355 

211,658 

426,013 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (CONTINUED) 

Charitable Total Total 
5. Support costs Raising Funds Activities 2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 
Staff costs: 

78,400 231,344 309,744 

Other costs: 

Communications and Marketing 768 2,265 3,033 28,685 

Other staff costs 17,963 53,005 70,968 35,931 

Fees paid to The Prince's Trust 20,687 61,044 81,731 30,842 

Legal costs 22,147 65,351 87,498 

Governance Costs 3,327 9,816 13,143 6,360 

Sundry other costs 7,394 21,817 29,211 7,524 

150,686 444,642 595,328 109,342 

Governance costs includes £8,500 (2015/16: £5,300) as audit fees. 

6. Employees and Trustees' Emoluments 

Staff members 2017 2016 
No. No. 

Average Headcount of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 13 4 
Fund raising 1 
Governance 1 

14 5 

2017 2016 
No. No. 

Average monthly number of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 12 4 
Fundraising 1 
Governance 1 

13 5 

Staff costs for the above employees were: 2017 2016 
£ £ 

Wages and Salaries 576,612 198,852 
Social Security costs 68,903 21,693 
Pension and post-retirement benefits 22,140 7,594 

667,655 228,139 

Prince's Trust International also paid £61,986 (2015/16: £Nil) in redundancies during the year. The nature of the 
payments is due to restructuring and is accounted for on an accruals basis. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2017 (CONTINUED) 

Employees and Trustees' Emoluments (continued) 

6. Employee numbers 

The number of employees whose benefits fell within the following bands were: 

2017 2016 
No. No. 

£80,000 - £90,000 1 
£100,000 - £110,000 1 

Staff costs include £313,616 (2015/16: £ 205,887) for staff directly involved in delivering charitable activities, £106,281 
(2015/16: £22,252) for staff involved in raising funds and £309,744 (2015/16: £Nil) for support staff. 
For members of senior management, their remuneration totalled £225,329 (2015/16: £127,597); of this £Nil (2015/16: 
£67,083) was a benefit in kind. 

There were three (2015/16: two) members of key management personnel. 

Trustees Emoluments 
No Trustee received salaries, fees or other benefits during the year (2015/16: £Nil) 
Trustees have claimed £Nil (2015/16: £Nil) expenses. 
Two (2015/16: two) members of senior management claimed travel expenses of £13,665 (2015/16: £1,391) 

7. Debtors 

Accrued Income 

Grants Receivable 

Trade Debtors 

Other Debtors 

Total 

8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 

Trade Creditors 

Other Creditors 

Accruals 

Total 

17 

2017 

£ 

55,000 

106,190 

10,410 

1,630 

173,230 

2017 

£ 

578,011 

83,931 

13,069 

81,371 

756,382 

2016 

£ 

2016 

£ 

210,884 

14,248 

8,481 

233,613 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2017 (CONTINUED) 

9. Movement in funds 
Funds Funds 

brought carried 
forward Income Expenditure forward 

£ £ £ £ 

Scoping 

Barbados 5,000 8,400 (13,400) 

India 2,008 (2,008) 

Get Into Programmes 

Barbados 32,923 (32,923) 

Canada(Winnipeg) 55,000 (6,350) 48,650 

Jordan 28,616 (28,616) 

India 38,523 (38,523) 

Malta (Get Into Retail) 12,872 12,872 

Team Programmes 

Barbados 40,510 (40,510) 

Jordan 15,000 (15,000) 

XL Programmes 

Malta xi Pilot 28,622 29,489 (31,020) 27,091 

Mosaic Programmes 

International Leadership Programme 

• DFID funded 92,000 (92,000) 

• Other funders 81,615 (81,615) 

Enterprise Challenge 103,038 (103,038) 

Total Restricted funds 46,494 527, 122 (485,003) 88,613 

Unrestricted income funds 206, 176 1,070,384 (964,285) 312,275 

Total funds 252,670 1,597,506 (1,449,288) 400,888 

Funds are restricted against core programmes of the charity, further restricted geographically as noted above. 

10. Analysis of net assets between funds 

Funds balances at 31 March 2017 are represented by: 

Current Assets 

Total funds 

18 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

£ 

312,275 

312,275 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

88,613 

88,613 

Total Funds 
£ 

400,888 

400,888 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 (CONTINUED) 

11. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a wholly owned subsidiary ofThe Prince's Trust. The Charity is incorporated 
in England and Wales and has its own registration with the Charity Commission. The Charity's Articles of Association 
set out how The Prince's Trust exercises control over the Charity. 

As the sole Member, The Prince's Trust has the power to appoint the Chairman and has absolute discretion over the 
appointment of other Trustees. 

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity registered in the United 
Kingdom. The Prince's Trust Charity Registration Number in England & Wales is 1079675 and in Scotland is 
SC041198. The Royal Charter Number is RC000772. The consolidated financial statements of The Prince's Trust 
are available from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M ?LS. 

12. Related Party Transactions 

The charitable company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by FRS 102 on Related Party Transactions 
from disclosing transactions with entities, 100% of whose voting rights are controlled within the group, and where 
consolidated financial statements are publicly available. 

£100,000 (2015/16: £100,000) donation was received from the Dorfman Foundation, an organisation of which the 
Chairman of Prince's Trust International, Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is the Chairman and founder. Lloyd Dorfman personally 
provided £1,448 (2015/2016: £Nil) as gifts in kind. 

£137,600 (2015/16: £100,000) was received as donations from the Amersi Foundation, an organisation of which a 
Trustee of Prince's Trust International, Mohamed Amersi, is the Chairman and founder. 

£93,483 (2015/16: £67,083) was received as gifts in kind and £Nil (2015/16: £11,507) as donations from DLA 
Piper. We also received £Nil (2015/16: £10,250) as donations from Zeus Capital. Both DLA Piper and Zeus Capital 
are organisations of which Sir Nigel Knowles, a trustee of Prince's Trust International, served as Chairman during the 
financial year. 

£15,000 (2015/16: £Nil} was received as a donation from Rupert Goodman personally for the Team Programme in 
Jordan. Mr Goodman is a Trustee of Prince's Trust International. 

The Prince's Trust (parent charity) has made a working capital facility of up to £1.2 million (2015/16: £1.2 million) 
available to Prince's Trust International. 

There were no outstanding balances in relation to the above at the balance sheet date. 

13. Taxation 

The Charity was a registered charity throughout the year. As such it is not liable to corporation tax on the surplus of 
income over expenditure for the year (s478 CTA 2010) or gains arising from the disposal of assets (s256 TCGA 1992) 
so far as the proceeds are used for charitable purposes only. 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of recoverable VAT. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
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Michelle Pinggera 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the year to 31 March 2018. 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2015 and FRS 102 in 
preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The reference and administration information on page 2 forms 
part of this report. 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a charitable company and subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, who is the sole 
member. 

Principal Activities and Purposes of Prince's Trust International 

The vision of Prince's Trust International is to help unemployed young people around the globe into education, 
training and work. Prince's Trust lnternational's mission is to make a significant contribution to improving the 
lives of young people, by partnering with governments, non-governmental organisations (NGOs) and 
corporations to implement The Prince's Trust Programmes. Prince's Trust International aims to provide 
opportunities for unemployed and disengaged young people to gain the skills, motivation and self-confidence to 
contribute to their local economy and engage as active members of society. 

The primary objective of Prince's Trust International, is set out in its Articles of Association, being: 

promoting by all charitable means throughout the world the mental, spiritual, moral and physical development 
and improvement of young people and providing opportunities for them to develop their full capacities and 
enabling them to become responsible members of society so that their conditions of life may be improved. 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 2011) Prince's 
Trust International achieves its requirements for public benefit by developing programmes to meet its 
objectives. 

Prince's Trust International has successfully run pilot programmes in Australia, Barbados, Canada, India, Malta, New 
Zealand and Jordan. In prior financial years, we also undertook advisory work in Oman. We are working on and 
developing sustainable programme roll-outs in these countries. We continue to deliver the Enterprise Challenge 
programme in Jordan and Pakistan having suspended delivery in Qatar in this financial year. We completed the 
International Leadership Programme in March 2017 and have been working with participants to develop their projects 
over the last year. We started our first pilot Get into programme for Greece at the end of the financial year. Funding 
has been received from a number of companies and Founding Patrons and Patrons. The achievements are described 
in more detail below. 

Structure, governance and management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Articles of Association in England and Wales. The Articles 
form the governing document. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 

Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Articles and are collectively known as the Prince's Trust International 
Board. In order to ensure that strategy and operational activity is aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent charity), the 
Prince's Trust International Board includes the Group Chief Executive and no more than three trustees ofThe Prince's 
Trust. On joining the organisation, new Trustees receive a comprehensive induction which covers the values and 
purpose of Prince's Trust International. The induction programme covers strategy, fundraising, programmes, 
operations and governance matters. New trustees are given the opportunity to meet key staff in the London office. 

Organisational Structure 

The Prince's Trust International Board of Trustees is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The 
matters reserved for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget and business 
plan and the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International Board also retains oversight 
of management controls and corporate governance, along with the appointment of the Chief Executive and those 
Trustees not appointed by The Prince's Trust. 

The Charity is grateful for the commitment of a core group of volunteers who have assisted with its development and 
provide ongoing support in the London office. It also acknowledges the support of volunteers to the local partner 
organisations delivering the pilot projects in other countries. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

Organisational Structure 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Group CEO and Chief Executive for the day-to­
day management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with the provision of 
administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. 

A management services agreement has been put in place to govern the provision and payment for services from The 
Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International, together with a licence agreement to govern the licensing of The Prince's 
Trust know-how and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman and The Prince's Trust Group CEO, in conjunction with The Prince's Trust International 
Trustees, establish and annually review the remuneration of The Prince's Trust International members of staff 
(including senior management) in consideration of individual contribution and good practice in the Charity sector. 

The Prince's Trust Chairman is also Chairman of the Prince's Trust International Board and The Prince's Trust Group 
CEO is a member of the Prince's Trust International Board. The Prince's Trust and Prince's Trust International each 
have an independent Deputy Chairman, who is solely focused on the one charity. 

Achievements and performance 

During 2017/18 Prince's Trust International continued to develop its activities, launching pilot programmes, rolling-out 
sustainable delivery, and continuing the delivery of international programmes formerly delivered by Mosaic. Prince's 
Trust International has continued to expand its activities into new territories, as well as deepen its engagement with 
newly introduced programmes in existing markets. 

The key achievements during 2017/18 were: 

• Completing a successful pilot of the Get into programme in India. Progressing from this to enter into a 
partnership agreement with the NGO Magic Bus to secure joint funding from the Michael and Susan Dell 
Foundation and the Macquarie Group Foundation to roll the programme out to six cities in India over the 
next 2 years. 

• Continuing to expand the xi/Achieve programme in Malta, with presence in 31 schools with an eye to further 
growth in the next year though reviewing the age group of the participants. 

• To successfully run the Get into pilot in Malta and to finalise plans for the second year of delivery of the 
programmes. 

• Expanding the delivery of the Get into Programme in Jordan and to successfully deliver the Enterprise 
Challenge there too. 

• Continuing to successfully deliver the Team and Get into programmes in Barbados. 
• To jointly grow the delivery and secure funding for the Get into Programme in Canada working alongside 

Prince's Charities Canada. 
• Running a successful pilot of the Achieve Programme in New Zealand and to start on plans to roll this 

programme out. 
• To deliver the Enterprise Challenge in Pakistan, increasing the number of schools engaged and the number 

of young people participating. 
• To secure funding for and to start the pilot of the Get into programme in Greece. 
• Developing our Monitoring & Evaluation framework, undertaking mid- and post-pilot reviews, and 

comprehensively measuring our impact. 
• Successfully rebranding to align with the Prince's Trust Brand. 
• Strengthening our Risk, Health and Safety, Safeguarding and Serious Incident procedures. 

The principal funding source in the year continues to be from the Founding Patrons start-up scheme which closed at 
the end of the 2016/17 year. This is supplemented with new funding secured through our new Patron scheme as well 
as funding from corporate organisations, Trusts and Foundations. We are very grateful to all our donors for their 
generous support. 

Over the financial year, the charity developed with its lawyers, DLA Piper, a template partnership agreement which 
has been the contractual basis for delivery with all new partners. During this time, it has standardised agreements with 
all legacy delivery partners. As outlined in the 'Risk' section below, partners have been selected for their relevant 
expertise, and meet a threshold of maturity in their operations. Pilot programmes are monitored by international staff 
deployed from London, and both pilot and roll-out delivery are monitored also by staff from the Prince's Trust 
International London office. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 

In the last year, Prince's Trust International did not use volunteers to deliver its programmes overseas, but was helped 
by a small number of volunteers in its head office in London. 

In 2017/18, we operated in nine countries, supporting 2,210 young people across a range of programmes. The 
breakdown of participation by programme was Enterprise Challenge 1,581; Get into 303; Team 21; and Achieve 305. 
In Australia and Canada it should be noted that the programmes were delivered in conjunction with the Prince's Trust 
Australia and Prince's Charities Canada. 

This compared to 4,163 young people helped in 2016/17, which included Enterprise Challenge (3,516) and 647 young 
people on the other programmes. 

Financial Review 

Prince's Trust International had income for the year of £1,407,465 (2016/2017: £1,597,506) and expenditure of 
£1,322,517 (2016/2017: £1,449,288). The surplus will be retained by Prince's Trust International for investment next 
year. Financial performance for the year was broadly in line with expectations. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between four to six months of 
operational expenditure. The intention is for the core running costs to be funded through the generation of unrestricted 
funds. While Prince's Trust International is in start-up phase, The Prince's Trust (parent charity) has made a working 
capital facility of up to £1.2 million available to the Charity. This facility has not yet been drawn down. Any drawdown 
is to be repaid by 31 December 2020. 

Total funds as at 31 March 2018 were at £485,836 (2016/2017: £400,888), of which £94,808 (2016/2017: £88,613) 
were restricted funds. Unrestricted reserves £391,028 (2016/17: £312,275) represent approximately 4 months of non­
programme related expenditure. 

Risk Policy 

Prince's Trust International recognises the inherent risks in working outside the United Kingdom with disadvantaged 
young people and in raising the funds to pay for its work. The span of these risks is wide, including health and safety 
(of both staff and programme beneficiaries), safeguarding, programme development and data management. Prince's 
Trust International works to mitigate the risks that it takes and aims to help delivery partners to ensure safe and 
effective opportunities for young people. 

Prince's Trust International carries out due diligence on all countries it works in and is proposing to work in. The scope 
of due diligence includes risks relating to the country, the in-country delivery partner, and the project funder. This 
due diligence is captured within a Country Assessment Proposal that is reviewed by the Prince's Trust International 
Board, before a decision is made on whether to progress. This due diligence process has been developed with 
feedback from external advisers. 

The Charity has a risk register which scores the standing, and priority managed risks, including (but not limited to) 
our staff, partners, beneficiaries, reputation, intellectual property, quality assurance and funding. The methodology of 
this register has been developed by The Prince's Trust, and tailored to fit the needs of Prince's Trust International. 

The Board of Trustees delegates risk management to the CEO and senior management, in consultation with the 
Company Secretary. The risk register is reviewed as a standing agenda item at every Prince's Trust International 
Trustee Board meeting. New country assessments are reviewed on an ad hoc basis by the Trustee board 

Prince's Trust International has a comprehensive insurance policy, reviewed annually, and currently held with Zurich 
Insurance 

Fund raising 

Prince's Trust International, as the newest of HRH Prince of Wales' charities, is in the early stages of building its 
community of support. We have a group of key people who give their time, energy and money to help young people 
internationally. This year, as in the past two years, we are very fortunate to have small group of eleven Founding 
Patrons and other corporate and grant funding partners who contribute the vast majority of the funds required to 
support our activity in nine countries. In 2017/18, these included: 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

• Individuals - we receive donations from our community of supporters. Individuals donate to Prince's Trust 
International in a number of ways, including: 

o Regular, significant three year commitments as Founding Patrons. 
o Regular commitments as Patrons. 
o One off philanthropic gifts. 

• Corporate partnerships - we have a number corporate partners who provide funding through their 
foundations as well giving us access to networks and support both to help the development of our 
organisation and young people succeed on our programmes. 

• Charitable trusts - our work with young people is supported by a number of charitable trusts and 
foundations, one major one based in London and a small but growing number in countries we are operating 
in. These charitable trusts provide funding required to carry out our vital work. 

• Gift-in-kind - we have a small number of partners and supporters that provide their expertise, service and 
products free of charge to the charity. Some of these are delivery partners contributing their services to 
ensure high quality and sustainable programmes can be delivered. 

• Other income - alongside our fundraising activities, we have some minor income sources such as our 
employer programme fees. 

Prince's Trust International is registered with the Fundraising Regulator who holds the Code of Fundraising Practice 
for the UK. We endeavour to carry out our fundraising activities in line with the Code of Fundraising Practice and the 
expectations of our supporters. We are signed up to the Fundraising Preference Service, which gives the public 
control over the fundraising communications they receive. 

Prince's Trust International primarily fundraises through its own small development staff team and through our senior 
stakeholders who support fundraising with connections and introductions. We currently carry out no work with third 
parties. 

Prince's Trust International is committed to providing a high quality services to all of its service users, partners and 
supporters. We have a clear, publically available complaints policy that allows us to investigate thoroughly any 
complaints, communicate results, record results and review our work, enabling improvements to be made, if 
required. For the financial year 2017/18, we received zero complaints about our fundraising activities. 

Further to our complaints policy, we make a pledge to our supporters whose generous support is vitally important to 
transforming young lives. As a supporter of Prince's Trust International (PTI), we make a pledge that: 

• You can expect PTI to use your donations wisely, and to help young people in the most effective and 
efficient manner. · · 

• You can expect PTI to hold your information securely and responsibly, and we will not share any of your 
details for use by any other organisation. 

• If you have supplied your name and address, we would like to let you know how your donation is helping to 
save young lives. But we will only send you communications that you have asked for, or have agreed to 
receive, and you can choose to stop hearing from us at any time. 

Prince's Trust International is committed to protecting vulnerable people and other members of the general public 
from unreasonable intrusion on a person's privacy, unreasonably persistent fundraising approaches and placing 
undue pressure on a person to give money. Our fundraising activities follow both the Code of Fundraising Practise 
and our own ethical fundraising policy. 

To help protect vulnerable people, we have a field on our fundraising database which records a potentially 
vulnerable person. We exclude anyone flagged on the database as vulnerable from all of our fundraising 
communications. 

As such, since all our fundraising activity target major donors, the communications are bespoke and personal. We 
carry out no direct mail activity currently and there are no plans to in the foreseeable future. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 (CONTINUED) 

Future Plans 

We will continue to roll out the programmes in the countries where we have successfully run pilots. This will involve 
activity in Australia, Barbados, Canada, India, Jordan, Malta, New Zealand and Pakistan. We will continue with our 
pilot Get into programme in Greece and launch the Enterprise programme there. In the coming year we plan to 
undertake scoping in Malaysia, Jamaica and Trinidad and Tobago in preparation to run programmes in 2019. 

At the end of 2018/19 Prince's Trust International will be a little over three years old. We will have completed the first 
strategy cycle and over the course of the summer/early autumn of 2018 will be writing the plan for the next five 
years. This will seek to set out a plan that builds on the foundations established in the initial three year start-up 
phase. Quality of delivery and meaningful impact for the young people will remain at the heart of what we do - but 
we will grow over this period both in terms of the breadth of the programmes we deliver and the geographies we 
reach within existing countries and also new ones. We will track closely the strategic developments within the 
Prince's Trust to ensure that we are aligned in terms of our offer and the benefit it brings. We will, however, continue 
to ensure our offer fully recognises the specific country and cultural contexts of where we are working. We will also 
take the opportunity to explore new ways to interact with young people - that may be through a digital offer or it may 
be by developing less intense interventions. To fund this growth we will seek to increase and broaden our funder 
base. Seeking to deliver beneficial programme interventions that are in tune with their interests and funding criteria. 
We will do all this whilst meeting our high expectations for the health and safety and safeguarding of the young 
people beneficiaries and our staff team. 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and Administration section on 
page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the year. 

Qualifying indemnity provision 

In accordance with section 234 Companies Act 2006, a qualifying indemnity provision, for the benefit of all of the 
Trustees, was in force during the financial year and remains in force at the date of approval of the financial statements. 

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities 

The Trustees (who are also directors of Prince's Trust International for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
Trustees have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and applicable 
law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). Under company law the Trustees must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the 
charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, 
of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" has 

been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charitable company's website. 
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each of the persons 
who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the Trustees is aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware and each of the Trustees has taken all steps 
that ought to have been taken to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
charitable company's auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15 of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

Approved by the board on 12th July 2018 and sign on its behalf by: 

Sir L.: oyd wm:imaR-J-..c.i~~---~ 
Chairman 
PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
26th July 2018 

Company registration No. 9090276 
Charity No: 1159815 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

In our opinion, Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements (the "financial statements"): 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its 

incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, and cash flows, for 
the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and applicable law); and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual 
Report"), which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018; the statement of financial activities (including income 
and expenditure account) and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial 
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 
We remained independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 
when: 

• the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 

• the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 
significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the 
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Reporting on other information 

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and 
our auditors' report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material 
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a 
material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require 
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below. 

Trustees' Annual Reporl 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit the information given in the Trustees' Annual 
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; 
and the Trustees' Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in 
the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the Trustees' 
Annual Report. We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit 

Responsibilities of the trustees for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view. The trustees are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' 
report. 

Use of this reporl 
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members as a body in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, 
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into 
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

Other required reporting 

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by us; or 
• certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Entitlement to exemptions 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the Trustees were not entitled to 
take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report. We have no exceptions to 
report arising from this responsibility. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
London 

'-{o July 2018 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Note 

Income from: 

Donations 2 1,009,735 325,781 1,335,516 1,012,394 403,267 

Charitable Activities 2 18,662 18,662 82,085 

Trading Activities 2 20,699 20,699 57,990 15,375 

Other 2 32,588 32,588 26,395 

1,009,735 397,730 1,407,465 1,070,384 527,122 

Expenditure on: 

Raising Funds 3 614,893 614,893 264,323 

Charitable activities 4 356,814 350,810 707,624 699,962 485,003 

Total Expenditure 971,707 350,810 1,322,517 964,285 485,003 

Transfer between funds 
40,725 (40,725) 

Net Income and 
movement in funds 

78,753 6,195 84,948 106,099 42, 119 
Total Funds brought 
forward 

312,275 88,613 400,888 206, 176 46,494 
Total funds carried 
forward 

391,028 94,808 485,836 312,275 88,613 

Total 

£ 

1,415,661 

82,085 

73,365 

26,395 

1,597,506 

264,323 

1,184,965 

1,449,288 

148,218 

252,670 

400,888 

_The Statement of Financial Activities has. been prepared in· the· current year on the ·basis that all operations are -
continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the Statement of Financial Activities. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained results for the year 
stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

The notes on pages 16 to 22 form part of these financial statements. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31MARCH2018 

Current assets 

Cash at bank and in hand 
Debtors 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 

Unrestricted income funds 

Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

Note 

7 

8 

9 

9 

The notes on pages 16 to 22 form part of these financial statements. 

2018 

£ 

568,099 
85,943 

(168,206) 

485,836 

485,836 

391,028 

94,808 

485,836 

2017 

£ 

984,040 
173,230 

(756,382) 

400,888 

400,888 

312,275 

88,613 

400,888 

The financial statements on pages 12 to 22 were approved by the Board on 121h July 2018 and signed on its behalf 
by: 

Company registration No. 9090276 
Charil¥ No: 11_59_815. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 
year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting year 

14 

Note 

1 

2 

2 

2018 

£ 

(415,941) 

(415,941) 

984,040 

568,099 

2017 

£ 

497,757 

497,757 

486,283 

984,040 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

Note 1: 
Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from 
operating activities 

Net income for the reporting year (as per the statement of 
financial activities) 

Adjustments for: 

(Decrease)/ Increase in Creditors 
Decrease I (Increase) in Debtors 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Note 2: 
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank 
Cash in hand 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

15 

2018 
£ 

84,948 

(588, 176) 
87,287 

(415,941) 

2018 
£ 

568,099 

568,099 

2017 

£ 

148,218 

522,769 
(173,230) 

497,757 

2017 
£ 

983,526 
514 

984,040 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 

1. Accounting Policies 

Accounting Convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical convention. 

Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern basis. There are no material 
uncertainties about the Charity's ability to continue. The Charity is a public benefit entity. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently. 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following: 

• Financial Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and 
Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102') 

• The Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' FRS 102 as revised in 
2015 ('the SORP 2015') 

• The Companies Act 2006 
• The historical cost convention 

Income from donations 
Donations are recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. All 
donations are shown gross of related expenditure. Tax credits receivable from gift aid donations are recognised 
when there is a valid Gift Aid declaration. 

Income is deferred where the donor has specified that the income is to be expended in a future period or where 
contractual conditions for entitlement will be met in a future period. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust International which would 
otherwise have had to be purchased. They are valued at the amount that Prince's Trust International would have 
paid in order to obtain them and are included both in income and expenditure 

Income from charitable activities 
Grants from government and income from other public sector contracts have been recorded as income from 
charitable activities. All income from charitable activities is shown gross of related expenditure. Income is deferred 
when the conditions applying to the grant are not wholly within the control of Prince's Trust International. 

Income from trading activities 
Income from trading activities is recognised when services are delivered. Income is deferred when payment has 
been received for services which are to be delivered in the future. 

Other income 
Other income relates to income which is not donations, from charitable activities or from trading activities. This 
income is recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. 

Expenditure 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs 
related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to 
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. 

The costs of raising funds include the salaries and overhead costs of the staff who undertake fundraising activities and 
the marketing and publicity costs associated with raising the profile of Prince's Trust International (but not those which 
are used in an educational manner in furtherance of the Charity's objects). Other costs, in compliance with 
constitutional and statutory requirements, include external audit costs. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS , 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

1. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Support costs include the salaries of those managerial staff which are not directly attributable to a particular programme 
of charitable work, governance costs, and of charges made by The Prince's Trust for support services (e.g. Finance, 
IT, HR and for other administrative staff and all office running costs) consumables and other overheads not specifically 
attributable to a particular programme of charitable work. 

Support costs are allocated to costs of raising funds and charitable activities on the basis of the relative effort involved, 
based on an assessment by the Charity's management. Irrecoverable VAT is included with the item of expense to 
which it relates. 

Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the 
balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to the extent that they are 
applied for their charitable objects. 

Funds 
The funds of the Charity have been segregated as follows 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes for which the resources 
can be utilised and therefore to which expenditure is restricted. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of all other income that has not been restricted. They are expendable at the discretion of 
the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of the charity. 

Financial Instruments 
The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption which is available under FRS 102 1.12 (c) (relating to sections 11 
and 12 of the standard) as a wholly owned subsidiary not to disclose the following: 
• Categories of financial instruments 
• Items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments, and 
• Exposure to and management of financial risks. 

Full disclosure in relation to financial instruments is available in the consolidated financial statements of The Prince's 
Trust. 

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Estimates and Assumptions .. 
The Charity allocates support costs between different charitable activities using management's judgement of the 
proportion of effort expended on each category during the year. 

Pension Scheme 
The Prince's Trust has arranged a defined contribution pension scheme for Prince's Trust lnternational's staff. Pension 
contributions charged in the Statement of Financial Activities represent the contributions payable by the Charity in the 
year. Defined pension scheme contributions were charged to the profit and loss account as they fall due. The company 
had no potential liability other than for payment of those contributions. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

2. Donations 

Donations from Major Donors 

Donations from Corporate Partners 

Donations from Charitable Trusts 

Donations from Individuals 

Donations in Kind 

Income from Charitable Activities 

National Government Income 

Income from Trading Activities 

Consulting Income 

Licensing 

Other Income 

Other Income 

Unrestricted 

£ 

896,250 

67 

97,318 

5,745 

10,355 

1,009,735 

Unrestricted 

£ 

Unrestricted 

£ 

Unrestricted 

£ 

Restricted 

£ 

103,340 

33,540 

188,901 

325,781 

Restricted 

£ 

18,662 

Restricted 

£ 

20,699 

20,699 

Restricted 

£ 

32,588 

Total 2018 Total 2017 

£ £ 

999,590 890,987 

33,607 79,060 

286,219 303,727 

5,745 

10,355 141,887 

1,335,516 1,415,661 

Total Total 
2018 2017 

£ £ 

18,662 82,085 

Total Total 
2018 2017 

£ £ 

57,990 

20,699 15,375 

20,699 73,365 

Total Total 
2018 2017 

£ £ 

32,588 26,395 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust International, at the value at which 
Prince's Trust International would have paid. All income was generated in the UK. 

Allocated 
3. Expenditure on Raising Direct staff Other direct support Total Total 

Funds costs costs costs 2018 2017 

£ £ £ £ £ 

92,589 148,951 373,353 614,893 264,323 

Allocated 
4. Expenditure on Charitable Direct staff Other direct support Total Total 

Activities costs costs costs 2018 2017 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Programme scoping 16,296 19,026 35,322 275,221 
Programme delivery 94,523 215,655 362,124 672,302 909,744 

94,523 231,951 381, 150 707,624 1, 184,965 

Support costs are allocated on total costs basis. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

5. Support costs Raising Funds 

£ 
Staff costs: 

266,592 

Other costs: 

Communications and Marketing 240 

Other staff costs 22,085 

Fees paid to The Prince's Trust 61,438 

Legal costs 5,124 

Governance Costs 6,506 

Sundry other costs 11,368 

373,353 

Governance costs includes £10,000 (2016/17: £8,500) as audit fees. 

6. Employees and Trustees' Emoluments 

Staff members 

Average Headcount of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 
Fundraising 
Governance 

Average monthly number of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 
Fund raising 
Governance 

Staff costs forlhe above employees were: 

Wages and Salaries 
Social Security costs 
Pension and post-retirement benefits 

Charitable Total 
Activities 2018 

£ £ 

272,160 538,752 

246 486 

22,546 44,631 

62,720 124, 158 

5,231 10,355 

6,642 13,148 

11,605 22,973 

381,150 754,503 

2018 
No. 

16 
2 

18 

2018 
No. 

13 
2 

15 

2018 
£ 

636,291 
68,278 
20,502 

725,071 

Prince's Trust International also paid £nil (2016/17: £61,986) in redundancies during the year. 
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Total 
2017 

£ 

309,744 

3,033 

70,968 

81,731 

87,498 

13,143 

29,211 

595,328 

2017 
No. 

13 
1 

14 

2017 
No. 

12 
1 

13 

2017 
£ 

576,612 
68,903 
22,140 

667,655 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

Employees and Trustees' Emoluments (continued) 

Employee numbers 

The number of employees whose benefits fell within the following bands were: 

£90,000 - £100,000 
£120,000 - £130,000 

2018 
No. 

1 

2017 
No. 
1 
1 

Staff costs include £94,523 (2016/17: £ 313,616) for staff directly involved in delivering charitable activities, £92,589 
(2016/17: £106,281) for staff involved in raising funds and £538,752 (2016/17: £309,744) for support staff. 
The total remuneration of key management was £150, 152 (2016/17: £225,329). 

There were two (2016/17: three) members of key management personnel. 

Trustees' Emoluments 
No Trustee received salaries, fees or other benefits during the year (2016/17: £nil). 
Trustees' have claimed £nil (2016/17: £nil) expenses. 
Two (2016/17: two) members of key management claimed travel expenses of £25,441 (2016/17: £13,665). 

7. Debtors 2018 2017 

£ £ 

Accrued Income 65,659 55,000 

Grants Receivable 106,190 

Trade Debtors 13,540 10,410 

Other Debtors 3,293 1,630 

Prepayments 3,451 
Total 85,943 173,230 

8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2018 2017 

£ £ 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 125,926 578,011 

Trade Creditors 17,612 83,931 

Other Creditors 7,218 13,069 

Accruals 17,450 81,371 

Total 168,206 756,382 

20 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

9. Movement in funds 

Scoping 

Barbados (non-core_ 

Get into Programmes 

Barbados 

Canada (Winnipeg) 
Canada (Toronto) 
Greece 
Jordan 

India 
Malta 
Malta (Get into Retail) 

Team Programmes 

Barbados 

Achieve Programmes 

Malta Achieve 

Mosaic Programmes 

International Leadership Programme 

• DFID funded 

Enterprise Challenge 

Total Restricted funds 

Unrestricted income funds 

Total funds 

Funds 
brought 
forward 

£ 

48,650 

12,872 

27,091 

88,613 

312,275 

400,888 

Transfer of 
Funds 

£ 

(19,133) 

(8,720) 

(12,872) 

(40,725) 

40,725 

Income 
£ 

3,340 

43,474 

20,644 
100,000 
32,588 
49,046 
27,418 

28,526 

40,833 

18,662 

33, 199 

397,730 

1,009,735 

1,407,465 

Expenditure 
£ 

(43,474) 

(20,644) 
(34,709) 
(23,868) 
(49,046) 
(27,418) 

(28,526) 

(67,924) 

(18,662) 

(33, 199) 

(350,810) 

(971,707) 

(1,322,517) 

Funds 
carried 
forward 

£ 

29,517 

65,291 

94,808 

391,028 

485,836 

- ·Funds are restricted againsfoore programfr,-es- of ttiecharity,-fuith-er-restricted geographically as noted above. 
The transfer of funds relates to income which was carried forward from 16/17 which should have been released as 
expenditure against the respective projects in the prior year. 

10. Analysis of net assets between funds 

Funds balances at 31 March 2018 are represented by: 

Current Assets 

Total funds 
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Unrestricted 
Funds 

£ 

391,028 

391,028 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

94,808 

94,808 

Total Funds 
£ 

485,836 

485,836 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2018 (CONTINUED) 

11. The Ultimate Parent undertaking and controlling party 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a wholly owned subsidiary ofThe Prince's Trust. The Charity is incorporated 
in England and Wales and has its own registration with the Charity Commission. The Charity's Articles of Association 
set out how The Prince's Trust exercises control over the Charity. 

As the sole member, The Prince's Trust has the power to appoint the Chairman and up to three Trustees. 

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity registered in the United 
Kingdom. The Prince's Trust Charity Registration Number in England & Wales is 1079675 and in Scotland is 
SC041198. The Royal Charter Number is RC000772. The consolidated financial statements of The Prince's Trust 
are available from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M 7LS. 

12. Related Party Transactions 

The Charity has had transactions throughout the year with its parent company, The Prince's Trust, totalling £408,592 
relating to staff salaries and expenses, procurement cards, Click Travel and recharges for facilities, licence fee and 
management fees. At the year end £125,926 was outstanding and included within creditors. The Prince's Trust 
(parent charity) has made a working capital facility of up to £1.2 million (2016/17: £1.2 million) available to Prince's 
Trust International, which was not drawn down (2016/17: not drawn down). 

The Charity has supported Prince's Charities Canada, a sister charity of The Prince's Trust Group, to deliver the Get 
into programme. Prince's Charities Canada has agreed to reimburse Prince's Trust International for costs incurred in 
providing this support and £20,644 has been included within accrued income as at 31st March 2018 (2016/17: £nil). 

£100,000 (2016/17: £100,000) donation was received from the Dorfman Foundation, an organisation of which the 
Chairman of Prince's Trust International, Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is the Chairman and founder. £2,048 (2016/17: £nil) 
was received for meeting spaces from Esselco Group Ltd, an organisation of which the Chairman of Prince's Trust 
International, Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is a Director. £2,200 (2016/17: £1,448) was received as gift-in-kind donations 
from Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE. 

£115,000 (2016/2017: £137,600) was received as donations from the Amersi Foundation, an organisation of which a 
Trustee of Prince's Trust International, Mohamed Amersi, is the Chairman and founder. 

£15,000 (2016/2017: £15,000) was received as a donation from Rupert Goodman personally towards Prince's Trust 
International costs for an event in March 2018. Mr Goodman is a Trustee of Prince's Trust International. 

There were no outstanding balances in relation to the above at the balance sheet date. 

13. Taxation 

The Charity was a registered charity throughout the year. As such it is not liable to corporation tax on the surplus of 
income over expenditure forthe year (s478 CTA 2010) or gains arising from the disposal of assets (s256 TCGA 1992) 
so far as the proceeds are used for charitable purposes only. 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of recoverable VAT. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the charity in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were: 

Chief Executive 

Company Secretary 

Company number 

Charity number 

Governing Document 

Registered office · 

Independent Auditors 

Bankers 

Principal Solicitors 

Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE (Chairman) 

Rupert Goodman DL (Deputy Chairman) 
Mohammed Amersi 
Dame Martina Milburn DCVO CBE 
Michelle Pinggera 
Alistair Summers 
Farah Golant (Appointed September 2018) 
Antonio Simoes (Appointed November 2018) 

Jonathan Townsend 

Simon Major 

9090276 

1159815 

Articles of Association 

Prince's Trust House 
9 Eldon Street 
London 
EC2M ?LS 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
1 Embankment Place 
London 
WC2N6RH 

National Westminster Bank pie 
3rd Floor 
280 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M4RB 

DLA Piper UK LLP 
3 Noble Street 
London 
EC2V7EE 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements for the year to 31 March 2019. 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of Companies Act 2006, SORP 2015 and FRS 102 in 
preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The reference and administration information on page 2 
forms part of this report. 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a charitable company and subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, which is the 
sole member. 

Principal Activities and Purposes of Prince's Trust International 

The vision of Prince's Trust International is that every young person should have the chance to succeed. 
Prince's Trust lnternational's mission is that working in partnerships, we support young people to gain the 
confidence and skills to live, learn and earn. Prince's Trust International aims to provide opportunities for 
unemployed and disengaged young people to bridge the gap between education and employment, to allow 
them to contribute to their local economy and engage as active members of society. 

The primary objective of Prince's Trust International, is set out in its Articles of Association, being: 

"promoting by all charitable means throughout the world the mental, spiritual, moral and physical 
development and improvement of young people and providing opportunities for them to develop their 
full capacities and enabling them to become responsible members of society so that their conditions of 
life may be improved." 

In accordance with Charity Commission guidance on public benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 2011 ), Prince's 
Trust International achieves its requirements for public benefit by developing programmes to meet its 
objectives. 

During 2018/19, Prince's Trust International successfully ran programmes in Australia, Barbados, Canada, India, 
Jordan, Malta, New Zealand and Pakistan. We completed pilot programmes for both employability and Enterprise in 
Greece and additional personal development programmes in Jordan. 

Additional pilot projects were identified in Jamaica and Trinidad & Tobago, where contract planning has begun and 
delivery is anticipated to begin in the 2019/20 financial year. 

Structure, Governance and Management 

Prince's Trust International is a charity incorporated by Articles of Association in England and Wales. The Articles 
form the governing document. 

Trustee Recruitment, Appointment and Training 

Trustees are appointed in accordance with the Articles and are collectively known as the Prince's Trust International 
Board. In order to ensure that strategy and operational activity are aligned to The Prince's Trust (parent charity), the 
Prince's Trust International Board includes the Group Chief Executive and no more than three trustees of The 
Prince's Trust. On joining the organisation, new Trustees receive a comprehensive induction which covers the 
values and purpose of Prince's Trust International. The induction programme covers strategy, fundraising, 
programmes, operations and governance matters. New trustees are given the opportunity to meet key staff in the 
London office. 

Organisational Structure 

The Prince's Trust International Board of Trustees is accountable for the work of Prince's Trust International. The 
matters reserved for the Prince's Trust International Board include the approval of strategy, the budget and business 
plan and the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The Prince's Trust International Board also retains oversight 
of management controls and corporate governance, along with the appointment of the Chief Executive and those 
Trustees not appointed by The Prince's Trust. 

The Charity is grateful for the commitment of a core group of volunteers who have assisted with its development and 
provide ongoing support in the London office. It also acknowledges the support of volunteers to the local partner 
organisations delivering the pilot projects in other countries. 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

The Prince's Trust International Board has delegated authority to the Chief Executive for the day-to-day 
management of the organisation. The Prince's Trust supports Prince's Trust International with the provision of 
administrative resource, including the monitoring of programmes. 

A management services agreement has been put in place to govern the provision and payment for services from 
The Prince's Trust to Prince's Trust International, together with a licence agreement to govern the licensing of The 
Prince's Trust know-how and intellectual property for use by Prince's Trust International, all on commercial terms. 

The Prince's Trust International Chairman and The Prince's Trust Group CEO, in conjunction with The Prince's Trust 
International Trustees, establish and annually review the remuneration of The Prince's Trust International members 
of staff (including senior management) in consideration of their individual contribution and in accordance with good 
practice in the Charity sector. 

Until July 2018 the Chairman of Prince's Trust International was also the Chairman of The Prince's Trust. The 
Prince's Trust Group CEO is a member of the Prince's Trust International Board. The Prince's Trust and Prince's 
Trust International each now has an independent Chairman and Deputy Chairman, who are solely focused on each 
respective charity. 

Achievements and Performance 

Prince's Trust International continued to build its activities, launching further pilot programmes and scaling up and 
rolling out continued sustainable delivery. 

The key achievements during 2018/2019 were: 

);>- Supporting 4,322 young people in the year across nine countries: Australia, Barbados, Canada, Greece, 
India, Jordan, Malta, New Zealand and Pakistan. 

);>- Prince's Trust International has supported a total of 10,861 young people since its establishment in 2015/16. 
);>- Barbados: delivery of the Team and Get Into programmes continued successfully, with 59 per cent of young 

people achieving positive outcomes on the Get Into programme. Prince's Trust International plans to 
increase delivery of both programmes from 2019/20 onwards. 

);>- Greece: an employability pilot programme was completed successfully in Athens, with plans to roll out and 
double delivery in the 2019/20 financial year. 

);>- Malta: delivery of the Achieve education programme continued to grow in schools in Malta. In addition 
to traditional Achieve clubs, we introduced standalone modular delivery to engage a wider range of 
students. 

);>- Jordan: our Enterprise Challenge programme continued to grow and is due to double in size during 
2019/20. Eighty-eight per Gent of the young people completing the Get Into programme in Jordan 
secured employment afterwards. 

);>- India: with our partner Magic Bus, we supported 263 young people (including 100 young women) 
through our Get Into employability programme, which engaged with fifty employers in India. Two-thirds 
of the young people who completed the programme moved into employment at the end of their work 
placements. 

);>- Pakistan: Between August 2018 and January 2019, Prince's Trust International and Seed Ventures ran 
the Enterprise Challenge Programme for the third consecutive year across seven regions in Pakistan: 
Sindh, Punjab, Baluchistan, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Kashmir, Federal and Gilgit Baltistan. 
1050 students took part in the Programme, an increase by 55% compared to the previous year, where 
675 students started the programme. 487 students taking part in the programme were female. This 
represents 46% of total number of students. 

);>- Australia. Canada and New Zealand: we supported the newly-established Prince's Trust charities in 
Australia, Canada and New Zealand and by March 2019 successfully handed over responsibility for 
programme delivery to them. 

Two young people were the first Global Award winners at the 2019 Prince's Trust Awards: Nilam Tambe (from 
India) and Ahmad Abu Rumman (from Jordan), who both travelled to the UK to collect their award and took part in a 
young people workshop. 
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TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2019 

''This course is a life changing experience for me. I had no guidance, but Magic Bus guided me with the right 
skills, trained me on many things like lite skills which I am imµl1:1f111:mling at my workplace and personal life. The 
best part is that I have successfully achieved my dream in such a less time. T11ank you so much for bringing a 
good change in my life." 

Nilam, Participant of the Get Into Proqramme with Kidzania and 2019 Global Award Winner 

1 
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The Charity grew its staff team substantially during 2018/19, including recruitment of programme delivery staff 
and support staff such as HR, legal and security specialists. This resulted in the development of further 
frameworks to support our delivery. Following a consultant-led gap analysis for Health, Safety and Security to 
strengthen our offer and frameworks, we provided additional training and support for staff and delivery partners. 
Volunteers continued to support Prince's Trust International in the UK head office; and volunteers also 
supported our strategic partners in the various countries where we operate. 

''The Enterprise Challenge Pakistan Programme gave me a fantastic opportunity to meet, listen to and engage with 
some truly talented students of AJK school. Despite having limited resources, these students have amazingly high 
energy and have demonstrated entrepreneurial potential. This is a really wonderful opportunity for the students, to 
prepare them for the real world." Im ran, Mentor for the Enterprise Challenge 

"My hobby is to handcraft accessories at home. Through Enterprise Challenge I learned to develop my hobby and 
make it a future profitable business. I learnt how to tum ideas into small projects and that success depends on 

essential components; commitment, organization skills, time management and respect for deadlines." 
Suzie Al Aasar, Maysaloon Primary School for Girls 

''Tariqi helped me develop my personality and improve my skills and, most importantly, it connected us to the sector 
step by step." 

Leen Kana'an, Tariqi Retail Participant, Jordan 2019 

''Thanks to the Explore Enterprise Programme, I had the chance to learn all the steps required to start my own 
business and get informed about many different aspects of the Greek market, for free! I would definitely recommend 
it to other young people." - Dimitra Gaitaneri, Explore Enterprise participant, Greece 
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"We have students who wouldn't be in school or achieve any 0 levels but for this programme which gives young 
people another chance and gives them help and guidance and skills so that they can go on to complete their 0 
levels" - Andrew Giordmaina and Ms Elise Ellul St Albert the Great College, Malta 

A Team participant at the Salvation Army as part of their Team Challenge, Barbados 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Financial Review 

Prince's Trust International had actual income for the year of £1,725,939 (2017/18: £1,407,465) and expenditure of 
£1,855,451 (2017/18: £1,322,517). The budget plan initially provided for a small surplus of around £90,000 to 
continue building the reserves of the Charity. Following Trustees' approval of the Prince's Trust International 2019-
2024 Strategy in November 2018, a decision was made to invest this planned surplus in some early staff recruitment 
to kick-start the Strategy from April 2019. Not all of the expected income was able to be recognised before 31 March 
2019, resulting in a deficit for the year of £129,512 (2017/18: surplus of £84,948). This income was received by May 
2019 and will be added to the budgeted surplus for 2019/20 to compensate for the reduction .in reserves in 2018/19. 

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees review the reserves policy annually and target a level of free reserves of between four to six months of 
operational expenditure. The intention is for the core running costs to be funded through the generation of 
unrestricted funds. The Prince's Trust (parent charity) has renewed the working capital facility, of up to £1,200,000, 
available to Prince's Trust International. This facility has not yet been drawn down. Any drawdown is to be repaid by 
31 December 2020. 

Total funds as at 31March2019 were at£356,324 (2017/18: £485,836), of which £104,419 (2017/18: £94,808) were 
restricted funds. Unrestricted reserves £251,905 (2017/18: £391,028) represent approximately two months of non­
programme related expenditure. We will be working to rebuild this to the required level during 2019/20. 

Risk Policy 

Prince's Trust International recognises the inherent risks in working with disadvantaged young people outside the 
United Kingdom and in raising the funds to pay for its work. The span of these risks is wide, including 
Safeguarding, Health and Safety (related to both staff and programme beneficiaries), Programme Development 
and Data Management. Prince's Trust International works to mitigate the risks that it takes and aims to help 
delivery partners to ensure safe and effective opportunities for young people. 

Prince's Trust International carries out due diligence on all countries where it works and is proposing to work. The 
scope of due diligence includes risks relating to the country, the in-country delivery partner, and the project funder. 
This due diligence is captured within a Country Assessment Proposal that is reviewed by the Prince's Trust 
International Board, before a decision is made on whether to progress. This due diligence process has been 
developed with feedback from external advisers. 

The Charity has a Risk Register, which scores and ranks the status of risks, including (but not limited to) our staff, 
partners, beneficiaries, reputation, intellectual property, quality assurance and funding. The methodology of this 
Risk Register has been developed by The Prince's Trust and tailored to fit the needs of Prince's Trust International. 

The Board of Trustees delegates risk management to the CEO and senior management, in consultation with the 
Company Secretary and The Prince's Trust's Senior Head of Group Risk & Assurance. The Risk Register is 
reviewed as a standing agenda item at every Prince's Trust International Trustee Board meeting. New Country 
Assessments are reviewed on an ad hoc basis by the Trustee board. 

Prince's Trust International has a comprehensive insurance policy, reviewed annually, and currently held with 
Zurich Insurance. 

Fund raising 

Since 2015/16, Prince's Trust International has grown to support over 10,000 young people across the world. This is 
an exciting time for the Charity as it prepares to implement our new 2019/24 Strategy to raise a total of £50,000,000 
and to support 100,000 young people to transform their lives over the five years. As part of this Strategy, we are 
planning to support many more young people in existing locations and to explore and begin delivery in additional 
countries. 

In order to achieve these ambitions, the Charity will broaden and diversify its income; growing the portfolio of 
philanthropic donors to support our work, whilst pursuing innovative funding partnerships through corporates, 
foundations and multilateral donors that can leverage the financial and technical resources to deliver sustainable 
impact at scale. Bridging the gap between Business, Philanthropy and Young People we will enable our supporters 
and partners to fund and deliver innovative, practical solutions for their Philanthropy that has effective, seamless and 
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sustainable impact and growth. We will create dynamic philanthropic partnerships that inspire individuals, families, 
foundations and businesses to support the growth of our work. 

By building on The Prince's Trust's long history and extensive experience of working with philanthropists, businesses 
and delivery partners, we will develop and provide a Philanthropy service that is truly inspired, dynamic, and 
insightful, with practical guidance on effective giving for our donors, suited to their ambitions and resources 
around helping young people on their journey to live, learn and earn. 

Prince's Trust International primarily fundraises through its own staff team and through our senior stakeholders, who 
support fundraising with connections and introductions. We currently do not carry out any fundraising activities with 
third parties. 

Prince's Trust International is registered with the Fundraising Regulator. We endeavour to carry out our fundraising 
activities in line with the Code of Fundraising Practice, our own ethical fundraising policy and the expectations of our 
supporters. We are signed up to the Fundraising Preference Service, which gives the public control over the 
fundraising communications they receive. 

Prince's Trust International is committed to providing high quality services to all of its service users, partners and 
supporters. We have a clear, publicly available complaints policy that allows us to investigate thoroughly any 
complaints, communicate results, record results and review our work, enabling improvements to be made, if 
required. For the financial year 2018/19, we received zero complaints about our fundraising activities (2017/18: nil). 

Further to our complaints policy, we make a pledge to our supporters whose generous support is vitally important to 
transforming young lives. As a supporter of Prince's Trust International, we make a pledge that: 

• You can expect Prince's Trust International to use your donations wisely, and to help young people in the 
most effective and efficient manner. 

• You can expect Prince's Trust International to hold your information securely and responsibly, and we will 
not share any of your details for use by any other organisation. 

• If you have supplied your name and address, we would like to let you know how your donation is helping to 
transform young lives. We will only send·you communications that you have asked for, or have agreed to 
receive, and you can choose to stop hearing from us at any time. 

Prince's Trust International is committed to protecting vulnerable people and other members of the general public 
from unreasonable intrusion on their privacy, unreasonably persistent fundraising approaches and placing undue 
pressure on any individual to give money. To help protect vulnerable people, we have a field on our fundraising 
database which records a potentially vulnerable person. We exclude anyone flagged on the database as vulnerable 
from all of our fundraising communications. 

Since all our fundraising activities target major donors, the communications are bespoke and personal. We carry out 
no direct mail activity currently and there are no plans to in the foreseeable future. 

Future Plans 

As part of our five-year Strategic Plan (2019/24), Prince's Trust International has developed a regional strategy for 
each of Africa, Asia, Caribbean & Americas, Europe and the Middle East & North Africa. 

The Charity will continue its work in the following countries: Barbados, Greece, India, Jordan, Malta and Pakistan. 
During 2019/20, we expect to start piloting programmes in Ghana, Jamaica, Kenya, Malaysia and Trinidad & 
Tobago. Over 2019/24, we will aim to build up our work in each of these countries as well as considering other 
countries as capacity and opportunity allows. 

We intend for our programme offer to be more flexible and to create more opportunities for us to support young 
people. We will explore the opportunity to support young people through a digital platform. We aim to build the 
profile of the organisation and our brand, leverage our inherent strengths and convene a range of audiences. We 
will have a rigorous and robust Monitoring and Evaluation framework that will allow us to understand and 
communicate clearly our impact. 
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To fund this growth, we will seek to increase and broaden our funder base in order to deliver beneficial programme 
interventions that meet the strategic objectives of the Charity. We will do this whilst meeting our high expectations for 
the health and safety and safeguarding of the young people beneficiaries and our staff team. 

Trustees 

The Trustees of the Charity as at the date of this report are set out in the Reference and Administration section on 
page 2 and, unless stated otherwise, served throughout the year. 

Qualifying Indemnity Provision 

In accordance with section 234 Companies Act 2006, a qualifying indemnity provision, for the benefit of the Trustees, 
was in force during the financial year and remains in force at the date of approval of the financial statements. 

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities 

The Trustees (who are also directors of Prince's Trust International for the purposes of company law) are 
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and regulations. 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the 
Trustees have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and 
applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). Under company law, the Trustees must 
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of the 
affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income 
and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 

Ireland" has been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the Charity's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Charity and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Charity's website. 

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement of Disclosure of Information to Auditors 

In accordance with section 418 Companies Act 2006, the Trustees confirm that, in the case of each of the persons 
who are Trustees at the time when this report is approved, so far as each of the Trustees is aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware and each of the Trustees has 
taken all steps that ought to have been taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that information. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15 
of the Companies Act 2006. 
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Approved by the board on 17th September 2019 and signed on its behalf by: 

Sir~E;;;;;:;;:;~=.:::.;::~\----=----­

Chairman 
PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 
23rd September 2019 

Company registration No. 9090276 
Charity No: 1159815 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBER OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

In our opinion, Prince's Trust lnternational's financial statements (the "financial statements"): 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, and cash flows, for 
the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland", and applicable law); and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual 
Report"), which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019; the statement of financial activities (including 
income and expenditure account) and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the 
financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 
We remained independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions Relating to Going Concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to 
you when: 

• the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
not appropriate; or 

• the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 
significant doubt about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to 
the charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United 
Kingdom may withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential 
implications on the charitable company's activities, beneficiaries, suppliers and the wider economy. 

Reporting on Other Information 

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements 
and our auditors' report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion 
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent 
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether 
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. 

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) 
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below. 

Trustees' Annual Report 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit the information given in the Trustees' 
Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
financial statements; and the Trustees' Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements. 

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the 
Trustees' Annual Report. We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements and the Audit 

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Financial Statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustee's responsibilities set out on page 9, the Trustees {who are 
also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the 
preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view. The Trustees are also responsible for such internal control as they determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditors' report. 

Use of this Report 

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the charity's members as a1body in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, 
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into 
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. 

Other Required Reporting 

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 
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• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 

from branches not visited by us; or 
• certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 

Entitlement to exemptions 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the Trustees were not entitled to 
take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a Strategic Report. We have no exceptions to 
report arising from this responsibility. 

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 

London 
2 ~ September 2019 
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PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2019 

2019 2018 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Note 

Income from: 

Donations 2 1,009,561 647,733 1,657,294 1,009,735 325,781 

Charitable Activities 2 18,662 

Trading Activities 2 33,575 33,575 20,699 

Other 2 35,070 35,070 32,588 

1,009,561 716,378 1,725,939 1,009,735 397,730 

Expenditure on: 

Raising Funds 3 474,857 474,857 614,893 

Charitable activities 4 673,827 706,767 1,380,594 356,814 350,810 

Total Expenditure 1,148,684 706,767 1,855,451 971,707 350,810 

Transfer between funds 
40,725 (40,725) 

Net (expenditure)/ 
income and movement 
in funds {139,123} 9,611 {129,512} 78,753 6,195 
Total Funds brought 
forward 391,028 94,808 485,836 312,275 88,613 
Total funds carried 
forward 

251,905 104,419 356,324 391,028 94,808 

Total 

£ 

1,335,516 

18,662 

20,699 

32,588 

1,407,465 

614,893 

707,624 

1,322,517 

84,948 

400,888 

485,836 

The Statement of Financial Activities has been prepared in the current year on the basis that all operations are 
continuing operations. 

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the Statement of Financial Activities. 

There is no difference between the results on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained results for the year 
stated above, and their historical cost equivalents. 

The notes on pages 18 to 24 form part of these Financial Statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31MARCH2019 

Current assets 
Cash at bank and in hand 
Debtors 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Net current ass~ts 

Net assets 

The funds of the Charity: 

Unrestricted income funds 

Restricted income funds 

Total Charity funds 

Note 

7 

8 

9 

9 

The notes on pages 18 to 24 form part of these financial statements. 

2019 

£ 

497,131 
122,074 

(262,881) 

356,324 

356,324 

251,905 

104,419 

356,324 

2018 

£ 

568,099 
85,943 

(168,206) 

485,836 

485,836 

391,028 

94,808 

485,836 

The financial statements on pages 14 to 24 were approved by the Board on 1 ]1h September 2019 and signed on its 
behQlUl-I~--

Company registration No. 9090276 
Charity No: 1159815 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2019 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 
year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting year 

16 

Note 

A 

B 

B 

2019 

£ 

(70,968) 

(70,968) 

568,099 

497, 131 

2018 

£ 

(415,941) 

(415,941) 

984,040 

568,099 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH2019 

Note A: 
Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash 
flow from operating activities 

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting year (as per 
the statement of financial activities) 

Adjustments for: 

lncrease/(Decrease) in Creditors 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Debtors 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Note B: 
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank 
Cash in hand 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

17 

2019 
£ 

(129,512) 

94,675 
(36,131) 

(70,968) 

2019 

£ 
490,868 

6,263 

497,131 

2018 

£ 

84,948 

(588,176) 
87,287 

(415,941} 

2018 

£ 
568,099 

568,099 



PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 , 

1. Accounting Policies 

Accounting Convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical convention. 

Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern basis. There are no material 
uncertainties about the Charity's ability to continue. The Charity is a public benefit entity. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently. 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following: 

• Financial Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and 
Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102') 

• The Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' FRS 102 as revised in 
2015 ('the SORP 2015') 

• The Companies Act 2006 
• The historical cost convention 

Income from donations 
Donations are recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. All 
donations are shown gross of related expenditure. Tax credits receivable from gift aid donations are recognised 
when there is a valid Gift Aid declaration. 

Income is deferred where the donor has specified that the income is to be expended in a future period or where 
contractual conditions for entitlement will be met in a future period. 

Donations in kind comprise goods, services and facilities donated to Prince's Trust International which would 
otherwise have had to be purchased. They are valued at the amount that Prince's Trust International would have 
paid in order to obtain them and are included both in income and expenditure. 

Income from charitable activities 
Grants from government and income from other public sector contracts have been recorded as income from 
charitable activities. All income from charitable activities is shown gross of related expenditure. Income is deferred 
when the conditions applying to the grant are not wholly within the control of Prince's Trust International. 

Income from trading activities 
Income from trading activities is recognised when services are delivered. Income is deferred when payment has 
been received for services which are to be delivered in the future. 

Other income 
Other income relates to income which is not donations, from charitable activities or from trading activities. This 
income is recognised when there is entitlement, receipt is probable and the amount is measurable. 

Expenditure 
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs 
related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to 
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. 

The costs of raising funds include the salaries and overhead costs of the staff who undertake fund raising activities and 
the marketing and publicity costs associated with raising the profile of Prince's Trust International (but not those which 
are used in an educational manner in furtherance of the Charity's objects). Other costs, in compliance with 
constitutional and statutory requirements, include external audit costs. 
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Support costs include the salaries of those managerial staff which are not directly attributable to a particular programme 
of charitable work, governance costs, and of charges made by The Prince's Trust for support services (e.g. Finance, 
IT, HR and for other administrative staff and all office running costs) consumables and other overheads not specifically 
attributable to a particular programme of charitable work. 

Support costs are allocated to costs of raising funds and charitable activities on the basis of the relative effort involved, 
based on an assessment by the Charity's management. Irrecoverable VAT is included with the item of expense to 
which it relates. 

Contractual liabilities 
Prince's Trust International provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the 
balance sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. 

Tax 
The charitable company is exempt from income and corporation taxes on income and gains to the extent that they are 
applied for their charitable objects. 

Funds 
The funds of the Charity have been segregated as follows: 

Restricted Funds consist of donations for which the donor giver has specified the purposes for which the resources 
can be utilised and therefore to which expenditure is restricted. 

Unrestricted Funds consist of all other income that has not been restricted. They are expendable at the discretion of 
the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of the charity. 

Financial Instruments 
The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption which is available under FRS 102 1.12 (c) (relating to sections 11 
and 12 of the standard) as a wholly owned subsidiary not to disclose the following: 
• Categories of financial instruments 
• Items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments, and 
• Exposure to and management of financial risks. 

Full disclosure in relation to financial instruments is available in the consolidated financial statements of The Prince's 
Trust. 

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Estimates and Assumptions 
The Charity allocates support costs between different charitable activities using management's judgement of the 
proportion of effort expended on each category during the year. 

Pension Scheme 
The Prince's Trust has arranged a defined contribution pension scheme for Prince's Trust lnternational's staff. Pension 
contributions charged in the Statement of Financial Activities represent the contributions payable by the Charity in the 
year. Defined pension scheme contributions were charged to the profit and loss account as they fall due. The Charity 
had no potential liability other than for payment of those contributions. 
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2. Donations Unrestricted Restricted Total 2019 Unrestricted Restricted Total 2018 

£ £ £ £ ~ £ 

Donations from 232,472 129,576 362,048 896,250 103,340 999,590 
Major Donor~ 

Donations from 112,168 88,210 200,378 67 33,540 33,607 
Corporate Partners 

Donations from 638,984 429,947 1,068,931 97,318 188,901 286,219 
Charitable Trusts 

Donations from 5,745 5,745 
Individuals 

Donations in Kind 25,937 25,937 10,355 10,355 

1,009,561 647,733 1,657,294 1,009,735 325,781 1,335,516 

Income from Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Charitable Activities 2019 2018 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 

National Government 
Income 18,662 18,662 

Income from Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Trading Activities 2019 2018 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Consulting Income 

Licensing 33,575 33,575 20,699 20,699 

33,575 33,575 20,699 20,699 

Other Income Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total 
2019 2018 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Other Income 35,070 35,070 32,588 32,588 

Donations in kind represent the estimated cost of services donated to Prince's Trust International, at the value at which 
Prince's Trust International would have paid. All income was generated in the UK. 

3. Expenditure Direct Other Allocated Total Direct Other Allocated Total 
on Raising staff direct support 2019 staff direct support 2018 
Funds costs costs costs costs costs costs £ 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

98,816 150,661 225,380 474,857 92,589 148,951 373,353 614,893 
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4. Expenditure 
on Direct Other Allocated Total Direct Other Allocated Total 
Charitable staff direct support 2019 staff direct support 2018 
Activities costs costs costs costs costs costs 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Programme 
scoping 11,305 29,301 27,594 68,200 16,296 19,026 35,322 
Programme 
delivery 233,607 547,783 531,004 1,312,394 94,523 215,655 362,124 672,302 

244,912 577,084 558,598 1,380,594 94,253 231,951 381,150 707,624 

Support costs are allocated on total costs basis. 

Raising Charitable Total Raising Charitable Total 
5. Support costs Funds Activities 2019 Funds Activities 2018 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 
Staff costs: 150,633 373,338 523,971 266,592 272,160 538,752 

Other costs: 

Communications and Marketing 560 1,387 1,947 240 246 486 

Other staff costs 20,215 50,103 70,318 22,085 44,631 44,631 

Fees paid to The Prince's Trust 39,006 96,674 135,680 61,438 62,720 124,158 

Legal costs 7,456 18,481 25,937 5,124 5,231 10,355 

Governance Costs 4,295 10,645 14,940 6,506 6,642 13,148 

Sundry other costs 3,215 7,970 11, 185 11,368 11,605 22,973 

225,380 558,598 783,978 373,353 381,150 754,503 

Governance costs includes £12,000 (2017/18: £10,000) as audit fees. 

6. Employees and Trustees' Emoluments 

Staff members 2019 2018 
No. No. 

Average Headcount of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 17 16 
Fundraising 2 2 
Governance 

19 18 

2019 2018 
No. No. 

Average monthly number of employees analysed by function: 
Charitable purposes and support staff 16 13 
Fund raising 2 2 
Governance 

18 15 

Staff costs for the above employees were: 2019 2018 
£ £ 

Wages and Salaries 757,916 637,084 
Social Security costs 82,108 68,278 
Pension and post-retirement benefits 27,675 20,502 

867,699 725,864 
Prince's Trust International paid £nil (2017/18: £nil) in redundanc.ies during the year. 
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Employees' and Trustees' Emoluments (continued) 

Employee numbers 

The number of employees whose benefits fell within the following bands were: 

£120,000 -£130,000 

2019 
No. 

1 

2018 
No. 
1 

Staff costs include £244,912 (2017/18: £94,523) for staff directly involved in delivering charitable activities, £98,816 
(2017/18: £92,589) for staff involved in raising funds and £523,971 (2017/18: £538, 752) for support staff. 

The total remuneration of key management was £129,540 (2017/18: £150, 152). 

There was one (2017/18: two) member of key management personnel. 

Trustees' Emoluments 
No Trustee received salaries, fees or other benefits during the year (2017 /18: £nil). 

Trustees' have claimed £nil (2017/18: £nil) expenses. 

One (2017/18: two) member of key management claimed travel expenses of £34,280 (2017/18: £25,441 ). 

7. Debtors 2019 2018 

£ £ 
Accrued Income 8,105 65,659 

Trade Debtors 104,194 13,540 

Other Debtors 9,775 3,293 
Prepayments 3,451 
Total 122,074 85,943 

8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2019 2018 

£ £ 
Amounts owed to group undertakings 109,590 125,926 

Trade Creditors 45,619 17,612 

Other Creditors 20,850 7,218 

Accruals 86,822 17,450 

Total 262,881 168,206 
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9. Movement in funds 
Funds Funds 

brought carried 
forward Income Expenditure forward 

£ £ £ £ 

Scoping 

Greece Scoping 29,576 (742) 28,834 

Get into Programmes 
9,179 (9, 179) Australia 

Barbados 25,582 (24,997) 585 

Canada (Winnipeg) 29,517 (29,517) 
Canada (Toronto) 43,574 (43,574) 
Greece 65,291 111,755 (177,046) 

Jordan 35,070 (35,070) 
India 

13,210 (13,210) 

Team Programmes · 

Barbados 17,043 (17,043) 

Achieve Programmes 
Malta Achieve 47,814 (47,814) 
New Zealand Achieve 100,000 (100,000) 

Mosaic Programmes 

Jordan Mosaic Enterprise Challenge 18, 150 (18,150) 

Pakistan Enterprise Challenge 15,425 (15,425) 

Enterprise Programmes 
Greece 175,000 (175,000) 

CRM Project 75,000 75,000 

Total Restricted funds 94,808 716,378 (706,767) 104,419 

Unrestricted income funds 391,028 1,009,561 (1,148,684) 251,905 

Total funds 485,836 1,725,939 (1,855,451) 356,324 

Funds are restricted against core programmes of the charity, further restricted geographically as noted above. 

10. Analysis of net assets between funds 

Funds balances at 31 March 2019 are represented by: 

Current Assets 

Total funds 
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Unrestricted 
Funds 

£ 

251,905 

251,905 

Restricted 
Funds 

£ 

104,419 

104,419 

Total Funds 
£ 

356,324 

356,324 
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11. The Ultimate Parent Undertaking and Controlling Party 

Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a wholly owned subsidiary ofThe Prince's Trust. The Charity is incorporated 
in England and Wales and has its own registration with the Charity Commission. The Charity's Articles of Association 
set out how The Prince's Trust exercises control over the Charity. 

As the sole member, The Prince's Trust has the power to appoint up to three Trustees and then appoint the Chairman 
from among the Trustees. 

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is The Prince's Trust, a charity registered in the United 
Kingdom. The Prince's Trust Charity Registration Number in England & Wales is 1079675 and in Scotland is 
SC041198. The Royal Charter Number is RC000772. The consolidated financial statements of The Prince's Trust 
are available from Prince's Trust House, 9 Eldon Street, London, EC2M ?LS. 

12. Related Party Transactions 

Prince's Trust International has had transactions throughout the year with its parent company, The Prince's Trust, 
totalling £419,624 (2017/18: £408,592) relating to staff salaries and expenses, procurement cards, Click Travel and 
recharges for facilities, licence fee and management fees. At the year-end £109,590 (2017/18: £125,926) was 
outstanding and included within creditors. The Prince's Trust (parent charity) has made a working capital facility of up 
to £1,200,000 (2017/18: £1,200,000) available to Prince's Trust International, which was not drawn down (2017/18: 
not drawn down). 

Prince's Trust International has supported Prince's Trust Canada, a sister charity of The Prince's Trust Group, to 
deliver the Get into programme. Prince's Trust Canada has reimbursed Prince's Trust International £35,469 for costs 
incurred in providing this support and £8, 105 has been included within accrued income as at 31 51 March 2019 (2017/18: 
£20,644). 

£100,000 (2017/18: £100,000) donation was received from The Dorfman Foundation, an organisation of which the 
Chairman of Prince's Trust International, Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is the Chairman and founder. In addition, £2,592 
(2017/18: £2,048) was received for meeting spaces from The Office Group Ltd, an organisation of which the Chairman 
of Prince's Trust International, Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE, is a Shareholder. £1,876 (2017/18: £2,200) was received as 
gift-in-kind donations from Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE. 

£100,000 (2017/2018: £115,000) was received as donations from the Amersi Foundation, an organisation of which a 
Trustee of Prince's Trust International, Mohamed Amersi, is the Chairman and founder. 

£nil (2017/2018: £15,000) was received from Rupert Goodman personally towards Prince's Trust International costs. 
Mr Goodman is a Trustee of Prince's Trust International. 

There were no outstanding balances in relation to the above at the balance sheet date (2017/18: nil). 

13. Taxation 

The Charity was a registered charity throughout the year. As such it is not liable to corporation tax on the surplus of 
income over expenditure for the year (s478 CTA 2010) or gains arising from the disposal of assets (s256 TCGA 1992) 
so far as the proceeds are used for charitable purposes only. 

The Charity is registered for VAT and, where applicable, expenditure is recorded net of recoverable VAT. 
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AKEME1 2020 PRINCE'S TRUST 
GLOBAL AWARD WINNER 

Akeme, 23, grew up in Fairy Valley in the south of Barbados. His 
mum and dad both work in farming, his mum with horticulture, and 
his dad with animals. When he got to secondary school age Akeme 
started to skip class and meet up with his friends - the group would 
spend their time hanging out with gangs on the island. 

At a crossroads, a friend of his 
heard about the launch of PTl's 
TEAM programme In Bartlados 
and recommended II to Akama. 
Ha saw ii as an opportunity to get 
involved in something new on 
the island. 

The programme gave him the 
confidence to believe In himself 
and he finally started to see 
that he had potential. After 
completing the TEAM programme. 
Akeme began to look for better 
opportunities. 

Followlng his worl< placement. 
Akeme was offered a full·time 
job and, although ii was no! 
his dream career, he saw this 
as an opportunity to learn and 
lhe experience taughl him lo 
be diligent and hardworl<ing. 
Akeme dreamed of being an 
entrepreneur, and as well as 
worl<lng al a restaurant on the 
island, he has set up hls own 
hot sauce and catering company 
"Paradise Eal$". 

In March 2020 Akeme travelled 
to London to accept the Prince's 
Trust Global Awaro from HRH The 
Prince of Wales. as well as 
attending a dinner at Buckingham 
Palace. Akeme·s story was 
featured by CNN International to 
households around the world. 

Akeme has since enrolled In the 
'Enterprise Programme' with the 
Barbados Youth Business Trust to 
develop more skills to further his 
business. 

Akeme meeUng HRH The 
Prince of Wales in March 2020 



FOREWORD 
from Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE Chalnnan 

Prince's Trust International is 
a young charity with a bold 
ambition to support young 
people across the world to fulfil 
their potential. Worldng with our 
partners. we help young people to 
complete their education, secure 
employment or stan a business. 
We are part of The Prince's Trust 
group of charities, which Includes 
The Prince's Trust in Australia, 
Canada, New Zealand, the United 
States and the United Kingdom. 

Now more than ever, young 
people need our support. The 
impact of the COVID-19 globat 
pandemic wlll be with us for 
a long time to come· and will 
affect young people even longer. 
Our dedicated staff. volunteera, 
supporters and partners are all 
determined to help young people 
through and beyond this global 
crisis. The aim ts to ensure they 
can survive and \Mve in these 
highly uncertain and challenging 
times. 

The vision and leadership of 
our Founder and President, His 
Royal Highness The Prince of 
Wales, continue to inspire all that 
we do. As a supporter, Trustee 
and Chairman of Prince's Trust 
International, I am incredibly 
proud of the inspirational young 
people whom we support around 
the globe in their journey from 
education to employment. 

So far, we have supported just 
over 16,000 young people during 
our first few years, in countries 
such as Barbados, Ghana, 
Greece, India, Jamaica, Jordan, 
Kenya. Malaysia, Malta, Pakistan 
and Trinidad & Tobago. We now 
need to go further. Building on our 
established programme delivery, 
we are now working with our 
partners to accelerate and grow 
our digital engagement with young 
people, to help them to develop 
their employability and enterprise 
skills In a more flexible, interactlve 
and dynamic way - wherever they 
are. 

I would like to thank all of our 
supporters for their commitment 
to young people around the 
world. tn particular, I should like 
to recognise His Highness The 
Aga Khan, our Global Founding 
Patron, for his trensformationaf 
support, which is enabling us to 
support young people In Asia, 

Africa, tne Middle East and 111e 
Caribbean. On behalf of an the 
Trustees, I would also like to 
thank our wondertul team or 
staff and delivery partners. who 
together work tirelessly to support 
young people around the globe. 

Above all, our thanks go to His 
Royal Highness The Prince of 
Wales for his lnspirsUon and 
guidance. 

I look forwar<l to working with our 
Trustees, staff, volunteers and 
partnen; over the coming year to 
hetp many more young people 
through these most extraordinary 
of times. 

Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE 
Chairman 
Prince's Trust lntematlonat 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2020 

The Trustees present their report and audited financial statements 
for the year to 31 March 2020. A copy of the annual report and 
accounts can be obtained from Prince's Trust International, 
8 Glade Path, London, SE1 BEG. 

The Trustees have adopted the provisions in section 234 of 
Companies Act 2006 and Charities SORP (FRS 102) in preparing 
the Annual Report and Financial Statements. The reference and 
administration information on page 25 forms part of this report. 
Prince's Trust International (the Charity) is a charitable company 
and subsidiary of The Prince's Trust, which is the sole member. 
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THE YOUNG PEOPLE 
WE SUPPORT 

We believe that every young person deserves the chance to 
succeed. Yet every year countless young people do not get this 
chance and face daily struggles that can seem insurmountable. 

Young people across the wortd ~ .We Supported 
still struggle to gain access to ~ 
opportunitiesinordertosurvive · s,·45. 5 Young People 
and thrive in today's modem 
wortd. 

These include young people 
disengaged from their education 
due to personal pressures; those 
willing, able and ready to enter 
the workplace but who face 
challenges in accessing enlly 
level positions; and young people, 
who have dreams of running 
their own business, but who lack 
the training and knowledge to 
succeed. 

Prince's Tri.isl International worl<s 
wlth local organisations to support 
young people to learn. work and 

·thrive. 

across the world 
In 2019/20 _ 

-+We ~egan delivery In 

. Ghana, K~nya 
and Malaysia 
for the first tlm~ In 2019/20 

-+'Ou_r work con~lnued In 

Barbad~s,. Greece, 
India, .Jamaica, 
·Jordan, M.alta, 
Pakistan and 
Trinidad & TobagQ 
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND 
PURPOSES OF PRINCE'S TRUST 
INTERNATIONAL 

We work with local youth organisations across the 
Commonwealth and beyond, delivering programmes for young 
people in education, employability and enterprise. We believe 
that every young person should have the chance to succeed 
and to contribute to their local economy, engaging as active 
members of society. 

The primary objective of Prince's 
Trust International is set ou\ in Its 
Articles of Association, being: 

"promoting by all charitable 
means throughou1 the wortd 
the mental, splrttual, moral 
and physlcal development and 
Improvement of young people 
and providing opportunities 
for them to develop their 
full capacities and enabling 
them to become rHponslble 
members of society so that 
their conditions of llfe may be 
Improved." 

In accordance with Charity 
Commission guidance on public 
benefit (section 17 of Charities Act 
2011 ), Prince's Trust lntematlonal 
achieves Its requirements for 
public benefit by developing 
programmes to meet Its objectives. 
During 2019/20, Prince's Trust 
lntemational successfully delivered 
programmes with partnern to 
engage and support 5.455 
young people In their journey 
from education to employment in 
Barbados, Ghana, Greece, India, 
Jamaica, Jordan, Kenya, Malaysia, 
Malta, Pakistan and Trinidad & 
Tobago. 

OUR VISION 

EVERY YOUNG 
PERSON SHOULD 
HAVE THE CHANCE 
TO SUCCEED. 

OUR MISSION 

To empower young people and 
local organisations across the 
Commonwealth and beyond to 
learn, wort< and thrive. 

OUR AIM 

To promote youth engagement 
and empowennent around 
the wortd, by wortdng In 
partnership, and providing 
young people with education 
and employment oppol1unltles. 



OUR DELIVERY MODEL 

Prince's Trust lnternational's delivery model is based on 
establishing sustainable partnerships with youth organisations that 
are based in each of the countries where the Charity operates; and 
supporting them to deliver education, employability and enterprise 
training for young people. 

To dale, the delivery model has 
mainly comprised a "train the 
trainer" approach, where the 
Charity's slaff engage and train 
delivery partners to provide 
support to young people through 
adaplations of Prince's Trust 
programmes. 

-+ Engagement in each country 
begins with a ·scoping exercise· 
to undersland the youth need, 
identify suitable delivery partn~. 
agree lhe most appropriate 
intervention and assess likely 
risks and mitigations. 

-+ Drawing on The Prince's Trust's 
44 years of experience and 
expertise In youth educetlon, 
employability and enterprise 
in the UK. the Charity helps to 
build the capacity of delivery 
partners by providing training 
and technical assistance; 
sharing and adapting 
programme content to local 
need; advising on Issues such 
as safeguarding and impact 
measurement; and see\Jring 
funding to enable delivery in 
each oounlry. 

-+ Examples of delivery partners 
indude Magic Bus. which 
delivers employabillly training 
in India; Corallia. which delivers 
enterprise training in Greece; 
and the Barbados Royal Police 
Force, which delivers personal 
development training for young 
people. 

Of the total 5,455 young people 
supported with partners during 
2019120, lhe majority (J,207) 
were engaged through "face­
lo-face" lralnlng. indudlng 
for example through the Get 
Hired employability programme 
in Jamaica; and 2, 108 were 
engaged through a blend of face­
to-face and online suppor1, for 
example through the Enterprise 
Challenge programme in Jordan. 
A smatt number of young people 
(140) were engaged through a 
consultancy project in Kenya, 
where the Charity advised delivery 
partner Shujaaz on a youth 
entrepreneurship training course. 

ONLINE AND 
"BLENDED" DELIVERY 

Jn response to the outbreak of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and related 
restrictions in early 2020. delivery 
partners have started to deliver a 
greater volume of ontine support. 
Prince's Trust lntemational is 
enabling partners to deliver 
onllne, by making Prince's Trust 
programme content available in 
online modules. This will help to 
drive growth in our support for 
young people, helping them to 
enhance their resllience, life skills 
and work readiness. 

During 2020/21, the Charity 
plans to increase further its digital 
delivery offer. in order lo continue 
supporting young people through 
and beyond the COVID-19 
pandemic and likely global 
recession. Face-to-face delivery 
is likely to remain flat al around 
3,000 young people. Meanwhile. 
delivery partners are likely to 
support around 5,000 young 
people through a combination or 
online and "blended" delivery. 

These digital delivery plans include: 

-+ enabling partners to deliver 
support online. through Skype 
or similar platforms; 

~ making our programme content 
available in online modular 
format for partners to use; 

~ building en onllne community 
of partners and supporters 
through social media 
partnerships. 

In addition. the Charity is 
developing its own direct digital 
engagement channels, starting 
with a pilot in Barbados from July 
2020 onwards. 

CONSULTANCY 

The Charity has begun to support 
partners by providing advisory and 
consultancy services for partners. 
During 2020121, this wilt Include 
two projects In Rwanda, providing 
advice on how best to devise and 
deliver a youth mentoring strategy. 
Other consultancy services might 
indude advising on employer 
angagemen~ youth safeguarding 
or youth outreach. Through this 
range of advisory encl consultancy 
services, the Charity alms to 
enhance the ability of partners to 
support many more young people. 
effectively and safely. 

39% 
Project Delivery 

Through Partners 
(Blended) 

11°/o 
Direct Dlgltal 

6°/o .... 

2% 

""'"m'".~ 
21 o/o ( ( Projected b'93kdow" 

r:::~:~t~:~~=~ \ \ 2020/21 
'""''"'' \ 

31% 
Project Delivery 
Through Partners 
(Face To Face) 



ACHIEVEMENTS AND 
PERFORMANCE 2019/20 

Prince's Trust International continued to grow its delivery with 
partners during 2019/20, broadening its reach to support 5,455 
young people across the Middle East, Asia, Caribbean, Europe 
and Africa. This compared to 4,322 young people supported 
during 2018/19. Since its establishment in 2015/16, Prince's Trust 
International has supported a total of 16,316 young people to 
develop their education, employability and enterprise skills. 

Delivery during 2019120 look 
place with partners In eleven 
countries: Barbados, Ghana, 
Greece. India. Jamaica. Jordan, 
Kenya, Malaysia, Malta, Pakistan 
and Trinidad & Tobago. This 
delivery was made possible by 
a range of valued supporters, 
including His Highness The Aga 
Khan (Global Founding Patron or 
The Prince's Trust Group). 

Due to the effects of COVID-19. 
all race-to-face delivery through 
our partners was suspended 
In Marcil 2020. To ensure their 
safety and well-being, PTI staff 
who were based overseas were 
supported to return home to the 
UK during Marcil 2020. As a 
result. our overall 2019/20 delivery 
and expenditure was slightly lower 
than planned. Given that this was 
the final month of our financial 
year 2019/20, the overall Impact 
on our performance over the 
whole or 2019/20 was marginal. 

Spec:lflc: ec:hlevemente during 2019/20 Included: 

Middle East 
With our partners in Jordan, we 
supported 2.209 young people, 
including: 

-+ With our partner INJAZ, we 
supported 2,017 through 
the Enterprise Challenge 
programme, to develop their 
entrepreneurship skills and 
explore the potential of starting 
their own business. 

-+ With support from the 
King Abdullah II Fund for 
Development, our partners 
LOYAC and BOC (Business 
Development Centre) delivered 
the Get Into employability 
programme, supporting 
178 young people. 

-+ Our partners JOHUD (Jordan 
Hashemlte Fund for Human 
Development) began lo 
deliver our Team personal 
development programme for 
14 young people. This was 
Interrupted by the outbreak of 
COVID-19 in March 2020. 

Asia 
With our delivery partners in 
India, Pakistan and Malaysia we 
supported 1, 145 young people to 
develop their skills and confidence 
and access to basic education 
and employment opportunities. 
58 per cent of these young people 
were female; and 80 per cent of 
the young people who completed 
a programme felt more confident 
about their skills as a result. 

-+ With our partner Magic Bus In 
India. we supported 827 young 
people in India through our Get 
Into employability programme; 

~ Wilh the Aga Khan Foundation 
In India, we supported 210 
young women lo develop 
micro-enterprises in Bihar 
province. 

-+ In Pakistan, our partner SEED 
Ventures supported 91 young 
people through our Enterprise 
Challenge programme, 
whlch Inspires young people 
aged 11-16 to develop their 
entrepreneurial skills and 
consider self-employment 
as a future career option. 

~ In Malaysia, we started to 
explore polentlal new delivery 
or our Achieve education 
programme and Team personal 
development programme with 
two new partners (SAY and 
SOLS/24 ). engaging with 17 
young people Initially. 

Caribbean 
1, 110 young people were 
supported across the Caribbean. 
Including 391 in Barbados, 497 
In Jamaica and 222 in Trinidad & 
Tobago through our full range of 
education, personal development 
and employability programmes. 
We worked with partners such 
as the Barbados Ministry of 
Education, Royal Barbados Police 
Force, Junior Achievement, the 
Jamaica Youth Business Trust 
and the National Training Agency 
in Trinidad & Tobago. 

~ Delivery of the Achieve 
education programme began 
in 2019/20 across Jamaica 
and Trinidad & Tobago, with 
Barbados planned to follow In 
2020/21 delivered through the 
Ministry of Education. 

-+ With our support, the Heart 
Trust in Jamaica delivered its 
first "Gel Hired" employablllty 
programme in October 2019 
which resulted In 70 out of 
79 participants being offered 
at least one job offer on 
completion. 

Europe 
662 young people supported In 
Greece and Matta. 

~ Thls Included 300 young 
people supported through 
employability and enterprise 
programmes In Athens and 
Crete. with partners Corallia, 
Knowt Social Enterprise, 
Bizrupt and 100 Mentors. In 
Athens, our employabilily 
programme supported 74 per 
cent of participants to start 
work. In Crete, 87 per cent 
of young people reported 
increased skills In setting and 
achieving goals; 78 per cent 
an Increase in managlng their 
feelings: and 70 per cent an 
increase in confidence. 

~ In Malta. 362 young people 
were engaged through our 
Achieve education programme, 
which continues to be delivered 
to secondary schools through 
the Ministry of Education. By 
March 2020, almost 1,000 
young people across Malla 
were enrolled In the Achieve 
programme. 

~ PTI partnered with Gypsy 
Roma Urban Balkan Beats 
(GRUBB). an organisation 
working with young Roma 
people in Serbia; and facilitated 
teacher tralnlng In the Achieve 
education programme, which is 
to be delivered to young people 
during 2020/21. This was an 
example of our emerging new 
stream of advisory work. 
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Africa 
We started to develop our work 
in SutrSaharan Africa. beginning 
with 329 young people supported 
In Ghana and Kenya. This 
included: 

-+ 108 young people through our 
Achieve education programme 
in Ghana, with partner Junior 
Achievement Africa; and 
a further 31 young people 
supported to develop their 
employability skills, through the 
Vodafone Foundation. 

-+ 190 young people through 
our enterprise programmes 
in Kenya, with partners 
Shujaaz and the Asante Africa 
Foundation. 

-+ We also established two 
partnerships with The lmbuto 
Foundation and Harambee, 
to support youth mentoring 
and employability in Rwanda, 
with delivery due to begin in 
2020/21. 



ACHIEVEMENTS AND­
PERFORMANCE 2019/20 
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Prince's Trust 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Prince's Trust International had 
actual income for the year of 
£4.160,094 (2018/19: £1,725,939) 
and expenditure of £3,0139,979 
(2018/19: £1,855.451, resulting in 
an operating surplus for the year 
of £1,090,115 (2018/19 deficit 
£129,512). Adding the brought 
forward reserves of £356,324 
results In new total reserves of 
£1,446,439. Of these reserves 
£723,258 is restricted lo delivery 
due to take place In FY20/21. 
The free reserves are therefore 
£723,181 (2018/19: £251,905). 

Actual expenditure for 2019120 
was slightly lower than planned, 
due to the Impact of COVID-19 
from March 2020 onwards - in 
particular, the suspension of 
face-to-face delivery through 
partners. Given that March 
2020 was the final month of 
the financial year 2019/20, the 
outbreak of COVI0-19 had little 
impact on actual income for 
2019/20. Overall, the Impact of 
COVID-19 resulted in a slighdy 
higher operating surplus than 
had been anticipated. The longer 
term effects of COVID-19 are 
discussed below. 

Reserves Policy 
The Trustees review the reserves 
policy annually and target a level 
of free reserves of between four 
lo six months of operational 
expenditure. The intention is 
for the core running costs to be 
funded through the generation of 
unrestricted funds. The Prince's 
Trust (parent charity) renewed 
the wori<;ing capital facility In 
July 2018, of up to £1,200,000, 
available to Prince's Trust 
International. Thls facility has 
not been drawn down. The loan 
facilll)I expired on 26 July 2020 
and will not be renewed. 

Total funds as at 31 March 2020 
were at£1,446,439 (2018/19: 
£356,324), of which £723,258 
(2018/19: £104,419) were 
restricted funds. Unrestricted 
reserves £723, 181 (2018119: 
£251,905) represent approxlmately 
4 months of non-programme 
related expenditure. 

STAFF TEAM 

Throughout 2019120, the Charity 
Invested further In its CXNe 
team, including recruitment of 
programme delivery. fundralslng, 
security end safeguarding staff; 
as well as content design and 
development specialists. allowing 
us to bu~d up our capacity for 
delivering support through online 
channels. We also developed 
further our in-house monitoring 
and evaluation capacity; and 
supported delivery partners lo 
build their own monitoring and 
evaluation frameworl<;s, to lrad< 
their performance and Impact. 

At 31 March 2020, the team 
included 44 staff (42.7 full 
time equivalent). Volunteers 
conlinued to support Prince's 
Trust lntematlonal In the UK 
head office; and volunteers also 
supported our strategic partners 
In the various countries where we 
operate. 

In December 2019, Jonathan 
Townsend (Chief Executive) 
became the Interim Chief 
Executive of The Prince's Trust; 
and in April 2020 was appointed 
the permanent Chief Executive of 
The Prince's Trust. Dermot Finch 
(Director of Group Operations, 
The Prince's Trust) became 
Interim Chief Executive of PTI in 
December 2019. William Straw 
CSE has now been appointed 
as the new permanent Chief 
Executive of PTI and will begin In 
the role from October 2020. 
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FUNDRAISING FOR OUR WORK 

Since 2015/16, Prince's Trust International has grown to support 
over 16,000 young people in the Caribbean, Middle East & North 
Africa, Sub-Saharan Africa, Asia and Europe. This has been 
made possible through generous donations from a wide variety 
of philanthropic donors, foundations and corporates. 

The Charil)' continues to broaden 
and diversify Its Income; growing 
the portfolio of philanthropic 
donors to support its wori<;, whilst 
pur$uing innovative funding 
partnerships with corporates, 
foundations and multilateral 
donors that can leverage the 
financial and technical resources 
to deliver sustalnable impact al 
scale. The Charity will continue 
to create dynamic philanthropic 
partnerships that inspire 
individuals, families. foundations 
and businesses to support the 
growth of our work. 

By building on The Prince's 
Trust's long history and extensive 
experience ofworf<ing with 
philanthropists, businesses and 
delivery partners, the Charity 
provides an insightful and 
Inspiring philanthropy service, with 
practical guidance for donors on 
how best to enable young people 
to complete their journey from 
edLJcation to employment. 

Prince's Trust International 
primarily fundraises through 
its own staff team and through 
senior stakeholders, who support 
fundraising with connections and 
introductions. We currently do not 
carry out any fundralsing activities 
with third parties. 

Prince's Trust lnternaUonal is 
registered with the Fundraising 
Regula1or, and endeavours to 
carry out fundralslng activities In 

line with the Code of Fundraising 
Practice, its own ethical fundralsing 
policy and the BxPectalions of 
its supporters. We are signed up 
to the Fundraislng Preference 
Service, which gives the public 
control over the fundralslng 
communications they receive. 

Prince's Trust International is 
committed to providing high quality 
services to all of its service users, 
partners and supporters. We 
have a dear, publidy available 
complaints policy that allows us 
to Investigate thoroughly any 
complaints, communicate results, 
record results and review our work. 
enabling Improvements lo be made, 
if required. For the financial year 
2019120, we received no complaints 
aboul our fundralslng actMlies 
(2018/19: nil). 

Further lo our complelnts policy, we 
make a pledge 1o our supporters 
whose generous support Is vitally 
Important to transforming young 
lives. As a supporter of Prince's 
Tl\lsl lnternatlonal, we make a 
pledge that: 

-+ You can expect Prince's Trust 
International to use your 
donations wisely, and to help 
young people In the most 
effective and efficient manner. 

-+ You can expect Prince's Trust 
International to hold your 
Information securely and 
responsibly. and we will not 

share any of your details for 
use by any other organisation. 

-+ If you have supplied your name 
and address. we would like to 
let you know how your donation 
ts helping to transform young 
lives. We wlll only send you 
communications lhal you have 
asked for. or have agreed 10 
receive, and you can choose 
to stop hearing from us al any 
time. 

Prince's Trust International 
is committed to protecting 
vulnerable people and other 
members of the general public 
from unreasonable Intrusion 
into !heir privacy, unreasonably 
persistent fundraising approaches 
and placing undue pressure on 
any Individual to give money, To 
help protect vulnerable people, 
we have a field on our fundraislng 
database which records a 
potentially vulnerable person. We 
exclude anyone flagged on lhe 
database as vulnerable from all of 
our fundralslng communlcalions. 

Since all our fundraising 
activities target major donors, the 
communications are bespoke and 
personal. We cany out no direct 
mail activity currently and there 
are no plans lo in the foreseeable 
future. 



FUTURE PLANS AND 
THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 
The COVID-19 global pandemic 
has generated not only an 
unprecedented and highly 
uncertain external environment 
bul Is also likely lo increase the 
demand from young people 
for our support. Prince's Trust 
lnternaltonal is determined to 
do even more with our delivery 
partners lo support young 
people through and beyond 1111s 
crisis, while at the same lime 
ensuring that our delivery model 
and linances are efficient and 
sustainable. We have therefore 
set these three strategic priorities 
for 2020121: 

-+ To adapt our delivery model, 
by accelerating 111e growth of 
our digital offer and maintaining 
faoe-to-face delivery where 
appropriate, aiming for 
year-on-year growth in delivery. 

-+ Through our colleagues end 
delivery partners, to support 
even more young people 
through this difficult !Ima. 

-+ To protact PTl's financial 
sustainability in the short 
and long term, so we can ae 
there to support young people 
through and beyond this crisis. 

Delivery 
We aim to grow our delivery 
year-on-year, especially through 
digital and onllne channels, to 
support at least 8,750 young 
people during 2020121. This is a 
lower target than our original plan, 
given the highly uncertain external 
environment. It still represents, 
however, significant year-en-year 
growth compared to the 5.455 
young people supported during 
2019120. So far during 2020/21, 
we have been encouraged by 
the resilience of our delivery 
partners and their continued 
abllily lo support young people, 
mainly through online and digital 
channels. We have also launched 
our own direct digital project In 

Barbados, which alms to support 
up to 800 young people this year 
alone; and which we plan to offer 
to young people In other countries 
In future. 

With our partners, we intend 
lo support young people In the 
following thirteen countries during 
2020121: Barbados, Ghana, 
Greece. India, Jamaica, Jordan, 
Kenya, Malaysia, Malta, Pakistan, 
Rwanda, Serbia and Trinidad 
& Tobago. We will continue 
to be responsive to the highly 
dynamic and challenging external 
environment triggered by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Over the 
longer term, we aim to ecate up 
our support for young people in 
these end other countrias, as 
capacity and opportunny allows. 

To support this delivery, we are 
building a rigorous and robust 
impact measurement framework. 
lo allow us to understand and 
communicate more dearly the 
progress that young people make 
through our support. We have 
establlshed our own in-house 
Safeguarding capacity, to help 
ensure the safety and well-being 
of the young people we support, 
our colleagues and partners. 
In addition, we aim to build the 
profile of the Charily through a 
more compelling social media 
presence. 

Financial sustainability 
Prince's Trust lnternaticmal's 
2020/21 budget lakes account 
of the chaHenglng external 
envlronment: and aims to respond 
to the increased demand for our 
services. by enabling year-on­
year growth In delivery. We plan 
to secure £4.353 million income 
during 2020121, that Is lower than 
our original plans but slightly more 
than PTl's actual Income of £4.16 
million in 2019/20. Al 31 August 
2020. we had already secured 
80 per cent of the £4.353 million 
income target. We are expecting 

to achieve total Unrestricted 
Reserves of approximately three 
months operating expenditure by 
31 March 2021. 

To support the financial 
sustainability of the Charity during 
2020/21, we made use of the UK 
Government's Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme between April 
end September 2020, with 23 out 
of 44 staff taking furlough leave 
for !lome or all of that period. 
In addition, we implemented a 
reduced hours regime between 
April and August 2020; as well 
as a recruitment and salary 
freeze. Taken together, these 
actions have made a significant 
contribution to securing the 
financial sustainability of the 
Charity so far during 2020/21. 

To support longer-term planning, 
wa have produced an Initial 
2021/22 budget that Includes an 
estimated 10 per cent year on 
year Increase In Income. To date 
we have secured commitments 
totalling £2.5 million for the year 
2021/22. This would enable PTI 
and partners to support over 
12,000 young people during 
2021/22. We will continue to 
adjust our fund raising plans and 
inoome expectations as we move 
forward through 2020/21 and 
beyond. 

New headqu111ters 
During 2020/21, Prince's Trust 
lntematlonal plans to move into 
new headquarters in Central 
London. The Charity and The 
Prince's Trust together vacated 
their previous headquarters in 
March 2020. Since then, the 
PTI staff team has been working 
from home. The precise timing 
Is dependent on COVID-19 
restrictions in London and the 
UK. The inlllal costs are already 
included In the Charity's 2020/21 
and 2021122 budgets. 



RISK POLICY 

Prince's Trust lntemationaf 
recognises the inherent risks In 
working with young people outside 
the United Kingdom and in raising 
the funds to pay for Its work. 
The span of these risks is wide, 
including Safeguarding, Health 
and Safety (related to both staff 
and programme beneficiaries), 
Programme Development and 
Data Management. Prince's Trust 
International works to mitigate 
the risks the! ii takes and alms to 
help delivery partners to ensure 
safe and effective opportunities for 
young people. 

Prince's Trust International carries 
out due diligence on all countries 
where It warlcs and Is proposing to 
work; and on all delivery partners. 
The scope of due diligence 
includes risks relating to the 
oountty, the in~unlty delivety 
partner and the project funder. 
This due diligence is captured 
within a Country and Delivery 
Partner Assessment Proposal 
that is reviewed by the Prince's 
Trust International Board, before 
a decision Is made on whether 
lo progress. This due diligence 
process has been developed with 
feedback from external advisers. 

The Charity has a Rlak Register, 
which scores and ranks the status 
of risks, induding (but not limited 
to) staff, partners, beneficiaries, 
reputation. intellectual property, 
quality assurance, financial 
sustainability and funding. The 
methodo1o9y of this Ris~ Register 
has been developed by The 
Prince's Trust and tailored to 
fit the needs of Prince's Trust 
lrt/emationaJ. 

The Board of Trustees delegates 
risk management to the CEO 
and senior management. Risk is 
e standing agenda item al every 
Risk & Audit Committee meeting 
and is reviewed regularly at 
the Prince's Trust International 
Trustee Board meetings. 

Prince's Trust International has a 
comprehensive insurance policy, 
reviewed annually under t'1e 
guidance of Its Insurance broker, 
and currenUy held with Zurich 
Insurance. 

In response to the outbreak of 
COVID-19 in early 2020. the 
Charity started In March 2020 to 
put In place a series or actions 
to mitigate the increased risks 
and financial and operational 
uncertainties caused by the global 
pandemic. These actions were 
activated through a revised Risk 
Register and a new Strategic Plan 
for 2020/21, which Included three 
priorities: 

a. To adapt our delivery model, 
by acceleratlng the growth of 
our digital offer and maintaining 
fac&-to-face delivery where 
appropriate. This will ensure 
that Prince's Trust lntemational 
and Its partners can continue 
to support young people 
through and beyond the highly 
uncertain external environment. 

b. To protect PTl's financial 
sustainability In the short and 
Jong tell'll, for example by 
reducing planned expenditure 
in the near term and de­
risking the income pipeline. 
This resulted in a revised and 
more conservative budget for 
2020/21. 

c. To support colleagues, delivery 
partners and beneficiaries 
through this difficult time. 
This included ensuring the 
safe return of PTI colleagues 
who were based overseas, 
amending delivery plans with 
partners and enabling partners 
to continue supporting young 
people through the crisis. 

We will continue to assess and 
mitigate financial and operational 
risks, especially In light of 
COVI0-19. 

STRUCTURELGOVERNANCE 
AND MANAG1:MENT 

Prince's Trust International is a 
charity Incorporated by Articles 
of Association in England and 
Wales. The Articles form the 
govemlng document. Prince's 
Trust lntemaUonal Is part of The 
Prince's Trust group of charities, 
which includes The Prince's Trust 
in the United Kingdom (parent 
charity) and The Prince's Trust In 
Australia, Canada. New Zealand 
and the United States. Each 
Prince's Trust charity, including 
Prince's Trust lntematlonal, 
has an independent Board of 
Trustees. who are solely focused 
on each respective charity. The 
Prince's Trust Group CEO is a 
member of the Prince's Trust 
lntemallonal Board. 

ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE 
The Prince's Trust lnternationaf 
Board of Trustees is accountable 
for the work of Prince's Trust 
lntematlonal. The matters 
reserved for the Prince's Trust 
tntemallonal Board include the 
approval of strategy, the budget 
and business plan and the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements. 
The Prince's Trust International 
Board also retains oversight 
of management controls and 
COl'porate govemanca, along 
with the appointmenl of the Chief 
Executive and those Trustees not 
appointed by The Prince's Trusl. 

The Prince's Trust International 
Board has established a Risk & 
Audit Committee to help with the 
execution of Its responsibilities. 
The Committee meets at least 
four times a year. Members of the 
Committee are appointed by the 
Board. The current membership 
is Alistair Summers (Chair), Sir 
Lloyd Dorfman, Ant6nio Simoes 
and Michelle Pinggera. 

The Prince's Trust JnternalhmaJ 
Soard has delegated authority 
to the Chief Executive for the 
day-to-<lay management of 
the orgartlsatlon. The PrlnGe's 
Trust supports Prince's Trust 
I ntemational with the provision of 
administrative resource, including 
the monitoring of programmes. 

A management services 
agreement has been put in place 
to govern the provlsion and 
payment for services from The 
Prince's Trust (parenl charity) 
to Prince's Trust lntemallonal, 
together with a licence agreement 
to govem the licensing of The 
Prince's Trust know-how and 
Intellectual property for use by 
Prince's Trust International, all on 
commercial terms. 

The Prince's Trust International 
Chairman and The Prince's Trust 
Group CEO, in conjunction with 
The Prince's Trust International 
Trustees, establish and annuaUy 
review the remuneration of 
The Prince's Trust lntemational 
members of staff (Including senior 
management) in conslderaHon of 
their individual contribution and In 
accordance with good practice In 
the Charity sector. 

The Charity Is grateful for the 
commitment of a core group of 
volunteers who have asslsled 
with Its development and provide 
ongoing support in the London 
office. It also acllnowledges the 
support of volunteers to the local 
partner organisations delivering 
the pllot projects in other 
countries. 

TRUSTEE 
RECRUITMENT, 
APPOINTMENT AND 
TRAINING 
Trustees are appointed in 
accordance wilh the Articles 
and are col!B<:tively known as 
the Prince's Trust lnlemstiOnaJ 
Board. In order to ensure that 
strategy and operational activity 
are aligned to The Prince's Trust 
(parertl chsrfly}, the Prince's 
Trust I ntematJonal Board Includes 
the Group Chief Eitecutive and 
no more than three trustees of 
The Prince's Trust. On joining 
the organisation, new Trustees 
receive a comprehensive 
induction Which covers the values 
and purpose of Prince's Trust 
lntemational: strategy, fundralslng. 
programmes, operations and 
govemance matters; and the 
opportunity to meet key staff. 



STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Trustees of the Charity as 
at the date of thls report ere 
set out in the Reference and 
Administration section on page 25 
and, unless stated otllerwlse, 
served throughout the year. 

In accordance with section 234 
Companies Act 2006, a qualifying 
indemnity provision, for the 
benefil of the Trustees, was In 
force during the financial year 
and remains In force at the 
date of approval of the financial 
statements. 

The Trustees (wtio are also 
directors of Prince's Trust 
International for the purposes of 
company law) are responsible 
for preparing the Trustees' 
Annual Report and the financial 
statements In accordance with 
applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the 
Trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial 
year. Under that law, the Trustees 
have prepared the financial 
statements In accordance with 
United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, comprising FRS 102 
"The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland", and applicable law 
(United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 
Under company law, the Trustees 
must not approve the financial 
statements unless they are 
satisfied that they glve a true and 
fair view of the state of the affairs 
of the Charitable company and 
of the incoming resources and 
application of resources, including 
Iha income and expenditure, of 
the charitable company for that 
period. 

In preparing these llnancie1 
statements, the Trustees are 
required to: 

-+ select suitable accounting 
policies and then apply them 
conslstenUy; 

-+ observe the methods and 
principles In the Charities SORP; 

-+ make judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent 

-+ state wtiether FRS 102 "The 
Flnancial Reporting Standard 
appllcable ln the UK and 
Republic of Ireland" has 
been followed, subject to any 
material departures disdosed 
and explained in the financial 
statements; and 

-t prepare the financial 
statements on the going 
concem basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that 
the charitable company will 
continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for 
keeping adequate accounting 
records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the Charity's 
transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any 
lime the financial position of the 
Charity and enable ii to ensure 
that the financial statements 
comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible 
for safeguarding the assets 
of the Charity and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud 
and other irregularities. 

The Trustees are responsible for 
the maintenance and Integrity of 
the Charity's website. 

Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial 
statements may differ from 
leglslat/on fn other Jurisdlct/ons. 

Statement of Disclosure of 
lnfonmatlon to Auditors 
In accordance with section 418 
Companies Act 2006, the 
Trustees oonfinm that, in the case 
or each of the persons who are 
Trustees at the time when this 
report Is approved, so far as each 
of the Trustees ls aware, there is 
no relevant audit informatlon of 
which the charitable company's 
auditors are unaware and each of 
Clle Trustees has taken au steps 
lhet ought to have been taken to 
make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit infonnatlon and 
to establish that the charitable 
company's auditors are aware of 
that information. 

This report has been prepared 
in accordance with the special 
provisions relating lo small 
companies within Part 1 S of 
the Companies Act 2006. 

PricewatemouseCoopers llP 
(PwC) have Issued an unquallfled 
auditors' report. 

Approved by the board 
and signed on its behalf by: 

~ 
Sir Lloyd Dorfman CSE 
Chainnan, PRINCE'S TRUST 
INTERNATIONAL 
25th September 2020 
Company registration No. 
9090276 
Charity No: 1159815 

REFERENCE AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 

Trustees 
The Trustees of the Char11y in 
office during the year and up to 
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statements were: 

Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE 
(Chalnnan) 

Rupert Goodman DL 
(Deputy Chainman) 

Mohamed Amersl 
Farah Go/ant CBE 
Dame Martina Milburn DCVO CBE 
Michelle Pinggera 
Ant6nio Simoes 
Alistair Summers 

Chief Executive 
Jonathan Townsend 

(to 9 December 2019) 
Dennot Finch, Interim CEO 

(from 9 December 2019) 

Company Secretary 
Simon Major 

Company number 
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Charity number 
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Chartered Accountants and 
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London 
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Bankers 
National Westminster Bank pie 
3rd Floor 
280 Bishopsgate 
London 
EC2M4RB 

Prlnclpal Solicitors 
OLA Piper UK llP 
160 Aldersgate Street 
London 
EC1A4HT 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' 
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 
In our opinion, Prince's Trust 
tntemational's financial statements 
(the "financial statements"): 

~ give a t11Je and fair view of 
the state of Iha charitable 
company's affairs as at 31 
March 2020 and of Its incoming 
resources and application of 
resources. including its income 
and expenditure, and cash 
Hows, for the year then ended; 

~ have been property prepared 
In accordance with United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (United 
Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, comprising FRS 
102 'Th& Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in Iha UK 
and Republic of Ireland", and 
applicable law); and 

~ have been prepared 
In accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies 
Act 2006. 

We have audited the financial 
statements, Included within the 
Annual Report and Financial 
Statements (the "Annual Report"), 
which comprise; the balance sheet 
as al 31 March 2020: the statement 
of financial activities (including 
ln<:cme and expend~ure account) 
and the statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended; and the 
notes to the financial statements, 
which Include a description of the 
slgniflcant accounting policies. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit In 
accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs 
(UK)"} and applicable law. Our 
responsiblliUes under ISAs (UK) aro 
further described in the Auditors' 
responsibiliUes for lhe audit of the 
fmancial statements section of our 

report. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 
We remained Independent of the 
charitable company in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements In the UK, 
which includes the FRC's Ethical 
Standard and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities 
In accordance with these 
requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going 
concern 
We have nothing to repon in 
respect of the following matters 
in relalion lo which ISAs (UK) 
require us to report to you when: 

~ the lnlstees' use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in 
Iha preparation of the financial 
statements Is not appropriate; or 

-t the lnlstees have not disclose<l 
rn the financial statements any 
ldenlifled material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt 
about the charitable company's 
abllily IO con~nue IO adQpl 
the going concern basis or 
acoounUng for a period of et least 
lwelve months fTOm the date 
when the financial statemen1s 
are authorised for issue. 

However, because not all tuture 
events or conditions can be 
predicted. this statement is not 
a guarantee as to the charitable 
company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. 

Reporting on other lnfonnatlon 
The other information comprises 
all of the information in the Annual 
Report other than !he financial 
statements and our auditors' 

report thereon. The trustees 
are responsible for the other 
information. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not 
rover the other Information and. 
accordingly, we do not express 
en audit opinion or, except to 
the eX1ent otherwise explicitly 
stated in this report, any form of 
assurance thereon. 

In connection wilh our audit 
of the financial statements, 
our responsibnity is to read 
the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the 
other lnformaUon ls materially 
inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears lo be materially 
misstated. If we Identify an 
apparent material inconsistency 
or materiel misstatement, we are 
required to perform procedures 
to conclude whether there is 
a material misstatement of 
lhe financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the 
other information. If, based on 
the worf< we have performed. 
we conclude that there Is a 
material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required 
lo report lhal fact We have 
nothing to report based on these 
responsibilltles. 

Based on the responsibilities 
described above and our work 
undertaken in the course of the 
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also 
to report certain opinions and 
matters as described below. 

Trustees' Annual Report 
In our opinion, based on the worll 
undertaken in the colllSe or the 
audit the information given in 
the Trustees' Annual Report for 
the financial year for which lhe 
financial statements ara prepared 
Is consistent with the financial 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL (CONTINUED) 

slatemants; and the Trustees' 
Annual Report has been prepared 
in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements. 

In addition, in light of the knoWledge 
and understanding of the charitable 
company and Its environment 
obtained in the course of the 
audi~ we are required to repon if 
we have Identified any material 
misstatements in Trustees' Annual 
Report. We have nothing to report 
in this respect. 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND 
THE AUDIT 

Responslbllltlas of the trustees 
for the fi nanclal statements 
As explained more fully in 
the Statement of Trustees' 
Responsibilities set out on 
page 24, the tl\Jslees (who are 
also the directors of the charitable 
company for the purposes of 
company law) are responsible for 
the preparallon of the financial 
statements In accordance with 
the applicable frameworf< and 
for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view. The 
trustees are also responsible 
for such Internal control as they 
determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial 
statements, the trustees ere 
responsible for assessing the 
charitable company's ability to 
continua as a going concem, 
dlselosing as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of 
accounUng unless the trustees 
either intend to liquidate the 

charitable company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Auditors' reaponslbllltles 
for the audit of the financial 
statements 
Our objectives are to obtain 
reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements 
as a whole ere free from material 
misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. and to Issue en 
auditors' repon that lndudes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance 
Is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in aoconlanca with ISAs 
(UK) wlll always detect a material 
misstatement when It exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be axpeded 
to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

A further deseription of 011r 
responsibilities for the audit of the 
tinanclal statements is located 
on the Financial Reporting 
Council's website at: www.frc. 
org.uk/auditorsresponsiblliUes. 
This description fonns part of our 
auditors' report. 

Use of this report 
This report, lnduding the opinions, 
has been prepared for and only 
for the charitable company's 
members as a body in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006 and for no 
other purpose. We do not, In gMng 
these opinions, accept Of assume 
responsibility for any other purpose 
or to any other person to whom 
this report is shown or into whose 
hands it may come save where 
expressly agreed by our prior 
ronsent in writing. 

OTHER REQUIRED 
REPORTING 

Companies Act 2006 exception 
reporting 
Under the Companies A.ct 2006 
we are required to report to you If, 
In our opinion: 

~ wa have not received all the 
Information and explanations 
we require for our audit; or 

~ adequate accounting reoords 
have not been kept or returns 
adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches 
not visited by us: or 

~ certain disclosures of trustees· 
remuneration specified by law 
are not made; or 

~ the financial statements are 
not In agreement with the 
accounting records end retums. 

We have no exceptions to report 
arising from this responsibllity. 

Entitlement to exemptions 
Under the Companies Act 2006 
we are required to report lo you if. 
In our opinion, the Trustees were 
not entitled to: take advantage of 
tha smell companies e~emption 
from preparing a Strategic Report. 
We have no exceptions to report 
arising from lhis responsibility. 

Phlllp Stokes 
(Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of 
PrlcewalerhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and 
Statutory Aud Ito rs 
London 
25th September 2020 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
ACTIVITIES (INCLUDING INCOME 
AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

C.lnrasrrictad Rarrtcted Unrvarrfchld R11sllfct11d 
Noto Fund• Funds Fund• Funds 

Income from: 

QQnaUon• 1,098,546 3,026,034 ( 4.126.580) 1,009.581 6"'7,733 [ 

lradlngAclMUes 21.000 21,000 33,575 

Olher 12.514 r 12,514] 35.070 r 
'l'otallncom• 1,098,546 3,081,544 4.1&0,0~ 1,009,561 716.378 

I 
l:xp0ndllure OR: 
IUibllngfunds 518,156 s1e.15tlj 474,857 

Cher1tableAclivlU.... 109,114 2.442,709 2,S&l,823 673,827 706,767 

TotalExpondHuro 627,270 2,4'2,709 I 3,os9,s1a I 1,148,684 706,767 [ 

Net lncomo/(oxl"'ndlturol 471,276 eie,839 r· \,090.115\ (139,123) 9,611 
end movement In funds I 
Tola! funds brouglll forward 251,905 104,419 356,324 391,028 94,808 

Tola! funds canted forward 723,181 123,2se r 1,44(1,439] 251,9(15 104,419 t 

1,657.294] 

33,575' 

35,0701 

1,72$,939 

m.857] 
1,380,594 

1.ess,4s1 I 

(129.512) 01 

485,836 

358.324] 

The Statement of Financial Activities has i,_, p"'pa""' In the c:urren1 year on the basis lha1 ell operations are continuing operations. 

There are no mcognlsed 901n$ and losses other lhan those passing thn>ugh th• Statement of Flnanda1 Al:Uvilies. 

Them Is no dlllcrence between the results on orolnary actMUes before taxaUon and tha retained resull8 lot the year staled above. end 
tholrltl$lor1cal QDstoqulvlllents. 

The notea on pagea 32 to 40 form pan of th°'e Flnandal SIBlomenlS. 



BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

2020 2019 
Noto £ £ 

Current Assota 

I Cosh In bank oild In haiid 2,341,595 497,131 ! 
De blot$ 107,004 122,074 

• 
Crodho": Amo<lnls foDlng due v.ilhln one year (1,002,160) (252,881) 

j 
Not cu"°'nt auota 1,448,439 3S8,324 

~ 
NetAoeote 1.448,439 356,324 

• Tho funds ol the Charity: 

! Untfil1ic\od Income fund• 723,181 - ;,~ 2S1,eos I 
723.258 104,419 

I Total Chorlty fund• 1,446,439 ,_ ... ·: .. 356,324 1 

Tho notes on pag°" 32 to 40 rorm part or these flnandol ltatomenta. Tho llnande;t stmoments on P89°" 29 to 40 woro opptO\'od by lho 
SOerd onct argneo on Its tlenaff by: 

Sir Lloyd Dotfman CBE 
Chairman 
25111 Septoml>Or 2020 
Company rou1$1J'atlon No. 9090276 
CnMtyNo; 1159615 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2020 

2020 
Nolo £ 

Cash n-1 from o..-ratirig actMUea: 

l Not cs>i1gonots1od rriim I (uSQd In) oporntlng eclMUea ··' 
,, A. 1,844,41>4 

I Change in cash ond casn equivalents In tho reporting year ·- 1,844,4&4 

i Cash and cash equivalents at the b0gin·,;ing of lhe reponing year a ~97,131 

l Cash and Cll•h equlvalents al tho ond or tho reporting yoar '8 2,341,595 

2019 
£ 

110.988) I 

(70,968) I 

568,099 i 

497,131 ! 

Note A: Reconclllallon of net Income I 
iexpendlture) to net caah flow from operating 
activities 

Note B: Analysts of cash and cash equivalent& 

Not lncomol(oxl)Ondltu"') for the 
ra~ng yoar (as per the •llltement 

2020 
£ 

2019 
£ 

of financial actlvlUe1) 1,090,115 (129,512) ' - ,. . 
Adjustmom• far: 

l 1ncrGaH In Crediton _ 739.279 ~, 94,675) 

Oeaoaso I (lncniaso) In Oeb!orl 15.070 (36, t3t) 

I! - . ~ 
N.C c:aah genora1ed lram I (~ .. d In) 
o..-raUne actlvldo1 1,644,464 [70,968t 

2020 2019 
£ £ 

Cashslbanl< 2,321.552 490,868 

I Cash in hand 20,043 6.2631 
Total cuh and caah oqulvolonte 2,341,595 497,131 



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Accounting Convention 

Tho tlnanclaf 1tutemen1S are prepared 
under the hlstoilcel ccnventlon. 

Basis of P!'1lparatlon 

Tho llnandal statements have been 
prepared In ecconlance with 1119 going 
concem ba5ls. There aro no material 
uncertainties about the Charity's abillty to 
continue. Tho Cha!!ty Is o pub&c benefit 
onUly. The uccoundng polltles have been 
applied conslstonUy. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financia1 statoment9 have been 
pmparod In eocon:tanc;e wllh lhe ICllOwing: 

-t Finendal Reporting Standard 102-
'The Financial Reportlnv Standar<I 
eppllc:ablo tn Ille Unllad Kingdom end 
Republic ol lro!and" ("FRS 102'1 

-t CHARITIES SORP(FRS 1021(seoond 
edition - OCtCller 201e1 

-t Tho Companies Act 2006 

Income from donation$ 

DonaUOO$ are recognised when there lo 
anUUomenl re<:Glpt Is probablQ and lhe 
amount is maasureble. All donaUons ere 
shown gltlM of related e..,el1Clilllra. Tax 
credits recelwble Imm gift aid dMaUons 
are reo>gnlSed when !here Is a valid Gift 
Alddedaratlon. 

Income Is delerrnd wnere tho donor 
hes speclfiod lhat the Income l• to be 
e><ponded In a Muro period ot wl1ent 
c:onlrac:tual mndlllons ror onUUament wlU 
bO mot In e Mum period. 

Donations In kind comprise QOoda, 
services and laciliUes donated to Princ:e'a 
Trust International which wauld otheiwise 
have had to be pult:hllsed. Thay era 
valued ot tho amount that Princ;e'a Trust 
International would Mve paid in or<ler 
to obtain them and ore Included both Jn 
lnoome and expenditure. 

Income from charitable 
activities 

Grants from government end Income 
from other public seclor <:on!J11Cl3 have 
been roconled o• Income from Charitable 
BCIMU••· All Income Imm cheritablo 
sctivltles is shown gross ol ~atocl 
8"!>8ndlture. Income Is dofom>d whon tho 
condilions applying to thC> grant ere nol 
wholly within the ccntrd of Prinu'; Trust 
Into motional. 

Income from trading activities 

Income Imm lredlng uctMUea I• 
recognlseclwtteneervk:flsaradeliverod. 
lnoome Is defeflod when payment has 
been meet.eel lot service• whldl am to be 
dellvemd In Iha Muro. 

Other Income 

Other Income retatos to Income whk:h Is 
not donations, Imm charitable nctMUes 
c>rfromtroding8Ctivltle•. ThlslflCOll1el9 
recognised wllen thore is entiUemenl 
receipt Is probable ooo the amount Is 
maasurnble. 

Expenditure 

AD oxpeooltura Is accounted lor en en 
accruals basis and has been ctasslned 
under haading• that oggregato an costs 
related to the category. Whera costs 
cannot be dlredly orulbuted to panlcular 
headings they have been oPocated to 
ectlviUes en o bnsiS consistent "'th tho use 
olrosourcea. 

The costs ol raising fllnds lncludo Iha 
salnlloa end ovomaad costs of the stan 
who undortn~e f\Jndralslng OdMUea 
and the merkoUng ond pubUtlly oosts 
ossotl8ted""thralslngthoprolileGf 
Prince's Trust tntamatlonal (but not 
those wlllch ore used In an educational 
manner in furtherance Ol Illa Charity's 
Gbjacta). Other CO$ls, In compliance with 
ccnstitutlonal and &tatuloty requirements. 
Include external oudil costs. 

Supp0rt cosls include the salaries of thoso 
managerial staff which ore not dlrodly 
altribulablo to a partlcular praprammo al 
charitable WOil<. govemonce costs. and ol 
charges made by The Pmce's Trust lor 
support eellllce• (o.g. Finance. IT, HR end 
for other edmlnlstraUve s1aft and eD office 
running costs) tonWmobles end other 
ovemoad• not spet1roca11y attributable to a 
particular programme of cllaritable worl<. 

Support oosta are eDo<atad to Q)Sts or 
ra151ng lunds and Charilablo ectlvlUes on 
tho basts al the relative """" inv(ilved, 
based on an esseumont by the Charity's 
management. lrrecovereblo VAT Is 
Included with tho Item al exponso to whldl 
11ro1arcs. 

Contractual llabllltles 

Prince's Trust lntamadonet prtl'lldos for 
loga1orc:onstruclNoobDgetlonstllat 
are ol uncertain Ull1lng or amount et the 
balance sheet dato on tho basls ol the best 
estimate ol the expenditure required to 
sotUe thoobllgaUon. 

Tax 

Tho Charitable company Is exempt lrom 
lnc:orno end corporelloo taxes on Income 
end gains lo lho el<tont that they ere 
applied for their charitable objects. 

Funds 

The funds al the Charity /Ulve been 
segregated es lollows: 

Rostrictad Funds conslsl of donalicns lot 
which tho donor giver has specffied the 
purposes for which the resources can be 
ulWsed and therefore to which expenditure 
lsrostrtcted. 

Umesttic:lllll Funtl• amslsl oS aD other 
lncomo that "8S not been reslrictsd. Thoy 
era expendoble 8\ lhe discnition of tho 
Trustees tn furtherance of the obfadS of 
tho charily. 

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Financial Instruments 

The Cllaril)I has taken adven1a90 of tho 
exemption which ls available under FRS 
102 1.12 (c)(relaUng to aecllons 11 and 
I 2 ol the standard)•• a wholly owned 
sutnldtaty not to disdoso tho followlng: 

-+ CS!egoll"9 of ftnentlal lnstlVments 

-+ Items ol lncom•, exp;""""· gains or 
losses minting tollnonclal itlsuuments. 
and 

-+ Ei<posure to end management of 
nnanc1e1ns11a. 

Fun dlotlosu"' tn relaUon to nnancial 
lnstlVments Is available ln tho ooflSOildated 
llnanOal sta1oments ol The Pnnce's Trust. 

Crltlcal Accounting Judgements 
and Key Estimates and 
Assumptions 

The Chan1y allocateo supp0rt coses 
bo- dinerant charitable ectMlles using 
management's judgement of Iha proporliOn 
of effort expendad on each catagory during 
the year. 

Pension Scheme 

The Prine•'• Trust has arranged a 
defined contribution ponslon ""'1eme 
fO< Prince'• Trust lntemat1oners staff. 
Pension oontrtbuUons cllergad In the 
Statement of Fin8ncial Activllles represent 
the contrtbutlons payable by tho Charity 
In tho year. Defined pension scheme 
contributions were char(jOd to Iha profit 
and toss account es they fall due. The 
Charity ha<I no potential ltablllty other than 
!or payment of !hose contributions. 



2DONATIONS 

Unrcatricted 
£ 

I Donation~ f:ru_m Major Donors __ _ 
1 

493.355 . 

OOnB!lons lrom Corpore1e Pertner.1 tD\, 105 

RoatrlctOd Total 2020 Unros1rtctod Rosbictod To1al 2019 
t £ £ £ £ 

· 2,121.839 2,615,194 · ·,232,472 129.576 .'." 362,04BJ 

683.583 784,688 112. 168 88,210 200.378 

954 

34,562 25,937 -_-·· - 25,9311 
1,098,546 3,028,034 •.126,580 \,009,561 647.733 1,657.294 

Unrealrtclod Rastrlcl" Tolal 2020 Unroslrtctod R9'trlc1od Tolalill18 
lncomo lnlm Trading Ac!Mdos £ £ £ £ £ £ 

~Uoonslng 21,000 21,000 33,575 33.5751 

21.000 21,000 33,575 33.575 

Unrostrtctod Ro1trlctod Tolal2D20 Unroslrlctud Rowlrlctod To1al2019 
Otllorlncoma £ E E £ £ £ 

lOU.er Income 12,514 12,514 35,070 35,070j 

Donatiotls In kind mpre88nl lhe e-S1lmoted (OSI of sel'Viees donated lo Prince's TruSI lnlematlonal, e11he vslue et'""''"" P~nca·s Trust 
ln!emallonal would have paid. AD lncame WBS ge~orotad In the UK. 

3 EXPENDITURE ON RAISING FUNDS 

Dlro<l Othor Allocotod Dln><:I Other Allocated 
staff dlroct support Total staff dlroct support Total 

.... is ca•ta cosi. 21120 coa!JI COBIB - 2019 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

I E><pernlliuro ·an RBISlng Furldo '184.399 97,663- 236,094 518,156 93,B16 _ • 150,661 225,360 474.857J 

4 EXPENDITURE ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES 

DI reel OU.or Allocated Dltocl OU.or ADocetod 
81'111 dlroct oupport Tol81 aUlll direct support Total 

coala coat• c;C>sts 2020 coat. •••ts coat. 2019 
£ £ E £ £ E £ £ 

l_Proommmo;c,,ping - '355,3!' 429,768 '377,337 ·:1.162.4!4!." . 11.305. - 29;301 . 21.594 -~ ~.2oot 
Programme delivery 291,670 846,716 451,023 1,389,409 233,607 547,783 531,004 1,312.394 

L 646.981' 1,076,482 828,360 2.551.823 ..• 244,912 577,684 558,5911 1,380,594 j 

Sllppoll cos!& ere eUoceted on IGtal costs basis, 

5 SUPPORT COSTS 

Rotslne Chartl8ble Rolalng CharihdJle 
Fund• Actlvllleo Tola! 2020 Funda AcdvldH Tolal2019 

t £ £ £ £ £ 

148.914 522,480 . 671,394 -· 150,833 ' 373,338 :s_iJ,~711 

!Ot11orcooto: 

Ccmmunlca1lons and Merl:eUng 

Foes paid lo Tho Prlnco's Trusl 

3,710 13,016 16,726 4,295 10,645 14,940 

.. __ : ~ - · 17.226 - ~:; 60.440 .... ., n.6so ~ 3.21s · 1,imi .- ' t1.1e53 
238,094 828,360 1,084,454 225,380 5~.598 783,978 

Govomanco cosls lndudes £I 2,600 (2018119: £I 2,000) 89 audit loos. 

Thete were non-.alldit foos ~r £2,547 paid to lhe extemal euditor.i (2018119: Cnb). 



6 EMPLOYEES' AND TRUSTEES' EMOLUMENTS 

2020 20\9 
Stall,,,.,mbore No. No. 

.Averege HeadCO\lnl of employees analysed by function: 

30 17j 

Fundrolslno z 
f Govomenco ·-1 

34 19 

2020 2019 
No. 

Averago mllrtlllfy numller ot employee•"""~ ay function: 

f CnBrltable pu~ arid suppcin.111aR - 29 16 ! 
Fundrnlstng 2 

I Governance.·· · -I 
33 18 

2020 2019 
Staff Co1h for !ho above omployoaa woro: £ £ 

Wage• and Satariaa 1,318,737 757,916 

j Soc:ialSecurityeos!s · 139,070 82,IOSJ 

Pensions and !)OSI '1ltiremen1 benefits 44,987 27,675 

1,502,774 867,699 I 

Prince's Trust tntemaUonel paid [nil (2018119: EnQ) In redundancies iltld tenn!nation payments duririg the year. 

Employee numbers 
The number of employees whoso benefits fen Within the followlng bands were: 

2020 2019 
No. No. 

E60,000 • £70,000 

I £90,000 - r 100.000 • 1 

£120,000 -£130,000 

Stnff cos!s lncludo £646,981 (2018119: 1:244.912) for stall dlreclly involved In dollvering charitnble aclivtlles, £184,399 {2018119: 
a!8,816)1or staft lnvolvo<l In raising lunds and £671,394 (2018/19:£523.971) forsupp(lf\ staff. 

The total remunorallon of key manegemen1 was £ 135.63a (2018119: £129,540). 

Tllore wero two (20\8/,9: one) mombera of koy mana(IOmonl poraonnal. 

Two (2018119: one) members ol key managa111ent claimed travel ·~or £24,021 (2018119: £34.2801. 

Trustees' Emoluments 
No Trustoo "'"°"'od oalarios, Ice$ 01 othor benoflto during the year (2018119: £nD~ 

Trustaes havo clalrnod £nU (2018/19: Enll)OJ<pansos. 

---"""""nla201Bl2037 

·7 DEBTORS 

2020 2019 
£ [ 

Accrued Income 81.811 8.105 

~ Tr11de Oeblcrs • 27.000 104,194 J 

OlherDebtoni 783 9,775 

I Prap11ymonts 17,410 -.J 
To\DJ 107,004 122,074 

8 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

2020 2019 
£ £ 

Amoun19 OW9d to group undor\aklngs 249,517 109,590 

~T'1ld0Cfl>dl10ra ~ -- :57,497 45.619 I 
Olllerc:n,ditors 59,806 20,850 

l.Aa:nra!s -· 11,096 - . 86,822 l 
Ooferred tnc:om11 824.244 

\Total ,,__ 1,002,180 262;aa11 

l1>0 Jnaaase in Cledilcrs Is due toe donalion received In March 2020 to fund programme acllvity In Gree<:e In 2020/21. 



9 MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 

Funds brouuht 
forward 

£ 

Funds cantad 
lncomo Expendltura IO<Ward 

£ £ £ 

tsCOPtri'g~·!. •• :?._?.; j·~ ~:3·i~ .. ~- £-t-~:~:~·:--J0.:':Q~i-:·~~~1t!J5· .. ::1$±a:'+1t.·~~Ef~:.~:-~:~~s~.~...#:7;~J~Jt5~~-:>}j 
Groece sCoo.:U ~ -, 28.834 . 96.839 (125,673) O 

Je~i:irlj(;8~~riSQ9l>ln'g~·:.:;;_:.'"~~~i,:~!J~~;,_(:f0:.\"if:t:~:~-,_~;'o\lf:.,,~··:.;;.:S9:~~-i;~j'.,~$(1i162(~7.,?";':.¥!.66iJI 
India Scoping ' 0 38,000 (38.000) 0 

f,r;;n;a:~e;Jnpioyiti1111y~i;?,:'..)~:·.;;:~;";_:;·r;;:;;:_;;:~'.'iF~·-1¥'."";;·~·~'-"7~·0~~~.;~·4.09o.;,~;;.~~t1~;QC>Oi'~·~~:-<001 
Kenya Scoping 0 70,000 (70,000) 0 

l¢~na~~~;-~,~3-~.l .... ~;,_~fi'!::_~;,~:~~~/~·~~!;~R;_o:,A;~~;,~2~iu~fc.-=r~~:i:,<105,74~l;JS°~;-:-~1.44~2581 
Other Cettbbean Scoping . O 40.000 (40,000) · O 

f OUie7~(~S(.oPii1Q~.~~~~~?£?~ ... ~,~.~~~~~~ ~ ..... ~~~~?~:_.;~~~i ~A~~!~: ~~~.'0:~:t;7_~:ooo~~~~ ~2ro:~;~~~i;~~].';~!5;._0] 
Othar Asia Soaping 0 61,000 (61,000) o 

fM8~Y)ili~~«.;;,;')J'.'~"J;_z.;J2'~~·'.Y....,.9.5"~f:::~~-·-·i::;.";,Jie;F~2~i:QOC>·'..~.t~:li1;66,!))::::0".r.~:.,:..;.;ts9'.34ill 
Rwanda ScoplnU O 30,000 (30,000) O 

~2;::.~~{._,.-;:;;~3t:iS~ -\_-s~~~,'l~f-:1;:~.:~-~l~W~ /f::~?I:k--;;~g-p.;~~t .. ~~~~~ .. ~.;:~~~.~~~~~~:r~d 
Gel Into Programmoa 

IBiiitiiidos':;•~.!:~'.:':;,;::.;.~,-gjJW;E~'~~,q~~::"i-~"'.j~~~~;sas~'Z.f~~3o.Q.Qo~~~:-~(30,565>·f;.~:-_ ."_~:;~'.ol 
C8nad8 · o (12) 12 O 

tGr~~~~r~~~t.~~!"\~ ~~~~~.:g~~~~~lt~i;};:t:·o:-;r'1~~7.~9i75a}.·:~ ~!.tt(1~~~5s>:r~:~~.:~~~~~~:9i 
Jonlnn 0 12,514 (12,514) 0 

fi~1s~~~~:~Jw;;.0%_:,,;-;x~tf..~ ~~:~,y,~c~:=:~::~~~ .. o~~-~-r~~~:4?1.~o~~~c~~:ooo>~. ~-~~~s:oocf} 

~Toam_P~tamm~s1£.WE~v?.}:~:i~::-":-~1Z.:~~~~~~:?£~'!.<~t:.;~~'~::t.eft.~$.~:~~'!:!: . ..:~ .. ~~ ... ~~~~~~l~~~~;~.~:;.;; ... ;J 
Barbados 0 43,842 (43,842) 0 

f.i8!!181ca);·~~'.i·',~'""~-::~:;-:1-t~'{';;"'.;:'.I;:,~t·C:·.·?~'.~~:~ri->·J"'::';;.~,~~~~-i~:ol!0::1'0~f.~,:(l?;cio91f~~r?.',~~:·1:,;o] 
Jordan 0 33,333 (33,333) 0 

ltriil~acf&t~ot·~-;;~ ~-r~ry;.~~...:..--;::-~-:~-!~~~_:.-~~~:;t:--:1:~!~~9~;~~~~r~>F~tO:fJ69I?;Y??(1·0,ooOf~~(i~y;::~5o1 

f~~t11o·~o~~in~~·~;·~~z~)·~~.~ .. ~:~~L;.~~~~~~-;~r;!i~~~4·:.~.3.'.k"~~?:7~~~ .. ~:~·:~~?X~1 .. a~;_~7tp~~ 
Barbados · . 0 35.000 (35.000) 0 

[.1:a~ita~~-:ff.l.:..:·:~~:qt: ~:~~~.~2.':.~·:2~·-~;~,":~?.~~;~~..:u_;-e.._r:Y.~~t~.o~-!(,~'\~~~1~0:~~~~){1:40~@i?~J.'~.~?~1?.Q] 
Malta 0 26,478 • (28,476) 0 

~rrinld8ci:&;~i>ag0~~:~,t~iJ;.~:s:~~ ~;c~-:-~·;;r~..f...,¥:;;o~r:.'~Ji-'.-r,.1;4:4.0!l6t7'·~f<£::'f144,0<fo)~~:~j-""';1::;'1Q1 

~ MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Fund• brought -
rorward 

£ 

AnnualR0p0ot.,.;-nl!o201111'20 39 

Funds corftod 
lncoma Expendltura larwatd 

£ • £ £ 

[E~~:rp~M·c!(a11D·~9~~-~fii9·;; .. n~~.;rij~~;;;:~~~:~;j~.rt{4:;~~~~~~._;:;~~:;:::\"':~~~~ ) .. ~.~:;_;.~:~/fl~~~,~~f(~itJ 
Jordan Enterprise Challenge o 21.000 (21,0001 · o 
r,-~;J'f::~~~~-~·-~~n::s..:-!~~:1·~.;}~?.~~~~l:~~~i.-~::~:~~:c~!~t:~~..r~~rr!h.~-.;t1:.~·~'fiH-:·~:.~-~~~a.1 
Ento'l'rl•o Programmaa • 

t~te~lo~!id-~~~-..:n~t ~~~~:f.~~!~~~--i~~~~~;~~~:ls.~J~;~~~ ~~~-0·~ftiaJ24L!:fs· .. ~·~~~o] 
. Jamaica · . o 2s.ooo (25,000) o 
b~:;];.:m:;:·ii_2!~~~?.:~3.-r8~%~~~-~~?:,Jt~~J?---:J~~tffeI~~~U?'~~~~~~~fl.~.:;;~~~i;.1.l?iJ 
Other 

t~RMJ~ecjj"l;i;,;1,-,-,o.ct:4J.f.f~J·/£!:..~'!'G'S~.::,.:'0~;'i..,.;_*°~iZt~:Q06;.~'i-;<,,.•};t3i;600~:-'.".'.,,1l-(IQ6.600>~~1!'f:'f:&:~~¥o) 
GRUBB O 11,000 (11,000) O 

ie.1!FiQ~nii"cr:t*sq,;w~J,i;9--W~~-~Y~~.;:.t~,~7:'olitr~~~i;~12.esof:f.&::~>t<1?Mof:~~fi;'!:-;.9;-oJ 
rmpect, Safely & Securily, Ooalgn, Polley & Legal. O 270,000 (270.000) O 

i:e~~~:c~_mS.1e~~~;;~r~~T:tl:;>~W~~;~-.~~=::..~~~~o-~~~iWo:~~:f'~~tr(io~oOQT~~~-~~~~{ol 

FJ?::-;~_~g~t:~T~;:·~~.~;~~-:::=-~,~~~~~~~:~T~~~~)f!';:~~~s::·~~·~.r:~ ... ;:.,:~{.-;·.~~~~Jt~~;7,\~~4~J 
TOlal Resutctod funds 104,419 3,061,548 (2,442,709) 723.256 

gw~;-,,:':'.~<;'m-~#"~~t;¥;~W1£~;~~G-I'-;t~:1~~.};~B°·~~?,'f~'1;'~"~~.§--tj 
Un,.,.utcted Income funds 251,905 1,098,546 (627,270) 723.181 

lf?~-~-···rt~sI.:t;~.0:.I.~~~~~z:~~~~~~g,~h,;~~~~~4~)·~-~filf.}~_;];~C:l.i~~~~~~-r;~~~f~!i 
Tollll funds • 356,324 4, 160,094 (3,069.979) 1,440,439 

Funds .,. restricted against COie pogrommes of tile charity. fuMer resuicl8d gqraphiailly es noted above. 

TM Eastern C8ribboan Scoping pmjact was funded by an awarll made by The Prince of waies·s Cllarilabla Foundation. 

10 AN~LYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS 

Funds balaneoa llt 31 March 2020 ,,. roprosontod by: 

Unn>sltlcllld 
Funds 

£ 

Rnltlclod 
Funds Total Funds 

£ £ 

J<;Uef.inii>;Sseis'.:Qwp~g~;~~'!-?;~;;~.:§.i~~i';'~~4ifl'.t~\'i5~~:;1;t@'i723:1s1••:?-~'~?23;??a%~'~i;.;~:439J 
Totel funds 723, 181 723,258 1,4'16,439 



11 THE ULTIMATE 12 RELATED PARTY 
PARENT UNDERTAKING TRANSACTIONS 
AND CONTROLLING 
PARTY 

Prince's Trual lnlomaUOMI (lhe Cllartry) 
Is a wholly ownod oubsldlary al Tho 
Prince's Trust. Th& C/\arlly is lncorpe>raled 
In England and Willes and has Ila own 
rogisb'lllion wtlh Ille Charity Commisslon. 
The Charity'• Atlic:ln al AssodaUon sel OIJI 
'-The Prince's Trust exerdscs control 
over tho Charily. 

As !he aolo mombot'. Tho Prlnce'a Trusl 
h8S Iha powor lo appolnl up lo tluGo 
Truslo011 and lhon eppclnt lho Chairman 
fn>m among the TruslDeS. 

Tho u!Umala pan>n1 unden.oldng end 
ex>nb'Olllng port/ is Tha Prince's Trusl. a 
Charily registered In lhe Unlled Kingdom. 
The Prince's Trust Charily R~stn1tion 
Number In England & Wiiies Is 1079675 
and In Scolland Is SC041198. The Rayat 
Cttaner Humllcr Is RC000772. The 
consolldaled financial staloments al Tha 
Prlnce"s Tnisl are avaUoble Crom The 
Prtnee"s Trust. 8 Gtado Palh, london. 
SE 1 8EG. The Prin<:e"e Tnist's vision Is 
11181 OYery yaung porson should have lhe 
Chance to succead ond Us mission Is lo 
help young people ln>nstonn lhelr llvss 
by developing Iha conrldence MCI $lt1Ds to 
live, l8am end oam. 

pmc:o·a Tnisl lntemaUonal has hod 
1n>nsactlons lhroughou1 lhe year wtlh 
its paronl c:ompony, The Prince's Trus~ 
lotamng £512.272 (2018119: £419,6241 
rslaUng lo stan salaries and expenses. 
pmcuramenl cards. Cli<:I< Travel Md 
teeherges ror 1ac1uues. llcence fee ano 
managemenl lees. A1 lhe year-end 
£249,517 (2018/19: £ 109.590) was 
outstanding end included wtlhln credilorl. 
The Pr!nco'• Trust (parent Charity) has 
mado a worklng capital lacillry or up 
lo £1.200.000 (2018119: £1,200.000) 
evallublo lo Prince's Trust lnlomaUonal, 
whidl was not dmv.n doWn (2018119: not 
drawnCSOWn). 

Prtnce's TniS1 Conada. a alstm cha~ly 
or The Prinee·s Trust GTOIJj), Is now 
woRlng lndependenUy and no funds were 
exchanged between Iha two charities 
in 2019120. (Prince"• Trust Csnada . 
mlmbursod Prince'• Trust lnlemaUonol 
C43,574 tor supporr Pf<l"ldod dlllfng 
2018119). 

£100,000 (20111119: £100,000) donallan 
was recelvod lrom Tho Oot!man 
Founclollon. an "'1)anlsoUon of wlllch lho 
Chai/man of Prince's Tnisl tntamauona1. 
Sir Lloyd Dorfman CBE, ls lhe Chalmuln 
ond founder. in addlllon. £5,871 (20t8/19: 
£2,592) 'N1l9 received !or office space from 
The Ol!Ice GrollP Ltd. an organisation 
of whicll lhe Chalrman of Prince's Trust 
lnlemaUonat, S~ l.Joyd Oo<fman CBE. Is o 
sharenoldor. £913 {2018119: £1,8TSf wao 
rocelved as glft..,..klnd donalions from Slr 
Lloyd Doffman CBE. 

£nD (201812019: £\00,000) was rec:elvfld 
as donations from Iha Amorsl Foundation. 
an orgonlsallon of wtilell e Tnistao 01 
Prtnco·s Trull tntamaUONll. Mohamod 
Amersl. Is the Cheltman and founder. 

There ware no ouisiandlng bnlancas in 
mtal.lan to lhe abavo at Iha balance sheet . 
dato {2018/t9: nJJ}. 

13 TAXATION 

. TM Chtlrtly was a registered charily 
ll'lrougtiout lhe year. As such II is not liable 
to altporation lo• on the sutplus <>f Income 
aver 1Ul)Onditur<1 lor Iha year (8478 CTA 
2010) or gains arising lrom lha dis~ 
of assets (s256 TCGA 1992) so far as the 

. proceeds are usod for charitable purpoaoa 
only. 

The Charily Is reglslered 1or VAT and, 
where appll<:abla. expendlturu Is roairded 
net of rocoverable VAT. 

, 14 EVENTS AFTER 
THE REPORTING 
PERIOD . 

lnrespense totllo COVID-19crisls, anonly 
before lhe end ot lhe <&porting period 
Prince's Tr\ISI lnlemallonat was required lo 
return eD Stoff wor1<lng Ollllrsel'S IO lhe UK 
ond some face lo rateQ9etllllons ceased 
lorDU!onperiodDll!mlt. ~Cllarizy 
has received aome nnandat suppor1 1rom 
Iha Government viii lhe Coronavlnis Job 
RolllnUon SChomo In~ of f\lrloughacl 
staff, whilst face lo reco dellvary has nol 
boon POssibte. The Charily and llll clellvery • 
ponners hOvo 1'9Spanded qulcldy to &hill 
our operating model to focus on mote 
onJiM ~ortvery ano so far l!lis has proved 
effectNe. We w!D, tiowever. continue Ill 
assess and mitigate operational risks 
due to Iha inherent uneer\alnty due to 
COVll).19. 

William Sl:aw CBE has boon apl)OlntaO ea . 
lho permanenl Chief Executive or Pl1 a"I! 
will begin in ll'la· rnlo lrom Octobet 2020. 
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Termination of a Director Appointment 

Company Name: PRINCE'S TRUST INTERNATIONAL 

Company Number: 09090276 

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the:18/12/2015 X4MHIWN7 

Termination Details 

Date of termination: 10/12/2015 

Name: SIR NIGEL GRAHAM KNOWLES 

Authorisation 
Authenticated 

This form was authorised by one of the following: 

Director, Secretary, Person Authorised, Liquidator, Administrator, Administrative Receiver, 
Receiver, Receiver manager, Charity Commission Receiver and Manager, CIC Manager, Judicial 
Factor. 
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End of Electronically filed document for Company Number: 09090276 Page: 1 




